
 

 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
  
  

 
 
 

Title: Environment, Transport & Sustainability 
Committee 

Date: 22 January 2019 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors:Mitchell (Chair), Horan (Deputy 
Chair), Wares (Opposition Spokesperson), 
Littman (Group Spokesperson), Atkinson, 
Brown, Miller, Peltzer Dunn, Robins and West 

Contact: John Peel 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291058 
john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 

The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 
 

Infra-red hearing aids are available for use during 
the meeting. If you require any further information or 
assistance, please contact the receptionist on 
arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the 
nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

 Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

 Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE Page 

 

 PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

50 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declarations of Substitutes:  Where councillors are unable to 
attend a meeting, a substitute Member from the same political 
group may attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest:   
 

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests; 
(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local 

code; 
(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on 

the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a 
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in 
the ward/s affected by the decision. 

 
In each case, you need to declare  
(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to; 
(ii) the nature of the interest; and 
(iii) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other 

interest. 
 
If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer 
or administrator preferably before the meeting. 

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public:  To consider whether, in view of 

the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
Note: Any item appearing in Part Two of the agenda states in its 

heading the category under which the information disclosed 
in the report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not 
available to the press and public. A list and description of 
the exempt categories is available for public inspection at 
Brighton and Hove Town Halls and on-line in the 
Constitution at part 7.1. 

 

 

51 MINUTES 7 - 42 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2018  

 Contact Officer: John Peel Tel: 01273 291058  
 

52 CHAIRS COMMUNICATIONS  

 



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

 

53 CALL OVER  

 (a) Items 56 - 59 will be read out at the meeting and Members invited 
to reserve the items for consideration. 

 
(b) Those items not reserved will be taken as having been received 

and the reports’ recommendations agreed. 

 

 

54 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 43 - 44 

 To consider the following matters raised by members of the public: 
 
(a) Petitions: To receive any petitions presented by members of the 

public; 
 
(b) Written Questions: To receive any questions submitted by the 

due date of 12 noon on the 16 January 2019; 
 
(c) Deputations: To receive any deputations submitted by the due 

date of 12 noon on the 16 January 2019. 

 

 Contact Officer: John Peel Tel: 01273 291058  
 

55 MEMBER INVOLVEMENT  

 To consider the following matters raised by Members: 
 
(a) Petitions: To receive any petitions; 
 
(b) Written Questions: To consider any written questions; 
 
(c) Letters: To consider any letters; 
 
(d) Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion referred 

from Full Council or submitted directly to the Committee. 
 

 

 

 GENERAL MATTERS 

56 FEES AND CHARGES 2019-20 45 - 86 

 Joint report of the Executive Director for Neighbourhoods, Communities & 
Housing, Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture and 
Executive Lead Officer - Strategy Governance & Law 

 

 Contact Officer: Michael Bentley Tel: 01273 292124  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

 ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS 

57 CITY ENVIRONMENT MODERNISATION UPDATE 87 - 106 

 Report of the Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture  

 Contact Officer: Lynsay Cook Tel: 01273 291851  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

 

 

 TRANSPORT & PUBLIC REALM MATTERS 

58 ROTTINGDEAN HIGH ST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA 
TRAFFIC SCHEME 

107 - 114 

 Report of the Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture  

 Contact Officer: Matthew Thompson Tel: 01273 293705  
 Ward Affected: Rottingdean Coastal   
 

59 SCHOOL PARKING ENFORCEMENT REVIEW REPORT 115 - 122 

 Report of the Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture  

 Contact Officer: Paul McCann Tel: 01273 293014  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

60 ITEMS REFERRED FOR FULL COUNCIL  

 To consider items to be submitted to the 31 January 2019 Council 
meeting for information. 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may determine 
that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In addition, 
any Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying the 
Chief Executive no later than 10am on the eighth working day before the 
Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if the Committee 
meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the conclusion of 
the Committee meeting 

 

 



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its meetings 
and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made on the 
agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be raised can be 
found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 noon 
on the fourth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Electronic agendas can also be accessed through our meetings app available through 
www.moderngov.co.uk 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on disc, 
or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
FURTHER INFORMATION 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact John Peel, (01273 291058, 
email john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website.  At the 
start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  You 
should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 1998.  
Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published 
policy. 
 
 
ACCESS NOTICE 
The lift cannot be used in an emergency.  Evac Chairs are available for self-transfer and you 
are requested to inform Reception prior to going up to the Public Gallery.  For your own 
safety please do not go beyond the Ground Floor if you are unable to use the stairs. 
Please inform staff on Reception of this affects you so that you can be directed to the Council 
Chamber where you can watch the meeting or if you need to take part in the proceedings e.g. 
because you have submitted a public question. 
 

 
Date of Publication - Monday, 14 January 2019 

 

 

http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
http://www.moderngov.co.uk/our-solutions/tablet-app-paperless-meetings
mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk




 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 
 

4.00pm 27 NOVEMBER 2018 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillor Mitchell (Chair) Horan (Deputy Chair), Wares (Opposition 
Spokesperson), Littman (Group Spokesperson), Atkinson, Brown, Greenbaum, Miller, 
Peltzer Dunn and Robins 
 

 
PART ONE 

 
 

34 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
34(a)  Declarations of substitutes 

 
34.1 Councillor Greenbaum was present as substitute for Councillor West.   

 
34(b)  Declarations of interest 

 
34.2 There were none. 

 
34(c)  Exclusion of press and public 

 
34.3 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the 

Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of proceedings, that if members of the press and 
public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of confidential 
information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information (as defined 
in section 100(I) of the Act). 

 
34.4 RESOLVED- That the press and public not be excluded. 
 
35 MINUTES 
 
35.1 RESOLVED- That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 9 October 2018 be 

approved and signed as the correct record.  
 
36 CHAIRS COMMUNICATIONS 
 
36.1 The Chair provided the following communications: 

 

7



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

“On Air Quality and Health, Public Health England has published a report called ‘Health 
matters: air pollution’.  And included within it is a case study about our involvement in 
helping to reduce bus emissions and improved air quality in the city based on the work 
to seek and secure government grants to roll out cleaner less polluting vehicle fleets. 
This highlights that, on some routes, reductions in harmful pollutants such as Nitrogen 
Dioxide and Particulate Matter have been achieved.  
The city is also beginning to benefit from an increased level of engagement with 
Network Rail on a number of issues.  For example, there have been presentations and 
discussions with a range of stakeholders about the proposed ‘blockades’ to enable 
essential rail maintenance work to be carried out, and about future investment plans and 
the works to the Brighton Mainline, which include unlocking the Croydon bottleneck  and 
elsewhere in the wider Greater Brighton City Region area.  
Officers have also attended a South East Route Stakeholder Partnership Forum meeting 
recently and we very much hope that this continues and that the dialogue leads to some 
positive action and outcomes that keeps the city’s  residents, workers and visitors fully 
informed of its plans and implications for travelling by train.  
And finally, officers have been liaising with key Transport for London officers about 
improving accessibility and site safety on major construction and development sites in 
London and the city.  The current and planned traffic management arrangements for 
Valley Gardens Phases 1 and 2 has provided a useful focus to review site safety and 
access provision for pedestrians, cyclists and vulnerable highway users. 
We will keep Members of this committee and the Transport Partnership informed as 
things progress”. 

 
37 CALL OVER 
 
37.1 The following items on the agenda were reserved for discussion: 

 
- Item 42: Valley Gardens Phase 3 – (Royal Pavilion to Seafront) Approval of Business 

Case 
- Item 44: Hove Park Resident Parking Scheme Consultation 
- Item 46: Improve Brighton & Hove’s Recycling Scheme Petition 
- Item 47: Environmental Enforcement Policy 
- Item 48: Graffiti Strategy 
- Item 49: Rights of Way Improvement Plan 

 
37.2 The Democratic Services Officer confirmed that the items listed above had been 

reserved for discussion and that the following reports on the agenda with the 
recommendations therein had been approved and adopted: 
 
- Item 43: Parking Scheme Update Report 
- Item 45: Hangelton Safer Routes to School Scheme 

 
38 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 
(B) WRITTEN QUESTIONS 
 
(i) Valley Gardens Scheme 
 
38.1 David Spafford put the following question: 

8



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

 
“Following the implementation of the ‘Old Steine to Palace Pier Proposals’ how many 
bus movement per day will go through the junction where the bottom of St James Street 
meets Grand Parade, and how will this effect traffic flows?” 
 

38.2 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“‘The technical work which has been undertaken so far on this project has used a 
computer-based traffic model which has been built using data for all traffic movements, 
including bus movements.  The model conforms to Government guidance in terms of the 
traffic data being used, and the time periods which are the most important.  The data are 
based on traffic surveys and the time periods are the morning and evening peak hours 
which are 8am to 9am, and 5pm to 6pm respectively.    
The model has helped inform the work undertaken to assess a number of possible 
design options by comparing them with a situation with no changes in the area around 
the Old Steine.  The subsequent conclusions and decisions made by this committee to 
consult on a single, recommended option – referred to as Option 1 – have included 
consideration of this data.  The modelling has provided information about predicted 
journey times and therefore helped to establish the principles within the preferred layout 
for the area.    
The modelling results indicate that the total number of bus movements which are 
expected to pass though the St James’s Street/Old Steine junction for the morning peak 
hour will be 174 bus movements and for the evening peak hour will be 182 bus 
movements.  In overall terms, the modelling shows that the estimated changes to 
journey times across the whole of the project area for bus passengers and drivers in 
other vehicles are likely to increase with all of the options that were tested, but Option 1 
was the best performing in terms of the overall effects on traffic.  This information has 
then been considered as part of the much wider assessment undertaken against all of 
the projects agreed design objectives that don’t just relate to volume and speed of 
traffic.  
The next stage of the design for this scheme is currently expected to be considered by 
this committee in January next year, when this committee will take account of the public 
consultation results.  If approved, the design will be subject to further optimisation and 
refinement and consultation as the process progresses”. 
 

38.3 David Spafford asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“How will the proposals affect the plans for moving Ardingly Court surgery to the corner 
of Old Steine and Palace Pier regarding the parking available for parking for Doctor’s, 
surgery staff and patients?” 
 

38.4 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“The detail for parking, for doctor’s parking, for loading bays, taxi bays and so on will all 
be contained within the detailed design work that will be undertaken following approval 
by the January ET&S Committee. This is a two-stage process; firstly, the initial 
consultation results on Option 1 will come back and I’m sure there will be some revisions 
to the original proposal. Those revisions will be considered and then Councillors will 
hopefully give permission for those proposals to be consulted upon and work will then 
start on the more detailed aspects of the scheme that you’ve outlined” 

9



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

(ii) Valley Gardens Scheme 
 

38.5 On behalf of Anne Ackord, David Rochford put the following question: 
 
“How does this scheme accommodate the need for the pier to accept deliveries that 
need to be unloaded directly onto our reinforced forecourt, deliveries can number up to 
thirty per day and include many tons of steel used in our maintenance programme and 
without which the pier would not be viable. These deliveries cannot be unloaded at a 
remote location and must come like they do now, straight from the road onto the 
forecourt” 
 

38.6 The Chair provided the following reply:  
 
“I understand that officers have met with Anne, your colleagues and other stakeholders 
recently in order to understand, and explain, how specific concerns can be 
accommodated and further considered within the emerging design detail for the project.  
Some of that detail will need to be considered following the analysis of all of the 
responses that we receive to the consultation which has just finished.   
I can therefore assure you that your current requirements for servicing and deliveries will 
be taken into account in the future, detailed design of the area adjacent to the Pier, to 
ensure that they can be accommodated and managed safely within the new junction 
design.  In doing so, officers will liaise directly with you about this at the appropriate time 
in that process.   
The specific needs that you have for regular maintenance of the Pier which does require 
heavy load deliveries were also discussed at that meeting and, as a result, by working 
with you we will also ensure that these can continue to take place in a way that protects 
the public highway and its underlying structure from any damage and that the safety of 
everybody in that area is maintained at all times”. 

 
38.7 David Rochford asked the following supplementary question:  

 
“Safety is very important from our point of view as far as moving vehicles across what 
will now be a very wide area of pavement and we can't control the public whilst we still 
need to bring deliveries up to the front of the Pier. Can the Council confirm that they will 
make it as easy as possible for the Palace Pier and with no additional costs from our 
suppliers because we have become a difficult place to deliver to?” 
 

38.8 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“I can give that assurance and that is why we need to continue the dialogue with you so 
we can understand things from your perspective. It’s obviously to everyone’s benefit to 
enable those deliveries to take place as quickly and as smoothly as possible with 
minimum impact to pedestrians and other road users so the Pier can be properly 
serviced. As said, we will continue contact with you to keep these discussions going” 

 
(iii) Valley Gardens Phase 3 

 
38.9 Angi Mariani put the following question: 

 

10



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

“One of the key objectives of the plan, even if not stated in the original list of objectives, 
must be to create ease of access for all people travelling to the city, whether resident or 
tourist, and by whatever mode of transport. The council planners have indicated that the 
new scheme will increase journey times for private vehicles. Removing the west side 
road outside the Royal Pavilion, and diverting buses to the dual carriageway, loses a lot 
of road space and bus lay-bys and potentially increases the journey times further. Could 
this west road remain and be used solely by buses, taxis and the cycle lane. It would 
have the added benefit of moving the cycle lane away from the dual carriageway?” 
 

38.10 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“The overall aims and objectives for the scheme include seeking to redress the 
imbalance of travel experience by all modes of transport and to create a much needed 
and improved urban environment. 
The existing preliminary design option presents the simplification of the road layout with 
fewer junctions which does present the best overall journey times for public and general 
transport movements combined, it also provides a safer and more attractive route for 
pedestrians and cyclists, that will appeal to residents and tourists. 
Journey times are only impacted in the evening peak times on the A259 seafront as a 
consequence of replacing the currently uncontrolled roundabout to provide better 
facilities for pedestrians and cyclists and to improve safety” 
 

38.11 Angi Mariani asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“It must be a difficult situation for the Council to resolve when you have the Green and 
cycle lobby requesting more cycle lanes, the historical and heritage shouting for nicer 
pedestrian routes and now the business and tourist organisations saying the increased 
congestion may ruin our economy. Do you think the Council should listen more to 
business and tourist organisations in the city as ultimately they will help to pay for any 
scheme provided?” 
 

38.12 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“We are actually listening to everybody and everybody’s suggestions, some of which are 
quite significant and really helpful are all going to be reviewed and technically appraised.  
I think as you’ve alluded to, this is an area with interdependent, different modes of traffic. 
At the moment, there is a slight imbalance. There is for example no northbound cycle 
lane, pedestrians have to fight their way through the area, there is no linear routes for 
them and this was fed back to us in the survey work we undertook last summer. People 
don’t find the area easy to travel through by most modes of transport at the moment. 
Things are never easy but we are seeking to achieve a better balance of modes through 
this design process and we will keep in touch with you as part of that process” 

 
(iv) Valley Gardens Scheme 

 
38.13 On behalf of Tam Duy Dao, Gary Farmer put the following question: 

 
“With the funnelling of all traffic to the east side of the Old Steine for Phase 3, which is 
contradictory to the overall division of public and private transport seen in Phase 1 and 
2, why does this scheme differ in its environmental and civic responsibilities by creating 

11



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

pinch points, additional bus stops, bi-directional bus lanes, narrow traffic lanes, 
congestion and associated emissions by channelling all traffic on the east side for the 
inclusion of limited public space by the closure of the west side to buses in front of the 
Pavilion” 
 

38.14 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“The Phase 3 design to date together with further enhancements by way of consultation 
process, once complete, will deliver a sustainable transport corridor with access to new 
environmentally improved public spaces. These new spaces provide an improved 
setting for the heritage buildings to support conservation. These more attractive spaces 
can support the city’s civic quality and better support sustainable events and tourism in a 
central city location. 
Sustainable transport is aimed to support increased levels of cycling and walking as well 
as public transport - to support a multi-dimensional approach - to will help improve air 
quality.  
A new air quality monitor has been located on the east side of the Steine which will 
support the project monitoring before, during and for years after the scheme is delivered. 
Reclaimed road space is used in the option to help to meet all of the design objectives 
supported by the initial public survey. Public transport features on the west of Phase 3. 
Moving traffic to the west of the Steine as achieved for Phases 1 & 2 opposite the Royal 
Pavilion would require additional controlled junctions and will introduce delay and 
queuing into the network. The preferred option presents the most efficient layout to 
develop, subject to ongoing consultation process”. 
 

38.15 Gary Farmer asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“Why hasn’t the modelling been carried out at peak times such as the Marathon, bike 
race and Pride?” 
 

38.16 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“The modelling has been carried out to Department for Transport requirements and 
guidelines and reflected in our business case and that is what the Local Enterprise 
Partnership will be looking for, that is the standard basis for modelling” 

 
(v) Valley Gardens Scheme 

 
38.17 Simon Thetford put the following question: 

 
“What consultation and impact studies have been undertaken with businesses in the Old 
Steine in respect of the proposed loss of car parking and vehicular access?” 
 

38.18 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“The consultation has taken very many forms, we have distributed 1,400 leaflets and 
postcards in the Old Steine area when we published the Option 1 proposals and officers 
have been working and in the area working one to one with people and as I have said, 
we will be holding specific workshops with specific people who have certain needs from 
this scheme.  

12



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

An initial parking study was conducted in Stage 1 of the project. Disabled and doctor 
parking bay re-provision is a priority along with loading and unloading. Consultation 
meeting are still being held with interest groups. A thorough assessment of all 
representations regarding key design issues will be considered before updating and 
making any revisions to the preliminary design. At this stage the updated plan will be 
considered by this committee in January in readiness to commence detailed design, 
when further specific consultation will be conducted.   
Right now, we cannot give details on the number of pay and display or resident parking 
bays that will remain as that will be subject to the next stage of the design for this 
scheme and that is currently expected to be considered by this committee in January 
next year”. 
 

38.19 Simon Thetford asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“With regards to one to one consultation, Graves & Pilcher would like to have one and 
also the other businesses in our area of the Old Steine so when could we meet 
somebody?” 
 

38.20 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“I hope I can arrange for someone to meet with you as soon as possible and perhaps 
you could give some thought as to which other business representatives in your area 
that you might want to include and I will ask one of the officers to be in touch with you 
after this meeting” 

 
(vi) Valley Gardens Scheme 
 
38.21 John Healy put the following question: 

 
“At the ETSC October 9th, a report from the office of the Executive Director, EEC 
presented an appraisal study, recommending a single option for public consultation - the 
only one of four that did not conform to the core proposal in the Capital 2 Coast 
commissioned Independent Business case report that “Buses, taxis and local access 
will be moved onto a consistent route that will run along the western side of Valley 
Gardens, and private vehicles will be kept on the eastern side of Valley Gardens”. How 
was that position arrived at and has that been sanctioned by the LEP?” 
 

38.22 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“The principle of public transport on the west of the valley was technically deliverable for 
Phases 1 & 2 as stated in the business case. 
In the case of Phase 3 traffic merges at Pavilion Parade due to existing physical site 
constraints. Switching the traffic back again would require the introduction of more 
signalised junctions which would cause delay in traffic movements and vehicle queuing. 
The preferred option includes a public transport loop to the west of the Steine. 
This preferred option is consistent to all eight core design objectives approved by this 
committee at its meeting in June which were used at the options appraisal stage. The 
objectives are consistent with council policy and the Local Enterprise Partnership’s 
current and draft Strategic Economic Plan” 
 

13



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

38.23 John Healy asked the following supplementary question: 
 

“I have been listening to some of the answers that you have given and it seems that a 
box has been ticked in relation to traffic surveys. You referred to computerised models 
being considered, Brighton is not, I would suggest an average city with average 
problems. It has different issues that need to be addressed and would not a further 
survey be sensible given the diverse requirements of the city?” 
 

38.24 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“We are modelling and undertaking traffic counts in accordance with the requirements of 
the Local Enterprise Partnership with the Department for Transport Guidelines. This is a 
highways scheme and therefore the modelling and traffic counts have to be undertaken 
in accordance with those guidelines and it is upon those that the Local Enterprise 
Partnership will carry out its review. To issue the data in any other way might prejudice 
us in being able to receive the funding and the LEP are requiring us to gather and set 
out the data in that format” 

 
(vii) Valley Gardens Scheme 

 
38.25 David Bailey put the following question: 

 
“As a business Healys occupy 2 buildings on the East Side of Old Steine which we have 
done for 25 years. We employ 35 lawyers and support staff and there are numerous 
callers to the office each day. Often our clients are elderly or disabled and they require, 
and have enjoyed, easy access to our buildings by using the open area in front to park, 
or be dropped off. The scheme proposed eliminates that open space and provides no 
workable alternatives. Please explain how will our clients and others be able enjoy 
equivalent access to our offices if the proposed scheme is adopted?” 
 

38.26 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“We will be integrating disabled parking bays and loading and unloading in this area, all 
of which will be expressed in the next revision of the preliminary design, and subject to 
further consultation, during the detailed design next year. Landscaping improvements 
such as a pedestrian island will support safer and more comfortable access to the 
adjacent businesses” 
 

38.27 David Bailey asked the following supplementary question: 
 
“Can you explain why you have opted for one of the options before this consultation 
process because from the answers that you have given, it seems the best anyone here 
can hope for is a revision to Option 1 rather than a change to any of the other options” 
 

38.28 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“We considered the options and arrived at Option 1 because we felt it offered the best 
balance of benefits that we want to see in this area based on the initial survey work 
undertaken in the summer which asked people their experiences of using the area and 
what improvements they would like to see and what were their current barriers in being 

14



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

able to enjoy it to its full. This work will now be looked at, all of the consultation 
responses will be reviewed, they will be technically appraised and revisions I’m certain 
will be made and they will be reported back to committee next year. Meanwhile, 
conversations will continue with interested groups and we very much want this to be a 
two-way process” 

 
(viii) Valley Gardens Scheme 

 
38.29 Nic Roe put the following question: 

 
“The area outside 1-15 Old Steine is essential for Brighton Language College’s day to 
day operational needs (tour group arrivals and departures, home stay provider meet and 
greets, deliveries, maintenance and suppliers). The historical substantial access on 
which our business and all local businesses rely upon and cannot operate without or the 
impact of any restrictive loading or parking bays installed leads one to ask how this 
scheme meets our continuous operational needs and at the same time fulfil our 2014 
Section 106 Sustainable Transport Contribution relating to the land at 6-7 Old Steine for 
a “footway island”?” 
 

38.30 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“We will be integrating Disabled parking bays, doctor parking bays, and loading and 
unloading in this area as well as the Section 106 requirements to deliver a pedestrian 
island that you refer to. Such further detail will be integrated into the preferred option to 
be shown in the next revision of the preliminary design, with further consultation during 
the detailed design stage that will be coming to committee next year. As I have said to 
others, we want to continue the dialogue with you so we can arrive at the best possible 
solution for your needs” 

 
(C) DEPUTATIONS 
 
(i) Parking Restrictions Hove Park Parking Consultation- Christopher Duncan 

 
38.31 The Committee considered a Deputation requesting the Committee continue and 

expand the single yellow line parking scheme in Hove Park ward be continued and the 
proposal for a full double yellow parking scheme not be approved.  
 

38.32 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“As you are aware a further consultation took place in October 2018 where it was 
outlined that if the proposed residents parking scheme is approved the council would not 
be in a position to continue with the single yellow line restriction alongside a resident 
parking scheme where residents, services & businesses pay for permits contributing 
towards enforcement of the parking scheme.   
Legally we cannot provide resident permits to allow residents to park on single yellow 
lines as these must be issued to allow parking within designated residents bays.  
If residents did not wish to be part of the proposed parking scheme, the single yellow 
line restriction would be removed and the area would be unrestricted. If a parking 
scheme is approved, this could lead to vehicle displacement.   

15



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

It was therefore important that residents had the opportunity to reconsider the parking 
proposals and whether they wanted to be part of a light touch parking scheme if 
approved.  
Residents had until the 26th October 2018 to respond and 89% of respondents 
indicated that they would like to join a residents parking scheme”. 
 

38.33 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Deputation.  
 
(ii) Hove Park Parking Consultation- Karan Martin 

 
38.34 The Committee considered a Deputation register Legal & General’s opposition to the 

proposed parking restrictions in the Hove Park area.  
 

38.35 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“Thank you for your Deputation and I do appreciate the concerns of Legal & General 
who we consider an important employer within Brighton & Hove and I we have met 
personally to discuss the matter.  
Officers in City Transport have been liaising with Legal & General as part of the Access 
Sustainable travel project since April 2017.  Officers have held two sustainable travel 
events for Legal & General staff in October 2017 and March 2018 with Hourbike (the 
Brighton Bikeshare providers), Love to Ride (to promote the cycle challenges), and 
Electric Bikes Sussex also attended.  
Transport Officers would be happy to engage further with you to review your staff travel 
plan as we appreciate that employee numbers on site are increasing.  
As you are aware, two meetings have been undertaken with representatives of Legal & 
General who have outlined the parking difficulties their staff would experience if a 
parking scheme was introduced. It was agreed that an officer from our Economic 
Development Team would facilitate introductions with land owners. Unfortunately, we 
couldn’t find any land owners that were felt to be a viable option in terms of usability for 
parking. Other sites have been discussed with planning colleagues, but none were 
found to be suitable for temporary car parking. It was recommended that Legal & 
General contact commercial agents that operate in the City through our commercial 
property database to further their search.  
As outlined in the report later at this meeting there has been a large majority of residents 
in favour of a light touch resident parking scheme and before that, there were very many 
requests coming from that area for scheme. If a scheme is taken forward then the 
parking scheme would be monitored over the first six months and if underutilised then 
exclusive pay & display could be investigated for inclusion within that the area”. 
 

38.36 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Deputation. 
 
(iii) Seeking a solution to the dangerous and disruptive traffic flows between The Old 

Shoreham Road and Highdown and Lyndhurst Roads in the Goldsmid ward of 
Hove- Steve Moses  
 

38.37 The Committee considered a Deputation requesting that Wolstonbury and Silverdale 
Roads be considered for permanent closure from access from the Old Shoreham Road 
due to dangerous and disruptive traffic.  
 

16



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

38.38 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“In January I met with Councillor O’Quinn who has done a lot of work with officers on 
this particular, rather intractable issue and we met with the Council’s Head of Traffic 
Management to look at the background to the problems you describe and to get a good 
understanding of them. We discussed the problems of Heavy Goods Vehicles and other 
traffic taking circuitous routes through the area so as to double-back for deliveries to 
stores in Dyke Road and the issue of college staff parking and speeding traffic.  
Following the meeting I asked Officers: to review the operation of the nearby traffic 
signals to ensure their operation is optimised, to review the allocation of permit to 
schools and colleges as part of the parking permit review, to make contact with the local 
stores in relation to the route that their delivery drivers are taking and to look into the 
reported problems in Highdown Road in particular;  
I then asked Officers to advise residents of the outcome of the above investigations 
through the ward councillors.   
The operation of the traffic signals at the junction of Dyke Road and Old Shoreham 
Road were investigated to understand how efficiently they operate. The signals currently 
operate within a fixed time Urban Traffic Control plan so while the timings have been 
assessed the signals do not adapt when conditions change.  In light of the concerns 
related to rat running raised by Councillor O’Quinn, funding is being sought to introduce 
more intelligent traffic signals in the coming year. 
The problem of the sixth form parking permits has been looked at and it was clear that 
the provision of parking permits is a city wide issue and as a result school permits 
across the city will be reviewed.     
The review will consider changes to the scheme including looking at working with the 
college to link these permits with specific vehicles, for example only car share vehicles 
and not liveried mini buses.  The review may of course actually limit their use further.  
The review has now started and is being reported to the Parking Systems 2020 
Modernisation Board.     
Local supermarkets have been contacted to encourage the use of Dyke Road by 
delivery vehicles rather than unsuitable residential roads.    
Highdown Road is in the original zone of the 20mph scheme and a recent review has 
concluded that speeds are lower than were measured across the zone then was present 
prior to the scheme.  At this stage there are no plans to introduce further measures in 
this area.  
In relation to students being dropped off in local roads, this is a really difficult issue to 
deal with as most people decide where they stop and make a choice on how close to the 
college they drop off. Further engagement with the college will be started to try to 
influence this behaviour.  
Closure of Wolstonbury Road is not to be considered appropriate as it has a good safety 
record and closing the road or Silverdale Road would simply move traffic onto other 
roads.   
When this closure was proposed a few months ago, as Chair of this Committee I was 
inundated from residents living in the surrounding area to those roads who were 
horrified at the thought of additional traffic being funnelled through their streets and so if 
anything were to done in this area, it would have be done on a larger area than looking 
at one or two streets in isolation. There would have to be traffic calming measures that 
would have to be installed and this would in effect, be a very large scheme that would 
require specific funding”. 
 

17



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

38.39 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Deputation. 
 
(iv) Valley Gardens Phase 3 Option 1- Andy Peters 

 
38.40 The Committee considered a Deputation requesting the council to fully re-examine 

Option 1 of the Phase 3 with regards to the economic impact to the taxi trade as well as 
identifying expected traffic problems associated with adoption of Option 1.  
 

38.41 The Chair provided the following response:  
 
“Before I respond to your deputation I would like to point out that this is not the final 
stage in the process for determining the detailed scheme layout that forms most of the 
points raised in your deputation as we are later this evening expecting to make a 
decision regarding the Business Case that could secure £6m of funding from the Coast 
To Capital Local Enterprise Partnership.    
We welcome and thank you and your colleagues for attending the workshop session to 
look at and discuss the recommended option as part of the consultation process. I think 
it’s only by doing that kind of thing in such detail that we can each understand where 
each other are coming from and get some good information to inform changes in the 
designs.  I can assure you that the thorough submission which you have produced, and 
which forms the basis of your deputation, will be recorded as a response to the 
consultation period which has just ended.   
It will therefore be fully considered as part of the next phase of work by officers and it will 
be reviewed and technically appraised along with all of the other views that we have 
received.      
Once this analysis is completed, any proposed revisions and I’m sure there will be quite 
a few, to the preliminary design will then be included in the next officer report to this 
committee in January.    
The design that has been published for consultation is at an early, preliminary stage and 
provides an indication of how the area may look and operate in the future.  Further 
details of road layouts and parking and loading and ranking and the location of street 
furniture and street trees and bus stops will be subject to change and conversation as 
the scheme’s design develops.      
This process will include further decisions and activities involving stakeholders such as 
yourself, similar to those which members of your Trade participated in with the first two 
phases of the Valley Gardens project that I think all sides found helpful”. 
 

38.42 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Deputation. 
 
(v) Valley Gardens Scheme- Option 1- Gary Farmer 

 
38.43 The Committee considered a Deputation expressing the concern of Old Steine based 

organisations, businesses and residents concerning the loss of the open area currently 
used as an essential facility for us all in relation to the proposed Valley Gardens Scheme 
Phase 3 Option 1. 
 

38.44 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“Officers have sought to ensure that occupants of properties in the area within and 
around this southern section of Valley Gardens have been notified of, and involved in, 

18



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

the consultation on the preliminary design by the extensive delivery of postcards and 
use of posters and 1,400 were delivered in the area at the start of the publication of the 
preliminary design.  However, where we have been advised that this has not been the 
case, we are investigating to find out why this may have occurred in order to ensure that 
similar issues do not arise in the future and Transport Officers have been calling on 
those premises to discuss the proposals on a one to one basis.   
I can assure you that the content of your deputation will be recorded as a response to 
the consultation, although I appreciate and expect that you and those that you represent 
will have also made these representations within responses to that consultation.    
It will therefore be fully considered as part of the next phase of work by officers.  This will 
include a review and technical assessment of the potential implications of all the 
suggestions and views expressed by everyone.  Officers may also seek further views 
from stakeholders to help further inform this review process and so this conversation will 
continue.   
Once this analysis is completed, any proposed revisions to the preliminary design will be 
included in the next officer report to this committee, which we expect to be able to 
consider in January next year and there will then be consultation upon that. 
The design that has been published is at an early, preliminary stage and provides an 
indication of how the area may look and operate in the future.  Further details of road 
layouts and parking and loading, and the location of street furniture and doctors parking 
bays will be subject to change as the scheme’s design develops.       
This process will include further decisions and activities involving stakeholders, similar to 
those which were carried out for the first two phases of the Valley Gardens project, 
which are now under construction”. 
 

38.45 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Deputation. 
 
(vi) Valley Gardens preferred Option 1- David Rochford 

 
38.46 The Committee considered a Deputation that outlined objection to the adoption of the 

preferred Valley Gardens Phase 3 Option 1 on account of the effect it would have on the 
Palace Pier businesses. 
 

38.47 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“Thank you for your deputation. You have made a very compelling case for how 
important tourism is to this city’s economy and, in particular, the numerous attractions 
and hotels that it supports and which also enables it to thrive.    
The design option that has been published for consultation is at an early, preliminary 
stage and provides an indication of how the area may look and operate in the future. It 
has been put forward for consultation following a thorough technical assessment of a 
number of options which indicated that it performed best overall in terms of general 
traffic management, road safety, and journey times, when compared to those other 
options.   I also firmly believe that will it will significantly enhance this area of the city 
centre for residents and visitors to use and enjoy and add to our attraction as a primary 
destination.    
I can assure you that the content of your deputation will be recorded as a response to 
the consultation period, although I appreciate and expect that you and those that you 
represent will have also made these representations within responses to that 
consultation.  This is the key time to be raising concerns and questions and it will 

19



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

therefore be fully considered as part of the next phase of work by officers.  This will 
include a review and technical assessment of the potential implications of all the 
suggestions and views expressed by everyone.  Officers may also seek further views 
from certain stakeholders to help further inform this review process.    
The Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership’s independent review that you have 
referred to in your deputation relates to the Business Case for the first two phases of the 
project to the north, which are now under construction.   
However, the draft Business Case for Phase 3, which this committee will be considering 
later this afternoon, is another key stage in the progress of this part of the wider project.  
It has been prepared to fully comply with the guidance issued by the Coast to Capital 
Local Enterprise Partnership to enable it to make an informed decision about releasing 
the £6m of funding that has been provisionally allocated to Phase 3 of this project.  Its 
content is therefore determined by what the LEP needs to know and understand about 
what is primarily a transport project.     
Finally, I have read and listened very carefully to the points that you and others have 
made, or will make, during this part of the committee’s agenda.  These have led me to 
decide that, later in the agenda, I will be seeking to request that officers incorporate 
additional, appropriate references within the Strategic Case section of the draft Business 
Case to highlight to the LEP, and others, that there are also linkages with the objectives 
of the council’s Visitor and the Economic Strategies and that the project will be able to 
contribute to them”. 
 

38.48 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Deputation.  
 
39 ITEMS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 
 
(A) PETITIONS 
 
(i) Parking on Saxon Road 
 
38.1 The Committee considered a petition referred from the meeting of Full Council held on 

18 October 2018 and signed by 42 people requesting the council to move Saxon Road, 
Hove into parking area L. 
 

38.2 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“Members of this Committee agreed a Parking Scheme timetable up to 2020/21in 
October last year which includes reviews. The timetable is based on a number of factors 
including the need to plan the work to ensure we undergo extensive consultation in the 
areas agreed which puts a lot of pressure on officers both at a project management and 
senior level.  
However, officers will be reviewing this timetable in light of recent requests and an 
update report will be presented to the ET&S Committee early next year which will 
include a review of the whole of Area W including Saxon Road”. 
 

38.3 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the petition. 
 
 
 
 

20



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

(ii) Speeding on Falmer Road 
 

38.4 The Committee considered a petition referred from the meeting of Full Council held on 
18 October 2018 and signed by 119 people requesting the council to take action to 
address persistent and dangerous speeding along the stretch of Falmer Road between 
Longhill School and Wilkinson Close.  
 

38.5 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“Thank you for your petition and I am sorry to hear of your concerns.  
Vehicle speeds on Falmer Road have been monitored over the past three years and a 
monitoring site is located near to the junction with The Rotyngs, a short distance south 
of the section of Falmer Road.  
The most recent speed monitoring was carried out in June 2018. This showed that 
northbound speeds have reduced by approximately 4 mph over the past three years and 
the mean northbound speed is 26.8 mph and southbound speeds have reduced by 
approximately 4.7 mph over the same period and the mean speed is 25.6 mph.  
Given the character and layout of Falmer Road, these recorded vehicle speeds shows 
general compliance with the speed limit.   
Officers have also reviewed the recent Road Safety history of the stretch of the Falmer 
Road between Longhill School and Wilkinson Close.  
In the past three years there have been a total of three road traffic injury accidents, with 
two of these at the junction of Court Ord Road and the third occurring a short distance 
further north of that junction.   
Whilst any level of accident is a concern Officers advise that for the type of road this is 
relatively good when compared to other roads and streets throughout the City where we 
know levels are higher.   
Given the relatively low level of accident, the broad compliance with the posted speed 
limit and the reduction of vehicle speeds over the past three years and the Road Safety 
record, this does not warrant diverting funding for engineering interventions from other 
locations where we know collision rates are higher. However, I will ask officers to 
contact you with a view to further discussions if you feel this will be helpful”. 
 

38.6 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the petition. 
 
(iii) Improve Brighton & Hove’s recycling scheme 

 
38.7 The Committee considered a petition referred from the meeting of Full Council held on 

18 October 2018 and signed by 2652 people requesting the council to implement weekly 
kerbside recycling collection and start recycling a variety of plastic and food waste. 
 

38.8 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“As you may have noticed, the committee will consider a report on the matter later in this 
meeting and I hope you are able to stay to hear our consideration of that report” 
 

38.9 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the petition.  
 
 
 

21



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

40 MEMBER INVOLVEMENT 
 
(B)     WRITTEN QUESTIONS  
 
(i) Parking Surplus- Councillor Wares 
 
40.1 Councillor Wares put the following question:  

 
“At the 9th October 2019 ETS Committee I raised questions regarding the windfall 
surplus of £2.3m that was identified to be spent on certain highway elements. Officers 
advised that the answers were complex and a written response would be provided (see 
para 31.11 of the draft minutes). No such response has been provided. Whilst still 
requiring a response to the questions raised, I would be grateful if Cllr Mitchell could 
advise why the allocation of funds, the decision making process, how the monies are 
reflected in budgets and the expenditure generally are being shrouded in mystery.” 
 

40.2 The Chair provided the following reply: 
 
“Officers have now provided a briefing to Members of this Committee responding to the 
questions asked at the previous meeting on 9th October.  
This includes confirmation that, any parking surplus must be spent on eligible transport 
related expenditure, including; concessionary fares, supported bus services, capital 
investment borrowing costs, providing additional off street parking, highway or road 
improvements and environmental improvements.  
The increased surplus means that more of the council’s existing transport-related 
expenditure may now be funded from the parking income surplus. Decisions on how this 
money is allocated form part of the council’s annual budget setting process culminating 
in approval of the budget by full Council. The budget setting protocol enables all political 
groups to put forward alternative budget proposals including alternative uses of savings 
from additional income. However, using additional income to fund additional spending, 
foregoes a potential budget saving which must therefore be matched by alternative 
savings proposals to avoid increasing the council’s overall budget gap.  
If the budget related parking surplus contribution was not allocated to eligible transport-
related expenditure and allocated instead to additional, unplanned transport-related 
expenditure, this would have the same effect of increasing the General Fund ‘budget 
requirement’ requiring identification of either additional funding or savings to achieve a 
balanced budget”. 
 

40.3 Councillor Wares commented that confusion had been created by inaccurate information 
provided in the Parking Annual Report and that should be reflected correctly in future 
reports.  

 
(ii) Road and Pavement repairs- Councillor Wares 

 
40.4 Councillor Wares put the following question: 
 

“With the news that the Government has now given the Council £1.163m on top of the 
previous £0.189m and when added to the £2.3m windfall banked from parking charges 
and fines, the Council now has at least £3.652m to spend this year on repairs to 
pavements and roads; without taking account of monies already allocated in the budget. 

22



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

As a three Cllr Ward, please could Cllr. Mitchell confirm that Patcham and Hollingbury 
will receive at the very least £203,000 to fixing potholes and repairing pavements?” 
 

40.5 The Chair provided the following reply:  
 
“The Council welcomes this additional funding given the current constraints on public 
finances. In terms of where the money will be spent as you will understand there is 
unfortunately a back log of repairs and the priority locations are decided by road 
condition survey data and inspections undertaken as part of the Councils Highways 
Asset Management Plan. Often this means undertaking repairs on key routes in and 
around the city that experience high levels of traffic. Therefore, the money is not 
allocated on a ward basis but rather by need.   
I can inform you that a total of £239,500 has been spent so far this year in the northern 
and eastern areas of the city which includes the following wards: Patcham, Hollingdean 
and Stanmer, East Brighton, Hanover & Elm Grove, Moulsecoomb and Bevendean, 
Rottingdean Coastal, and Woodingdean. This sum is likely to total £500,000 by the end 
of the financial year”. 

 
(C)     LETTERS 
 
(i) RSPCA Brighton, Braypool Lane- Councillors Wares, G Theobald and C Theobald 

 
40.6 The Committee considered a Letter from the Patcham ward councillors that requested 

reaching a mutually beneficial arrangement with the RSPCA located on Braypool Lane 
regarding the supply of waste bins.  
 

40.7 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“The RSPCA is a charity that provides an excellent service nationally and we are very 
glad that they have a base in our city providing services to residents and animals in 
need within Brighton and Hove.   
The RSPCA on Braypool Lane occasionally takes stray dogs that the council’s animal 
wardens find, if they have space and if the dogs are breeds that the charity believe they 
can rehome. The councils animal warden service also take dogs from the RSPCA to put 
in our contracted kennel service where they have been dropped at the RSPCA by 
members of the public, the owners have not come forward and they do not think they 
can rehome them.   
Most Local Authorities charge charities for waste collection services at the same rates 
that they would charge a commercial organisation. However, Brighton and Hove Council 
are on of a very small number of Local Authorities in the country which will provide 
charities with a certain amount of free refuse and recycling collections.  These free 
collections of refuse and recycling must be similar to those that are provided from 
ordinary households, which is currently one 240 litre bin for refuse and one 240 litre bin 
for recycling. For larger organisations we will occasionally agree a free collection from 
360 litre bin in recognition that larger or certain types of charities my produce more 
waste.   
However, in recognition that the RSPCA is likely to produce even more waste, Brighton 
& Hove City Council decided some years ago that this is an exceptional cases and 
agreed to provide a 1100 litre bin for free collection. A bin of this size would normally 
serve 5 - 7 households per week.  

23



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

However, over several years more and more bins were requested by the RSPCA and 
these were agreed. Finally, that number reached 12 bins, which as is significantly higher 
than the normal policy of allowing one 240 litre bin free for a charity and 360 litres in 
exceptional cases. Twelve 1100 litre bins were collected each week free of charge at the 
expense to council tax payers of around £300 per week for waste disposal costs only. 
This does not include the cost of the crews or vehicles to collect the waste.  
The situation became difficult and unsustainable for the service in terms of the volume 
and scale of the free collections. As such, a visit was made by an Operations Manager 
earlier this year who after careful consideration decided that the charitable collection 
should not consist of 12 free bins. However, it was felt that we could offer an exception 
of providing two 1100 litre bins in recognition of the excellent work that the charity 
provides.   
The RSPCA was given notice of the removal of the additional 10 bins and they were 
offered the option of entering a commercial waste agreement with the Council – or 
another company - should they consider that they could not avoid producing waste to fill 
more than the two bins offered. It is the RSPCA’s legal responsibility to make 
arrangements to deal with their waste and to have a trade waste agreement with either 
the city council or another company, to demonstrate that they are disposing of their 
waste responsibly.   
The council would acknowledge that we should have managed this situation in a better 
way from the start and, while acting with the best intentions, the council caused 
expectations at the RSPCA to become unrealistic.   
We should not have allowed this situation to arise incrementally over many years and 
we do apologise for this. However the council has to balance its responsibilities to 
taxpayers against charitable organisations and the wishes of the RSPCA.  To illustrate 
this, the RSPCA has received free collections worth almost £46,800 over the past three 
years at the expense of tax payers whereas in other Local Authority Areas they would 
have had to pay this amount or more for a commercial waste collection.  
We consider that by continuing to provide two 1100 litre bins we are using our discretion 
to collect an exceptionally high level of free waste for the RSPCA in recognition of the 
excellent services that they provide and in light of the historical situation where we have 
raised their expectations.   
We are more than happy to provide more waste management information to RSPCA to 
help them more effectively deal with their waste issue or to provide a chargeable trade 
waste collection if they prefer but I am afraid that we cannot justify providing additional 
bins which would be provided at the cost to the tax payer”. 
 

40.8 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Letter.  
 
(ii) Stanmer Heights Refuse & Recycling Arrangements- Councillors Wares, G 

Theobald and C Theobald 
 

40.9 The Committee considered a Letter from the Patcham ward councillors requesting 
officers from Cityclean and Housing find a permanent solution to refuse and recycling 
problems experienced by residents at Stanmer Heights.  
 

40.10 The Chair provided the following response: 
 
“I think you were looking for a bin with a fixed lid but then those bins are larger and that 
means you have a large vehicle that can’t access the site of the bins.   

24



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

We are working with Housing to find a solution in this location and we’re exploring a 
couple of ideas.   
Housing are getting quotes for new bin stores and we are exploring the potential for a 
new type of bin system and we will update ward councillors and residents when we have 
more information on those ideas.   
Your letter also mentions fly-tipping and this is an area where we need to work with 
residents and ward councillors around reducing that.   
We do appreciate that the situation has not been satisfactory and we hope this 
combined effort will improve things for residents and for ward councillors”. 
 

40.11 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Letter. 
 
(D)      NOTICES OF MOTION  
 
(i) Grasscrete 

 
40.12 The Committee considered a Notice of Motion referred from the meeting of Full Council 

held on 18 October 2018 requesting a report be brought to a meeting of the Committee 
considering measures to reduce damage done by vehicles in roadside verges across 
the city where off road parking is limited.  
 

40.13 The Chair stated that the issue was not as straightforward as appeared as the verge had 
to be excavated and a special type of grass bed with the grasscrete installed on top and 
then seeded. Unfortunately, that meant when vehicles parked on and titled the verge, 
mud rose through the grasscrete that did not look any better and sometimes had to be 
taken away as it became a hazard.  The Chair stated that methods to improve the 
situation continued to be considered and officers had lobbied the Department for 
Transport and written to government ministers requesting the council be given powers to 
enforce pavement and verge parking similar to the powers given to London boroughs. 
Officers had also lobbied via the British Parking Association and Caroline Shepherd MP 
the Chair of the Parliamentary Transport Select Committee who would be taking the 
matter up on behalf of Local Authorities outside London.  
 

40.14 Councillor Littman noted that the Notice of Motion set out other methods of verge 
protection and requested the Committee receive a report on the matter.  
 

40.15 The Chair stated that the committee could receive a report on the matter but she was 
not sure when that could be. The Chair added that she would discuss the issue with 
officers and confirm when that was known.  
 

40.16 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the Motion. 
 

(ii) Licence and Insurance Regulations for Delivery Drivers 
 

40.17 The Committee considered a Notice of Motion referred from the meeting of Full Council 
held on 18 October 2018 requesting a report be received by the Committee detailing the 
current regulations governing the use of L-plated motorised scooters for commercial 
activities, where the police not the council is the enforcing authority and whether there 
was any further action possible to ensure commercial businesses are acting within the 
law and with corporate responsibility. 

25



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

 
40.18  The Chair stated that an information note could be prepared however; the council was 

not directly responsible for governing the use of L-plated motorised vehicles for 
commercial activities.  
 

40.19 Councillor Wares stated an informative note would be of use for Members to refer to as 
the regulations were currently unclear.  
 

40.20 RESOLVED- That the Notices of Motion be noted.  
 
41 VALLEY GARDENS PHASE 3 - (ROYAL PAVILION TO SEAFRONT) APPROVAL OF 

BUSINESS CASE 
 
41.1 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & 

Culture that requested approval of the draft Business Case for Valley Gardens Phase 3 
and permission to submit the Business Case to the Coast to Capital Local Enterprise 
Board (C2C LEP) and to negotiate and sign the Business Case Funding Agreement 
subject to the C2C LEP’s decision to approve the release the Local Growth Fund (LGF) 
allocation.  
 

41.2 Referring to page 50, Councillor Peltzer Dunn noted the uplift in land value of £4.295m 
and asked what land this referred to and what professional advice had been sought and 
when. 
 

41.3 A consultant from Mott MacDonald explained that the land value uplift was set in 
accordance with methodology from the Department for Housing. Communities & Local 
Government (DHCLG) and for this phase of the scheme, that had been set in a study 
area. This was a standardised assessment of what result changes in connectivity would 
have for land prices and in this instance that had been found to be an 8% value within 
the area of influence of this phase of the scheme. 
 

41.4 Councillor Peltzer Dunn asked what research had been conducted into the land value 
uplift of privately owned land. 
 

41.5 A consultant from Mott MacDonald clarified that the methodology was applied to all 
properties within the study area. 
 

41.6 Councillor Peltzer Dunn noted that the committee had heard from a tourist attraction 
operator that the scheme would have a detrimental impact upon their business and 
tourism across the city and asked if an assumption had been made upon the possible 
reduction in tourism across the city.  
 

41.7 A consultant from Mott MacDonald explained that a criteria had been applied to 
guidance required and mandated by national funding bodies and very detailed analysis 
of possible impact upon the local tourism economy was not something expected or 
applicable.  
 

41.8 Referring to paragraph 3.18, Councillor Peltzer Dunn noted that the Benefit Cost Ratio 
(BCR) of the scheme rated the project as low value for money.  
 

26



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

41.9 The Assistant Director- City Transport explained that this applied to the economic case 
that was one of five overall cases in total in the Business Case. The Assistant Director- 
City Transport stated that it was very hard to quantify the non-economic positives of the 
scheme such as improvements to the pedestrian and public realm, cycling facilities, 
public transport and overall public health. 
 

41.10 Councillor Peltzer Dunn noted that the committee had made a decision to agree a 
preferred option without any information detailed in the report on the impact on Madeira 
Drive in relation to possible impacts on tourism and public safety. Councillor Peltzer 
Dunn added that the committee had been informed at its previous meeting that there 
was an agreed action plan for marshalling and stewarding special events on Madeira 
Drive for 30 days a year and that no traffic modelling had been undertaken on the 
proposed changes. Councillor Peltzer Dunn asked if that remained the case.  
 

41.11 The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects confirmed that the statements made at the 
previous meeting were correct. The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects stated that 
subject to approval of the report before committee, all of comments and representations 
made in the consultation and at the meeting would be considered and any issues 
identified corrected as part of the detailed design phase with that in turn submitted to a 
future committee meeting for consideration.  
 

41.12 Councillor Littman enquired as to how time constrained the committee decision was in 
terms of the decision timetable set by the C2C LEP.  
 

41.13 The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture explained that the C2C LEP 
primary concern was that any project used its allocated funding in the period that they 
were required to spend their Local Growth Funding (LGF) within. The Executive 
Director, Economy, Environment & Culture stated the report set out the timetable for this 
specific project.  
 

41.14 Councillor Littman asked that given the time pressures of the scheme and the 
representations made to the committee by various interest groups and organisations, 
what protocols were in place to ensure the projected achieves the priorities it was 
focussed upon.  
 

41.15 The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects explained that the priorities would be 
reflected in the detailed design to be reported to the committee following assessment of 
the consultation responses and representations made to the committee. The Head of 
Transport Strategy & Projects stated that any changes would be measured and tested 
against those priorities.  
 

41.16 Councillor Wares stated that a consistency in the answers provided to the 
representations that had been made to the committee was the scheme was at a 
preliminary stage and all of the consultation responses and representations would be 
assessed. Councillor Wares asked to what extent the project was capable of being 
altered or amended and whether that could include minor issues or whether that could 
be fundamental shifts such as the proposed route of public transport or reinstatement of 
the Aquarium Roundabout in the design.  
 

27



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

41.17 The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects clarified that the responses to the 
consultation and various representations still had to be collated and assessed and 
therefore, the level of potential change could not yet be pre-empted.  
 

41.18 The Chair stated that the committee had reached a decision to agree a preferred option 
and undertake public consultation on that option and all the information received would 
be analysed. 
 

41.19 Councillor Wares stated that he did not feel he had received an answer to his question 
and asked for clarification on whether the scheme could be fundamentally changed or 
not. Councillor Wares noted that the proposed Business Case made a multitude of 
references to Option 1 and with the BCR already very narrow, he felt there was minimal 
scope for change and the potential for the whole Business Case to fail if the BCR fell 
below the acceptable level.  
 

41.20 The Chair stated that any the impact of any revisions was very difficult to pre-judge and 
could lead to positive or negative result for the BCR.  
 

41.21 The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture stated that agreement of the 
Business Case would not prevent further design change. The Executive Director, 
Economy, Environment & Culture added that the should any significant changes be 
required to the scheme following consideration of the consultation responses, that would 
be reported to the C2C LEP in an open way and was a situation that had occurred in the 
past on previous projects.  
 

41.22 The Assistant Director- City Transport added that the creation of the detailed design 
would look at fundamental aspects of the scheme such as locations of bus stops and 
length of priority lanes not just minor tweaks. The Assistant Director- City Transport 
stated that changes could have an impact upon the BCR however, the BCR, was one 
element of five elements in the Business Case.  
 

41.23 Councillor Miller queried the accuracy of the predictions of the BCR and how the 
conclusions had been reached. Specifically, Councillor Miller queried how the prediction 
of a casualty reduction rate of 44% had been reached. Furthermore, Councillor Miller 
noted that the only disbenefit identified as detailed on page 50 of the agenda was 
journey time and queried why the potential drop in visitor number and tourism had not 
been included. In addition, an appendix A to the Business Case submission was 
detailed on page 90 of the agenda but did not appear to have been provided.  
 

41.24 The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects explained that there had been an oversight 
in providing appendix A of the Business Case which was a technical note produced by 
Mott MacDonald to explain the journey time calculations and this would be circulated 
subsequent to the meeting.  
 

41.25 In relation to the questions raised by Councillor Miller, a consultant from Mott 
MacDonald replied that the project assessment and submission was to the standardised 
and accepted government methodology for providing funding through the LEP. A 
proportional approach had been undertaken for the project that didn’t necessarily 
capture every benefit and disbenefit as some would be difficult to quantify however, as 
much information had been included as possible. Accident and casualty rates had been 

28



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

undertaken using a software program that used a modelled analysis to predict what 
impact changes would have and was an established and robust analysis for the type of 
scheme. The analysis of disbenefits had been arrived at using a software package that 
had been refined over a sixty year period that simulated vehicle movements. The 
prescribed guidance did not request or require analysis of issues that were uncertain or 
unknown and therefore, speculation upon the potential impact upon tourism and 
business had not been included.  
 

41.26 Councillor Peltzer Dunn commented that the previous meeting of the committee had 
agreed to receive a report to its January meeting detailing the outcome of the 
consultation however; this report stated that the committee would be requested to 
receive the consultation results, updated design and agree a finalised design to that 
meeting which was not what Members had agreed.  
 

41.27 The Chair stated that the report that would be received to the January committee would 
be robust and detail and reflect all of the main themes of the consultation and list the 
suggestions and concerns raised through that process. The Chair stated that Members 
would expect to see in that report changes to the scheme where that was possible, 
feasible and logical to do so. The Chair explained that she did not see any difference in 
what was proposed in the report with what had been agreed at previous meeting and 
reminded the committee that the report requested approval of the Business Case and 
was not approval of the final, detailed design.  
 

41.28 Councillor Wares observed that every report previously received by the committee had 
set the value of the project at £7.25m yet page 94 of this report set out an increase to 
that cost of £7.84m that appeared to indicate an overspend before Phase 3 had been 
agreed. Councillor Wares stated that he been informed that the project had a budget 
variance of plus or minus 20% that could bring the cost down to below £7.25m or 
increase it to £9.4m. In addition, Councillor Wares noted that page 95 or the report 
stated that the council had committed £1.48m however; he was unaware of any decision 
made to that end. Councillor Wares expressed his concern for the discrepancies in the 
figures provided and the potential assurances being given to C2C LEP regarding its 
financial commitments and asked for clarification. 
 

41.29 The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects confirmed that the figure provided on page 
95 of the agenda was incorrect and the Business Case would be amended ahead of 
submission to reflect the accurate budget figure of £7.25m based upon £6m of LGF 
funding and £1.25m contribution from or through the council.  
 

41.30 Referring to page 91 of the agenda and the businesses positively impacted, Councillor 
Wares queried why the Palace Pier had been included in that list when they had made 
representation earlier in the meeting to speak against elements of the scheme.  
 

41.31 The Chair stated that the observation was based upon modelling of the scheme that 
indicated that the introduction of a signalised junction would aid pedestrian access to the 
Palace Pier.  
 

41.32 Councillor Wares asked if page 91 and paragraph 3.8 of the Business Case would need 
to be amended in light of the fact the Palace Pier did not support the scheme as it was 
currently proposed.  

29



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

41.33 A consultant from Mott MacDonald replied that the wording was based upon their 
professional experience as one of the largest national providers of such schemes and 
set out in the guidance provided by the Department for Transport (DfT). Their 
professional experience and the evidence available indicated that in the large majority of 
instances, schemes that promoted active frontages and increased footfall tended to lead 
to benefits to local businesses. 
 

41.34 Referring to page 65 and the list of benefits and disbenefits, Councillor Wares whether 
the land value uplift figure reflected the comments made by businesses located in the 
Old Steine area.  
 

41.35 The Chair stated the scheme was based upon a technical assessment and modelling 
and not perceptions of a scheme that was not yet finalised.  
 

41.36 Councillor Wares replied that he fully understood however; the committee had to 
balance that technical assessment against the representations made that largely went 
against the findings of that assessment.  
 

41.37 The Chair replied that the issue was precisely why central government was reviewing its 
technical requirements for regeneration schemes such as this as it did not capture 
qualitative impacts. The Chair stated that until that review was completed, there was no 
other choice than to model the project as a highways scheme.  
 

41.38 The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture clarified that the report the 
committee were considering was the draft Business Case based upon the outline design 
agreed as was required by the C2C LEP. On that basis, a distinction should be made 
between that proposal and the representations made to the committee earlier in the 
meeting that would form part of the preliminary design consultation process with the 
detailed design submitted to a future meeting for discussion.  
 

41.39 Councillor Wares noted his concern with conducting a consultation and preparing a 
Business Case simultaneously. Councillor Wares noted several omissions to the report 
including: the benefits or disbenefits to the tourism sector in relation to the Knowledge 
Intensive Business Services (KIBS) and the impact on local businesses of increased 
journey times, specifically the taxi trade. Councillor Wares stated his view that the 
project Business Case was very sensitive on the BCR and it was important to get right. 
 

41.40 A consultant from Mott MacDonald clarified that the modelling for KIBS was consistent 
with the first two phases of the scheme that was accepted by C2C LEP for investment. It 
was explained that successful transport schemes were one the key factors leading to 
increased investment in a local economy and whilst there were limitations in applying 
this on a scheme by scheme basis; it was a common approach in similar schemes 
nationally. In relation to visitor economy impacts, a consultant from Mott MacDonald 
explained that whilst the importance of tourism to Brighton was very well understood, 
nationally, it had been found very difficult to disaggregate visitor economy impacts from 
the wider economic benefits. Furthermore, it had been found that separation of visitor 
economy impacts had led to ‘double counting’ of the economic impact of schemes. In 
relation to the question raised in relation to journey times, a consultant from Mott 
MacDonald explained that the modelling system used only had certain parameters and 
did not allow very specific testing such as that.  

30



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

 
41.41 Councillor Wares noted that there had been extensive discussion at the previous 

meeting on the impact upon traffic at Dukes Mound the scheme and the proposed 
Waterfront development would have. Councillor Wares noted that whilst there were 
several references in the report to both, they were not currently in the scope of the 
project. Councillor Wares stated that given there were approximately 50 coaches parked 
on Madeira Drive during the winter months and 150 coaches parked during the summer 
months, whether it would have been reasonable to include this area in the scheme.  
 

41.42 The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects explained that Dukes Mound and Madeira 
Drive had not been included in the original scope of the project. Subsequent to an 
options appraisal and further work, it had become clear that to maximise the benefits of 
the scheme, peripheral changes would be considered and taken into account and 
transport officers were in direct liaison with colleagues to ensure any future impacts 
were captured and that would be reported to the committee as part as the request to 
approve the detailed design.  
 

41.43 Councillor Wares stated that he made several requests for a breakdown of the accident 
reduction benefit, specifically relating to pedestrian accidents at the Aquarium 
Roundabout compared to the rest of Phase 3 as well as journey time data but had not 
received a response.  
 

41.44 The Chair stated that the information could be provided to Councillor Wares however; it 
should be noted that the scheme was seeking to reduce accidents and injury to all users 
including cyclists, drivers as well as pedestrians.  
 

41.45 Councillor Miller noted that there had been several corrections made to the financial 
figures on page 94 of the agenda and asked what impact that would have upon the BCR 
as that was now based on incorrect figures.  
 

41.46 The Head of Transport Strategy & Projects explained that a budget figure of £7.25m was 
provisionally available to deliver the project. Based on further work undertaken since the 
committee met in October, scheme delivery as expected to be £7.84m. That figure was 
likely to fluctuate as the scheme progressed to its final design. A consultant from Mott 
MacDonald clarified that the Business Case had been developed to a construction cost 
of £7.84m.  
 

41.47 On behalf of the Conservative Group, Councillor Wares moved the following motion to 
amend recommendations 2.1 and 2.2 and add 2.3 as shown below in bold italics and 
where struck though: 
 
2.1  That the Committee notes approves the draft Business Case for Valley Gardens 

Phase 3, as attached at Appendix 2. 
 

2.2  That the Committee requests officers to review a new option (option 3a) 
based on option 3 as detailed in Item 29 on the ETS Committee agenda 
dated 9th October 2018 taking account of public, trade and business 
representations and other than minor alterations and improvements to the 
aquarium roundabout and surrounding public realm, retains the aquarium 

31



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

roundabout as existing that would also remove the changes to Maderia 
Drive. grants delegated authority to the Executive Director for 
Economy, Environment & Culture to:- 

 
a)     finalise and submit the Business Case for Valley Gardens Phase 3 to the 

Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership Board; and 
 
b)     negotiate and sign the Business Case Funding Agreement, subject to the 

Local Enterprise Partnership Board’s decision to approve the release of the 
Local Growth Fund allocation. 

 
2.3 That officers develop the new option 3a and brings to a future ETS 

Committee the revised option 3a as requested in 2.2 and taking account of 
representations and further public consultation together with an amended 
Business Case to reflect the new option 3a for consideration. 

 
41.48 Introducing the motion, Councillor Wares stated that he believed that the preferred 

Option 1 would be found not to be viable as more and more stakeholders and residents 
expressed their view that the Option would not work for them. Councillor Wares stated 
that he had no confidence that there would be seismic change to the proposal and 
therefore, was unlikely to be agreed. On that basis, Councillor Wares believed that 
Phase 3 should be halted and a revision to the original Option 3 be started. Councillor 
Wares explained that would include running public transport down the west side of the 
Pavilion with general traffic on the eastern side of Valley Gardens, abandoning the 
removal of the Aquarium Roundabout save for minor tweaks, abandoning the 
conversion of Madeira Drive to a one way street with the process on developing and 
consulting on that Option begun immediately and run in parallel to the preparation of a 
new Business Case.  
 

41.49 Councillor Miller formally seconded the motion.  
 

41.50 Councillor Peltzer Dunn expressed his support for the motion highlighting that 180,000 
vehicles per year used Madeira Drive and the proposal for a one way system would 
likely have a catastrophic impact. Councillor Peltzer Dunn added that he believed that a 
new proposal that was more specific to the city’s needs was required.  
 

41.51 Councillor Miller stated that he fully supported the motion on the basis that he was 
sceptical of the replacement of the Aquarium Roundabout with a T-Junction and 
because of his doubts regarding the traffic modelling. Councillor Miller added that there 
appeared to be some doubt and confusion in relation to the budget figures used, that the 
benefits and disbenefits of the scheme were insufficient and a seven minute increase in 
journey time was unacceptable.  
 

41.52 The Chair then put the motion to the vote. At the request of Councillor Wares, the Chair 
agreed to a recorded vote with the following outcome: 
 
Councillor Atkinson: Against 
Councillor Brown: For 
Councillor Greenbaum: Against 
Councillor Horan: For 

32



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

Councillor Littman: Against 
Councillor Miller: For 
Councillor Mitchell: Against 
Councillor Peltzer Dunn: For 
Councillor Robins: Against 
Councillor Wares: For 
 
Total: 
For: 4 
Against: 6 
Abstentions: 0 
 

41.53 Therefore, the motion failed.  
 

41.54 The Chair then put the recommendations to the vote. At the request of Councillor 
Wares, the Chair agreed to a recorded vote with the following outcome: 
 
Councillor Atkinson: For 
Councillor Brown: Against 
Councillor Greenbaum: For 
Councillor Horan: For 
Councillor Littman: For 
Councillor Miller: Against 
Councillor Mitchell: For 
Councillor Peltzer Dunn: Against 
Councillor Robins: For 
Councillor Wares: Against 
 
Total: 
For: 6 
Against: 4 
Abstentions: 0 
 

41.55 Therefore, the report recommendations were agreed.  
 

41.56 RESOLVED-  
 

1) That the Committee approves the draft Business Case for Valley Gardens Phase 3, as 
attached at Appendix 2.   
 

2) That the Committee grants delegated authority to the Executive Director for Economy, 
Environment & Culture to:- 
 
a) finalise and submit the Business Case for Valley Gardens Phase 3 to the Coast to 

Capital Local Enterprise Partnership Board; and 
 

b) negotiate and sign the Business Case Funding Agreement, subject to the Local 
Enterprise Partnership Board’s decision to approve the release of the Local Growth 
Fund allocation.   

 

33



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

The meeting was adjourned at 7.15pm and reconvened at 7.25pm 
 
42 PARKING SCHEME UPDATE REPORT 
 
42.1 RESOLVED-  

 
1) That the Committee agrees to advertise a Traffic Regulation Order to propose that Zone 

U (St Luke’s area) becomes integrated in the Zone C (Queens park area) resident 
parking scheme. 
 

2) That the Committee approves the initial consultation areas as shown in Appendix B 
(Surrenden area) and Appendix C (South Portslade area). 
 

3) That the Committee agrees to review the parking scheme priority timetable in light of all 
recent requests and to bring an update report to this Committee in 2019.  

 
43 HOVE PARK RESIDENT PARKING SCHEME CONSULTATION 
 
43.1 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & 

Culture that set out the results of the recent parking scheme consultation in the Hove 
Park area and requested approval to progress to the final design stage with a Traffic 
Order advertised to allow for further comment.  
 

43.2 Referring to the deputation received by the committee earlier in the meeting, Councillor 
Brown stated that whilst she was very supportive of local businesses, the need for 
parking restrictions had arisen because of the City Park development. Councillor Brown 
noted that many of the roads in Hove Park ward were narrow and with cars often parked 
on both sides of the road, there was regularly insufficient space for emergency vehicles 
on the road and for wheelchairs and pushchairs on the pavement.  Referring to 
paragraph 5.8, Councillor Brown expressed concern regarding the assertion that 
exclusive pay and display parking could be investigated if the scheme was underutilised 
as many of the Hove Park residents would oppose such a proposal. Councillor Brown 
noted that residents of Dyke Close had realised that they were the only close adjoining 
Dyke Road Avenue not to be included in the scheme and whilst they had initially 
rejected inclusion in a scheme, every resident had subsequently requested they be 
included. Councillor Brown asked if the requested could be given consideration as the 
Dyke Close was very small and the Traffic Order had not yet been advertised. 
 

43.3 The Head of Parking Services explained that as the request was very recent, it was 
uncertain whether it would be possible to fit parking bays into Dyke Close or whether an 
alternative option would be needed. The Head of Parking Services stated that due to the 
uncertainty, officers could meet with ward councillors and residents to discuss how to 
move the matter forward. 
 

43.4 RESOLVED-  
 

1) That the Committee approves that a new resident parking scheme (Light Touch Monday 
– Friday 9-10am & 1-2 pm) be considered within the Hove Park area (Appendix A) and 
that this proposal be progressed to the final design with the Traffic Order advertised to 

34



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

allow for further comment. All comments will be reported back to a further Environment, 
Transport & Sustainability Committee meeting. 

 
44 HANGLETON SAFER ROUTES TO SCHOOL SCHEME 
 
44.1 RESOLVED-  

 
1) That the Committee notes the outcome of the recent public consultation in Hangleton 

and Mile Oak regarding proposals to improve and encourage walking and cycling to 
school sites on Hangleton Way; 
 

2) That the Committee agrees to the implementation of the measures amended as a result 
of the consultation feedback and detailed costings to be funded by the Local Transport 
Plan (LTP) budgets; 
 

3) That the Committee notes the requirements of the Section 106 Agreement for the West 
Blatchington Primary School site and approves the implementation of the Highway 
measures within that Agreement within allocated sums;  
 

4) That the Committee agrees to the preparation and publication of notices for the new and 
amended Traffic Regulation Orders associated with the implementation of both the 
Local Transport Plan funded measures and the Section 106 funded measures, noting 
that any objections will be reported to this Committee. 

 
45 IMPROVE BRIGHTON & HOVE'S RECYCLING SCHEME PETITION 
 
45.1 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & 

Culture as requested by Full Council at its meeting on 18 October 2018 in response to a 
petition received for debate. 
 

45.2 Councillor Littman noted that Councillor Deane had the previous year put a question to 
Full Council requesting that notices be placed on communal bins directing people to 
organisations such as Magpie that took a greater variety of plastics and other 
recyclables than the council and asked if there were any plans to implement such a 
scheme. Councillor Littman noted that efforts to reduce use of single-use plastics in 
council buildings had so far had limited success. Furthermore, Councillor Littman noted 
that a Motion had been passed at the Full Council meeting of 19 April 2018 that 
requested a report be presented to the Tourism, Development & Culture Committee to 
consider asking event organisers to avoid use of single-use plastics and asked whether 
this was possible or if a condition could be placed on the licence requiring events to be 
single-use plastic free. Councillor Littman commented that weekly recycling collections 
had led to an upturn in recycling rates across the country and he hoped that could be 
pursued.  
 

45.3 The Assistant Director, City Environmental Management replied that notices on 
communal bins was something that could be looked at as part of the recycling education 
campaign with weekly recycling and fortnightly refuse collections an matter that would 
be kept under consideration. The Executive Director, Economy, Environment & Culture 
added that Policy, Resources & Growth Committee had received two reports on single-
use plastics with the most recent agreeing a policy for the council. Furthermore, an 

35



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

Events Strategy that would include an events checklist would be consulted upon and 
considered by the Tourism, Development & Culture Committee at a future meeting. 
 

45.4 Councillor Atkinson stated that given the lack of market demand for recycling plastics, a 
suitable approach would be for councils to lobby manufacturers and supermarkets for a 
reduction in plastic packaging. Councillor Atkinson asked if the recycling project was 
ongoing or time-limited and whether committee would receive regular updates.  
 

45.5 The Assistant Director, City Environmental Management answered that the recycling 
project would be ongoing as the area was one of constant change and development.  
 

45.6 Councillor Miller noted that there was potential in improving recycling rates to create 
capacity at Newhaven Incinerator as well as income generation for using the Incinerator 
to process food waste that in turn, could potentially boost the proposed Business Case.  
 

45.7 The Assistant Director, City Environmental Management replied that revenue 
opportunities would be a matter given consideration particularly as many other 
authorities currently exported waste and the potential for changes to the export market 
in the near future under the Brexit process.  
 

45.8 Councillor Wares commended officers for the level of detail provided in the report given 
the short deadline they were given to do so. Councillor Wares stated that the Cityclean 
service clearly needed to be modernised and stabilise its core functions. On that basis, 
Councillor Wares hoped that the Green Group motion was intended to request high level 
figures rather than a detailed costed report.  
 

45.9 On behalf of the Green Group, Councillor Wares moved a motion  to add a 
recommendation 2.7 as shown in bold italics below: 
 
2.7 That the Committee agrees that preliminary costing for increasing the range 

of plastics the Council collects, and a preliminary costing for the setting up 
of a food waste collection trial, will be provided at the meeting of 
Environment, Transport, and Sustainability Committee to be held on January 
22nd 2019. 

 
45.10 Introducing the amendment, Councillor Littman stated that it had been explained in the 

previous reports and the one before committee that officers were working hard to 
improve the waste and recycling service and it would be counterproductive to add to that 
workload. Councillor Littman stated that the motion was intended to provide ball park 
figures ahead of the Budget Council process and he also hoped that it would push 
Veolia to provide the figures it had already given to one of the city’s three MP’s.   
 

45.11 Councillor Greenbaum formally seconded the motion.  
 

45.12 The Chair then put the motion to the vote that passed. 
 

45.13 The Chair then put the recommendations as amended to the vote that passed. 
 
 
 

36



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

45.14 RESOLVED-  
 

That the Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee notes that: 
 
1) Work on an Increasing Recycling Project and education campaign is included in officers’ 

current work programmes and will be launched early in 2019. 
 
2) The work already underway to reduce food waste and an initial exploration of a food 

waste collection service is under discussion with Veolia with details to be worked on 
within the City Environment Modernisation (CEM) Programme as part of the Increasing 
Recycling Project. 

 
3) There is currently no, or very limited, markets for the recycling of pots, tubs and trays 

(PTTs) and therefore it is unlikely that a business case can be made for the investment 
required in collection and sorting services. However, the situation will be closely 
monitored for market changes.  

 
4) A ‘service guarantee’ will be introduced at the end of the Increasing Recycling Project 

when the full extent and means by which materials can be recycled have been explored 
taking into account the government’s forthcoming waste strategy proposals. 

 
5) The council’s events team has a sustainable events policy and works with event 

organisers to reduce single-use plastics (SUPs) at events. The progress made is 
illustrated by a case study of the plastics reduction at the Brighton Marathon, which has 
already been presented to the Tourism, Development & Culture Committee as part of a 
report on the events programme and further updates are planned. 

 
6) An action plan setting out how the council aims to achieve the waste directive of 

increasing recycling rates to 50% will be presented to the committee in January 2019 as 
part of the CEM update report. 

 
7) That the Committee agrees that preliminary costing for increasing the range of plastics 

the Council collects, and a preliminary costing for the setting up of a food waste 
collection trial, will be provided at the meeting of Environment, Transport, and 
Sustainability Committee to be held on January 22nd 2019. 

 
46 ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT POLICY 
 
46.1 The Committee consider a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & 

Culture that sought approval for an Environmental Enforcement Framework designed to 
address anti-social and illegal behaviour to improve the environment and minimise 
waste clean-up and disposal costs within Brighton & Hove.  
 

46.2 Councillor Atkinson stated his support to bring the service in-house as it would allow for 
much closer control and foster a joined up approach. Councillor Atkinson added that the 
framework would provide much better guidance than the existing agreement and 
discretionary powers would also be beneficial. Councillor Atkinson noted that there was 
regular fly-tipping in Chalky Road and he hoped the matter could be dealt with.  
 

37



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

46.3 Councillor Wares stated that it would be helpful to know which environmental projects 
would be lost due to the drop in surplus income currently received under the existing 
contract. Furthermore, Councillor Wares enquired as to the risk that the undesirable 
elements of the current contract would need to be continued if the service was brought 
in-house in order to maintain income.  
 

46.4 The Assistant Director, City Environmental Management replied that there were 
additional options for issuing fines included within the Framework that had not before 
such as overflowing commercial bins. The Assistant Director, City Environmental 
Management added that there would also be the creation of a deterrent effect that was 
expected to realise further service savings in the long-term. The Assistant Director, City 
Environmental Management supplemented that that income would be ring-fenced for 
environmental initiatives and whilst some of that would be required to set up the 
enforcement service, it was expected that some of the current surplus could be carried 
over to the next financial year to continue some of the existing projects. The Assistant 
Director, City Environmental Management stated that some initiatives could be 
continued using alternative income generating services to fund them such as the textiles 
recycling service.  
 

46.5 Councillor Wares replied that the criticism of the current outsourced contract was that it 
was overly revenue driven and it appeared that the in-house service would continue the 
same style of operation to maintain income levels.  
 

46.6 The Assistant Director, City Environmental Management stated that an in-house service 
would income based however, it would enable an opportunity to work in a different way 
to secure that income.  
 

46.7 Councillor Littman stated that he welcomed the report and decision to bring the service 
in-house as the current contract was not fit for purpose and as a corporate body, the 
council would be better and more ethical.  
 

46.8 Councillor Miller queried whether the level of fines for some offences such as for fly-
tipping was high enough. Referring to page 210 of the agenda, Councillor Miller 
observed that there appeared to be a contradiction in that and the statement made at 
paragraph 3.24 in relation to income generation. Councillor Miller also asked how the 
council would ensure that it received its percentage of fines issued from the contractor 
up to the end of the contract.  
 

46.9 The Assistant Director, City Environmental Management explained that the contractor 
was legally obliged by the terms of the contract to pay the council its share of any 
income received from the issuing of fines. In relation to the level of fines issued, the 
Assistant Director, City Environmental Management explained that it was felt that these 
were set at an appropriate level however, they could be kept under review as part of the 
annual budget process. In relation to the financial figures provided and the apparent 
contraction, the two figures were different in that one did not include the cost of 
operating the service.  
 

46.10 Councillor Peltzer Dunn stated that the fine level for fly-posting was perhaps too low and 
disproportionate to the offence and he hoped it could be reviewed in the future.  
 

38



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

46.11 On behalf of the Conservative Group, Councillor Wares moved a motion to amend 
recommendations 2.1, 2.4, 2.5 and delete recommendations 2.2 and 2.3 as shown 
below in bold italics and where struck though below: 
 
2.1 That the Committee agrees to invite expressions of interest from potential 

service providers based on the Environmental Enforcement Framework and 
reports back to a future ETS Committee the results providing 
recommendations on the best way to deliver the Environmental 
Enforcement Framework including the option for that the environmental 
enforcement service to will be delivered in house. from the end of the current 
contract period. 

 
2.2  That the Committee notes that the full and final cost of bringing the service in 

house cannot be determined until due diligence has been completed under the 
Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (‘TUPE’) 
and notes that if the costs significantly exceeds the projections outlined in this 
report, a further report will be brought back to committee. 

 
2.3  That the Committee notes that the council’s current environmental enforcement 

contract may need to be extended for a period of up to six months to allow time 
for the TUPE process and for new ICT systems to be put in place 

 
2.4  That the Committee grants delegated authority to the Executive Director 

Economy, Environment & Culture to extend the existing contract if required, and 
negotiate the terms of that extension. and determine the date of the service 
transfer to the council provided that this date shall not be any later than the 1 
September 2019.  

 
2.5  That the Committee approves the Environmental Enforcement Framework in 

principle subject to paragraphs 2.1. which sets out how the service will be 
delivered from the commencement of the new in house service. 

 
46.12 Introducing the motion, Councillor Wares stated that the proposal to bring the service in-

house was a hasty reaction to the existing contract failing. Councillor Wares stated that 
the option to bring the service in-house was presented as the only viable option 
however, that position was unknown without inviting expressions of interest from the 
private sector on the proposed framework. Councillor Wares stated that he had 
conducted his own research and found a number of companies that conducted waste 
enforcement and the council had a duty to explore that option before bringing the 
service in-house.  
 

46.13 Councillor Peltzer Dunn formally seconded the motion. 
 

46.14 Councillor Littman noted that the council had received a multitude of complaints on the 
operational conduct of the existing contractor. Councillor Littman added that there was 
consensus amongst the committee that the framework was very good and he saw no 
reason why that should be shared with private companies. An in-house operation would 
ensure that the council would retain any income to re-invest into its services rather than 
make profit as a contractor would seek to do.  
 

39



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

46.15 Councillor Peltzer Dunn stated that whilst he had no preference as to how the service 
was operated, he believed the council had a duty for due diligence and should invite 
expressions of interest.  
 

46.16 The Chair then put the motion to the vote which failed. 
 

46.17 The Chair then put the recommendations to the vote which passed. 
 

46.18 RESOLVED-  
 

1) That the Committee agrees that the environmental enforcement service will be delivered 
in house from the end of the current contract period. 
 

2) That the Committee notes that the full and final cost of bringing the service in house 
cannot be determined until due diligence has been completed under the Transfer of 
Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (‘TUPE’) and notes that if 
the costs significantly exceeds the projections outlined in this report, a further report will 
be brought back to committee. 
 

3) That the Committee notes that the  council’s current environmental enforcement contract 
may need to be extended for a period of up to six months to allow time for the TUPE 
process and for new ICT systems to be put in place.  
 

4) That the Committee grants delegated authority to the Executive Director Economy, 
Environment & Culture to extend the existing contract if required, negotiate the terms of 
that extension and determine the date of the service transfer to the council provided that 
this date shall not be any later than the 1 September 2019.  
 

5) That the Committee approves the Environmental Enforcement Framework which sets 
out how the service will be delivered from the commencement of the new in house 
service.  
 

6) That the Committee notes that future changes to the Environmental Enforcement 
Framework will be brought back to Committee for approval. 

 
47 GRAFFITI STRATEGY 
 
47.1 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & 

Culture that proposed a Graffiti Reduction Strategy that set out how the council and 
partner agencies could work together to reduce criminal damage caused by graffiti.  
 

47.2 Councillor Peltzer Dunn stated that it may be unfair to fine property owners as they were 
the victims of graffiti rather than the offenders and may not have the financial means to 
do so. Furthermore, Councillor Peltzer Dunn noted that graffiti east of Hove Lagoon had 
been reported three times over 68 days and therefore, the council was not adhering to 
its own policy on removal.  
 

47.3 The Head of Operations- Cityclean explained the council only had duty for removal of 
graffiti from its own buildings. 
 

40



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

47.4 Councillor Miller stated that he believed that interpretation and enforcement of what was 
graffiti and what was graffiti art may be difficult given the numerous examples of the 
latter in the city. Councillor Miller added the strategy needed some tweaking in relation 
to costs and that he wholly disagreed with punishing the victims of graffiti with the cost of 
removal. 
 

47.5 The Chair clarified that the proposals were intended to give the council greater powers 
to take action against large businesses that refused to remove graffiti from their 
buildings rather than increase enforcement action against individual property owners. 
 

47.6 The Assistant Director, City Environmental Management explained that enforcement 
would be proportionate to circumstance and the Strategy was intended as an outline to 
guide the consultation and the detail of the action plan and that would be presented to a 
future meeting of the committee.  
 

47.7 Councillor Wares stated that the Strategy was more of a discussion paper and the 
consultation had not yet started and therefore, proposed that recommendation 2.1 be 
changed to read: “that the committee notes the draft Graffiti Reduction Strategy attached 
at Appendix 1”. Councillor Wares added that he had concern that the council could take 
enforcement action against people who themselves were the victims of crime.  
 

47.8 The Chair stated that she was not prepared to accept the proposal as the Strategy was 
a good one in its current form. The Chair added that it was important to send a strong 
message that the council intended to crack down on graffiti and clear up the city. The 
Chair noted that London Boroughs already had graffiti enforcement powers that had 
were not provided to authorities outside London and therefore, it was necessary to take 
an alternative route.  The Chair stated that sensitive work would be undertaken to 
support and develop existing community work alongside giving the council greater 
powers to enforce graffiti removal from commercial premises. The Chair reminded 
Members that the fuller action plan would be presented to the committee for approval.  
 

47.9 RESOLVED-  
 

1) That the committee approve the Graffiti Reduction Strategy attached at Appendix 1.  
 

2) That the Environment, Transport and Sustainability (ETS) committee agree to the 
initiation of a consultation with businesses, statutory undertakers and private property 
owners in relation to a new enforcement process requiring property owners to remove 
graffiti within an agreed timeframe and that a process for enforcement of graffiti removal 
is brought back to committee for approval.   
 

3) That the committee agree to officers exploring the feasibility of City Environment 
providing a chargeable graffiti removal service to owners of private and commercial 
buildings that will be brought back to committee for approval. 

 
48 RIGHTS OF WAY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
48.1 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, Economy, Environment & 

Culture that requested approval of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 
following public consultation.  

41



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 27 NOVEMBER 
2018 

 
48.2 Councillor Littman welcomed the report and the significant increase in public Rights of 

Way adding that opening spaces were important for residents and visitors. Councillor 
Littman noted that the new plan had support from across the city and he hoped efforts 
could be made to ensure appropriate levels of funding were available.  
 

48.3 RESOLVED- That the Committee note the results of the public consultation and adopt 
the Rights of Way Improvement Plan. 

 
49 ITEMS REFERRED FOR FULL COUNCIL 
 
49.1 No items were referred to Full Council for information.  
 

 
The meeting concluded at 9.15pm 

 
 

42



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 54(a) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

Subject: Petitions 

Date of Meeting: 22 January 2018 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  John Peel Tel: 01273 291058 

 E-mail: john.peel@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: Various  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 
 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 To receive any petitions submitted directly to Democratic Services or any e-
Petition submitted via the council’s website. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.2 That the Committee responds to the  petition either by noting it or writing to 
the petition organiser setting out the Council’s views, or where it is considered 
more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter which may give 
consideration to a range of options, including the following: 

 

 taking the action requested in the petition 
 considering the petition at a council meeting 
 holding an inquiry into the matter 
 undertaking research into the matter 
 holding a public meeting 
 holding a consultation 
 holding a meeting with petitioners 
 calling a referendum 

 
 

3. PETITIONS 
 

3. (i) Traffic calming measures for Newtown Road- Jocelin Gale 
 

To receive the following petition signed by 117 people: 
 
“We the undersigned petition Brighton & Hove Council to put speed 
bumps in at Newtown Road, Hove. Newtown Road is a lovely, quiet, 
family-oriented street, yet traffic comes down it far too fast as a cut 
through from Old Shoreham Road. Drivers do not respect the 20mph 
speed limit. 
There have been a number of accidents on this road, and the bollards on 
the crossing with Fonthill Road are very often damaged. 
  

43



 When the new developments across Fonthill Road are occupied through 
traffic will inevitably increase dramatically” 

44



ENIRONMENT TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 56 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Fees and Charges 2019-20 

Date of Meeting: 22 January 2019 

Report of: Executive Director for Neighbourhoods, 
Communities & Housing, Executive Director, 
Economy, Environment & Culture, Executive Lead 
Officer - Strategy Governance & Law  

Contact Officer: Name: Various Tel: Various 

 Email: Various 

Ward(s) affected: (All Wards); 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed 2019/20 fees and charges 

for the service areas covered by the Environment, Transport and Sustainability 
Committee, including Bereavement Services, in accordance with corporate 
regulations and policy. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Committee approves the proposed fees and charges for 2019/20 as set 

out within the report and its appendices.  
 

2.2 That Committee delegates authority to the Executive Director of Economy, 
Environment & Culture (in relation to paragraphs 3.4-3.11 and 3.16-3.23) and to 
the Executive Director of Neighbourhoods, Communities & Housing (in relation to 
paragraphs 3.12-3.15) to increase any charges for fees as notified and set by 
central Government during the year. 
 
Note: If the above recommendations are not agreed, or if the committee wishes 
to amend the recommendations, then the item will need to be referred to the 
Policy, Resources & Growth Committee meeting on 14th February 2019 to be 
considered as part of the overall budget proposals. This is because the budget 
proposals are developed on the assumption that fees and charges are agreed as 
recommended and any failure to agree, or a proposal to agree different fees and 
charges, will have an impact on the overall budget proposals, which means it 
needs to be dealt with by Policy, Resources & Growth Committee as per the 
requirements of the constitution. This does not fetter the committee’s ability to 
make recommendations to Policy, Resources & Growth Committee. 

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The council’s Corporate Fees and Charges Policy requires that all fees and 

charges are reviewed at least annually and should normally be increased by 

45



either: the standard rate of inflation, statutory increases, or actual increases in 
the costs of providing the service.  
 

3.2 The 4 Year Resources and Integrated Service & Financial Planning Update 
report approved at Policy and Resources Committee in July 2018 specified the 
assumption of a standard inflation increase to fees and charges of 2.0% with the 
exception of parking Penalty Charge Notices. The council’s Standard Financial 
Procedures states that service committees shall receive a report from Executive 
Directors on fees and charges variations above or below the corporately applied 
rate of inflation 
 

3.3 It is not always possible when amending fees and charges to increase by the 
exact inflation figure due to rounding. Therefore some fees and charges are 
rounded for ease of payment and administration. 
 
City Transport - Highways (Appendix 1) 
 
Highways 
 

3.4 It is proposed to increase the non-statutory fees and charges in line with the 
corporate rate of inflation, with the exception of the manual renewal of 
Scaffolding licence for 8 weeks under 12m which is being increased by 
approximately 6% to cover the extra administration costs involved with manually 
renewing the licence. This fee remains competitive. Where percentage increases 
are under or over 2% this is to ensure that increases can be made in whole 
pounds. 
 

3.5 A new set of fees have been introduced to clarify arrangements for section 278 
and 38 agreements. These permit developers to make changes to the highway 
(often in association with planning permissions). Previously the fees for these 
agreements and associated tasks were calculated on a time-charge basis, with 
all officer hours being recovered when the agreement was completed. As 
substantial officer input may be needed to reach that point (potentially over 
several years) and work remains at risk pending completion, this results in a 
significant lag in income vs. expenditure. The new system of fees and charges 
addresses this by introducing upfront fees to be paid at the point of applying to 
enter into an agreement. The basis of the final fee to be paid at completion of the 
agreement is also switched to a % of the estimated value of the works, though 
additional fees may be required if necessary tasks exceed a standard scope. 
This overall approach is common place in other authorities. A complementary 
system of fees has also been introduced for instances where developers wish to 
access advice before entering into the s278 process. In the past this has led to 
significant officer time being committed that could not be recovered. Introducing 
these task-specific items will encourage developers to make use of the s278 
process. 
 
City Transport – Parking (Appendix 2) 
 
On-Street Parking 
 

3.6 Decriminalised Parking Enforcement (DPE) was introduced in July 2001 with the 
aim of reducing congestion and improving traffic management. Any surplus 

46



arising from on street parking is spent on qualifying expenditure as governed by 
section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, as amended from October 
2004 by section 95 of the Traffic Management Act 2004. The surplus generated 
from charges after direct costs contributes towards the part funding of bus 
subsidies, concessionary bus fares and Local Transport Plan costs. The graph 
below shows the level of surplus generated after direct costs compared to the 
cost of qualifying expenditure for the 2011-12 to 2017-18 financial years. More 
information is available online in the Parking Annual Report 2017-18. 
 

 

 
 
 
3.7 The proposed 2019/20 fees follow a review of parking demand in the city and the 

objectives set out in the councils Local Transport Plan, therefore changes to the 
tariffs will not reflect the assumed 2% standard budgetary inflation value. A 
schedule of fees and charges is included at Appendix 2: 

 

 It is proposed to increase the 2 hour and 4 hour fees in the ‘medium 
demand zone’ at rates between 4.8% to 7.1% 

 It is proposed not to increase the 11 hour fee in the ‘Low demand zone’ 
from £5.20 to £5.50 at a rate of 5.8%. 

 It is proposed to increase fees in the Seafront Pay & Display zones at a 
rate of between 1% to 9.4%. 

 A new administration charge (50% reduction for residents) and 
amendment / cancellation fee will be introduced for parking suspension 
applications. Other parking suspension fees will also be increased for 
suspensions lasting longer than four weeks for Utilities, skips and building 
works. 
 

3.8 Improving air quality is a key objective in Brighton & Hove. Nationally, poor air 
quality reduced average life expectancy in the UK by over 6 months and is 
responsible for approximately 50,000 premature deaths annually. In some parts 

£0m

£2m

£4m

£6m

£8m

£10m

£12m

£14m

£16m

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Surplus after direct Costs Concessionary fares

Capital investment borrowing costs Supported bus services

Other Public transport services Contribution to eligible Transport related expenditure

47



of Brighton & Hove, levels of nitrogen oxides are double European and English 
legal limits. As part of a range of measures to improve air quality, such as the 
introduction of a Low Emission Zone, parking charges in this area can help to 
encourage less polluting travel options and reduce emissions. In Brighton and 
Hove, the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment includes local figures for the impact 
of local air quality on health. 
 

3.9 In addition, congestion in the central area can affect the reliability of journey 
times and long term parking can reduce accessibility and the turnover of spaces. 
Parking charges can help to encourage alternative transport choices and higher 
turnover of spaces. Better accessibility through a high turnover of vehicles being 
parked helps to support local businesses. 
 

3.10 Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) are set by central government and cannot be 
changed independently. 

 
Off-Street Parking 

 
3.11 As with on-street parking charges, the proposed fees are considered to be at a 

level which reflects the administrations traffic management objectives, 
particularly to reduce congestion the city centre and promote alternative forms of 
transport. A schedule of fees and charges are included at Appendix 2: 

 

 It is proposed to increase the 9 hour band at London Road car park at a 
rate of 12.5% to moderate demand at this band. 

 It is proposed to increase four rates at Norton Road car park between 
5.8%% and 9.4%. All other bands will remain unchanged. These changes 
are proposed to moderate demand in these bands. A new quarterly 
season ticket will also be introduced. 

 
Safer Communities (Appendix 3) 
 
Environmental Health 
 

3.12 It is proposed to increase the non-statutory fees and charges in line with the 
corporate rate of inflation, with the exception of the treatment of rodents which 
are being increased by approximately 15% to bring more into line with the local 
market, whilst still remaining competitive.  
 
Trading Standards 
 

3.13 It is proposed to increase the non-statutory fees and charges in line with the 
corporate rate of inflation. 
 
Travellers Sites (Appendix 4) 
 
Traveller Pitch Fees 
 

3.14 The pitch fees for both the permanent and transit sites are legally, under The 
Mobile Homes Act 1983, permitted to be increased by the Retail Price Index 
(RPI) each year.  These charges have been increased by the September 2018 
RPI of +3.3% as per the legislation. 

48



 
3.15 The service charges for both sites are set to recover the costs only.  It is 

proposed to increase the existing charges (fixed since March 2016) by +2% as it 
is estimated that costs have increased by at least this much. There is limited 
historic data on costs as the pitches have only been fully operational for the last 
couple of years. 
 
City Environmental Management (Appendix 5) 
 
Allotments, Parks and Sports Bookings 
 

3.16 It is proposed to increase the charges for allotments, parks and sports bookings 
by the standard inflation rate. A schedule of fees and charges is included at 
Appendix 5.  
 

3.17 The principle of charging for dedicated benches and trees is to recover the costs 
to the council of running the service. 
 

3.18 Sports bookings have historically been set at a rate to reflect the council’s health 
and wellbeing objectives and it is recognised that most sports bookings do not 
recover the cost of provision. There is an ongoing review of the sports booking 
service provision to investigate options to increase the proportion of costs met by 
the service user. 
 
Flyering Licenses 
 

3.19 Flyering licences fees are set at a rate that is reasonably considered to allow 
appropriate regulation and minimisation of flyering activity, and to partly recover 
the cost of work required to clear litter generated from flyering activity. It is 
proposed to increase the charges by the standard inflation rate. 
 
Commercial Waste Collection Service 
 

3.20 At Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee on 9 October 2018, 
Committee delegated authority to the Executive Director Economy, Environment 
& Culture (following consultation with the Executive Director Finance & 
Resources) to revise the commercial waste collection prices in response to the 
prevailing market prices for the services provided at least annually. Following a 
review of costs and current charges it is likely that trade waste prices will 
increase from 1 April 2019. All customers will be written to in due course. 
 
Garden Waste Collection 
 

3.21 A report to Environment, Transport and Sustainability Committee in June 2016 
approved a chargeable garden waste collection service for an annual charge of 
£52 per household. It is proposed to maintain the current fee level as it is 
considered to be appropriate to recover the costs of providing the service. 
 
 
 
 
 

49



Environmental Enforcement 
 

3.22 At Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee on 27 November 2018, 
Committee approved the Environmental Enforcement Framework and the 
associated Fixed Penalty Notice charges. 

 
Preston Park and East Brighton Park Parking 
 

3.23 Car parking charges at Preston Park and East Brighton Park were introduced to 
manage the level of parking activity. Any surplus generated from parking income 
is ring fenced to fund improvement works at the parks. It is proposed to maintain 
fees at current levels as it is forecasted that a 2% increase would not have any 
significant impact on activity and would create a net cost to implement. 
 
Bereavement Services (Appendix 6A and 6B) 
 

3.24 Proposals for increases to certain services provided by the Bereavement 
Services Team are made with the knowledge that there is increased competition 
in the funeral industry. Research and full engagement with local Funeral 
Directors has enabled us to build a picture of what other crematoria are 
providing, and therefore keep pace with changes and be flexible to adapt our 
own service offer, both now and to lay foundations for anticipated changes in the 
bereavement industry in the future. 
 

3.25 Affordability of funerals is high profile nationally with more scrutiny than ever 
before on costs. Proposals are made with this acknowledged and include details 
of updated benchmarking information from other local service providers. Please 
see Appendix 6B. These include Worthing, Eastbourne and The Downs 
Crematorium in Brighton & Hove. Comparisons have been made with these 
neighbours as they are the alternative service providers who customers are most 
likely to opt for, if they don’t choose Brighton & Hove City Council’s service offer.  
Please see Appendix 6 which details changes proposed that are over and above 
the standard annual 2% inflationary uplift. 
 

3.26 There are no proposals to change policies in relation to those aged 17 years and 
under, where crematiions and burials are not charged for.  
 

3.27  Additional income is estimated of up to £31,000 if business levels remain 
consistent in 2019/20, to the current demand for services.  
 

3.28 Bereavement Services will look at re-investing any additional income generated 
through the changes proposed, to support ongoing cemetery maintenance and 
grounds upkeep throughout the year. 
 

4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The proposed fees and charges in this report have been prepared in accordance 

with the council’s fees and charges policy and form part of the proposed budget 
strategy. They take account of the requirement to increase by the corporate 
inflation rate of 2.0% (unless otherwise stated) and consideration has been given 
to other factors such as statutory requirement, cost recovery and prices charged 
by competitor / comparator organisations. Parking fees and charges are set to 

50



meet transport management objectives of managing demand for parking and 
reduce congestion. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Where Traffic Regulation Orders are required for proposed Transport fee 

changes, objections received will be reported to this Committee at a future date.  
 
 
 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 Fees and charges are considered to be an important source of income in 

enabling services to be sustained and provided. A wide range of services are 
funded or part funded by fees and charges including those detailed in the report. 
The overall budget strategy aims to ensure that fees and charges are maintained 
or increased as a proportion of gross expenditure through identifying income 
generating opportunities, ensuring that charges for discretionary services and 
trading accounts cover costs, and ensuring that fees and charges keep pace with 
price inflation and/or competitor and comparator rates. 
 

6.2 Fees and charges budgets for 2019/20 are assumed to increase by a standard 
inflation rate of 2.0% with the exception of those listed within this report. The 
council’s Corporate Fees and Charges Policy requires that all fees and charges 
are reviewed at least annually and should normally be increased by either; the 
standard rate of inflation, statutory increase or increases in the costs of providing 
services. 

 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 The fees and charges recommended in this report have been reviewed in line 

with the Corporate Fees and Charges Policy, and budget assumptions approved 
by Policy, Resources and Growth Committee. The anticipated recurring financial 
impacts of fee changes will be reflected within service revenue budgets. Where 
changes meet the standard inflationary increase of 2% applied to all council 
income budgets (except statutory Penalty Charge Notices) and result in 
additional contributions toward the cost of services, including overheads and all 
allowable expenditure, changes to fees and charges can result in the 
achievement of a net budget saving. Where this is the case, this will be reflected 
in Integrated Service & Financial Plan proposals for the relevant service and will 
be incorporated within the revenue budget report to Policy, Resources & Growth 
Committee and Budget Council. Income from fees and charges will be reviewed 
as part of the budget monitoring process. 

 
There will be costs associated with advertising Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) 
for changes to charges within the Transport service which will be met from 
existing revenue budgets. 
 
For Bereavement Services, the expected income generation from the changes to 
fees and charges outlined in the relevant section of the report and appendix 6 is 

51



expected to cover the service’s savings proposals and provide funding for a small 
reserve to cover the costs of maintaining wooden memorials as they degrade 
over time.  

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Gemma Jackson/Peter Francis Date: 09/01/19 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.2      The council needs to establish for each of the charges imposed both the power 

to levy charges of that type and, where applicable, the power to set the charge at 
a particular level. In some cases the amount of the charges is set by 
Government. In other cases where a figure is not prescribed, for example the 
general power to charge for discretionary services under the Local Government 
Act 2003, the amount that can be charged is restricted to costs recovery. In some 
prescribed cases, such as charging for commercial waste collection, legislation 
enables the Council to set charges at a commercial rate. Special provisions apply 
in the case of parking charges which are set out below.  In all cases the council 
must act reasonably and ensure that any statutory formalities which govern the 
particular charge are complied with. 

 
7.3 The Council is entitled to set parking charges at levels that will enable it to meet 

its traffic management objectives for example, by managing supply and demand 
for parking. Under section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, as 
amended by the Traffic Management Act 2004, the Council must keep an 
account of all parking income and expenditure in designated (i.e. on-street) 
parking spaces which are in a Civil Enforcement Area, and of their income and 
expenditure related to their functions as an enforcement authority. The use of any 
surplus income from civil parking enforcement is governed by section 55 of the 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 as amended. This allows any surplus to be 
used for transport and highways related projects and expenditure such as 
supported bus services, concessionary fares and Local Transport Plan projects. 
           

 Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date: 11/01/19 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.4 Management of fees and charges is fundamental to the achievement of council 

priorities. The council’s fees and charges policy aims to increase the proportion 
of costs met by the service user. Charges, where not set externally, are raised by 
corporate inflation rates unless there are legitimate anti-poverty considerations. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.5 There are no direct sustainability implications arising from the recommendations 

in this report. 
 
Any Other Significant Implications: 

 
7.6 There are no other significant implications arising from the recommendations in 

this report.  
 

 

52



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Proposed City Transport (Highways) Fees and Charges 2019-20 
 
2. Proposed City Transport (Parking) Fees and Charges 2019-20 
 
3. Proposed Safer Communities Fees and Charges 2019-20 
 
4. Proposed Travellers Sites Fees and Charges 2019-20 
 
5. Proposed City Environmental Management Fees and Charges 2019-20 
 
6. Bereavement Services fees and charges proposals for 2019-20 
 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. None 

53



54



Actual 
Charge

Proposed 
Charge

Change 

£ £ %

HIGHWAYS
Vehicle Crossover Inspection - First inspection 74.00 75.00 1.4%
Vehicle Crossover Inspection - Proceeding to works 98.00 100.00 2.0%
S50 Road Opening Charge – Works on apparatus with an existing licence 176.00 180.00 2.3%
S50 Road Opening Charge – New Licence 485.00 495.00 2.1%
Works on the Highway (installation of ramps etc) 344.00 351.00 2.0%
Temporary Traffic Lights (application and approval of changes to traffic light junctions) 118.00 120.00 1.7%
Oversailing (Permission to move materials/build temporary structures over the public highway) 118.00 120.00 1.7%
Officer time (When needed on site checking traffic management or traffic signals) 48.00 49.00 2.1%

DEVELOPER-LED HIGHWAY WORKS (INCLUDING S278/38 AGREEMENTS)
Note 1: EVHW = Estimated value of the highway works, including street lighting and statutory undertakers 
works.
Note 2: The S278/38 agreement fees below exclude fee for legal drafting, traffic regulation orders, 
structural/geotechnical AiP and commuted sums, which shall all be additional.
Note 3: For S278/38 agreements applicants will be required to provide a legal undertaking at the point of 
application that they will pay any abortive costs that the Council may occur (including officer time @ £72/hr) 
above the value of the advanced fee should the application not be completed for any reason.

S278/38 agreement - final fee to be paid when agreement completed to cover all tasks within standard 
scope

Time charge 
@ £72/hr

12% EVHW N/A

S278/38 agreement - advanced fee to be paid at point of application but to be deducted from final fee New 50% Final fee 
(min £2,500)

N/A

Short-form S278 agreement - final fee to be paid when agreement completed to cover all tasks within 
standard scope

Time charge 
@ £72/hr

12% EVHW N/A

Short-form S278 agreement - advanced fee to be paid at point of application but to be deducted from final 
fee

New 50% Final fee 
(min £1,500)

N/A

Design check of conceptual highway design proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (small scheme) New 432.00 N/A
Design check of conceptual highway design proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (medium scheme) New 720.00 N/A
Design check of conceptual highway design proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (large scheme) New 1,080.00 N/A

Design check of detailed highway design proposals outside of S278/38 agreement, excl. SUDS drainage 
and street lighting (small scheme)

New 504.00 N/A

2019-20
Appendix 1 - Proposed City Transport (Highways) Fees and Charges 2019-20

2018-19

55



Design check of detailed highway design proposals outside of S278/38 agreement, excl. SUDS drainage 
and street lighting (medium scheme)

New 864.00 N/A

Design check of detailed highway design proposals outside of S278/38 agreement, excl. SUDS drainage 
and street lighting (large scheme)

New 1,224.00 N/A

Design check of detailed SUDS drainage proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (small scheme) New 288.00 N/A
Design check of detailed SUDS drainage proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (medium scheme) New 504.00 N/A
Design check of detailed SUDS drainage proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (large scheme) New 720.00 N/A

Design check of detailed street lighting proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (small scheme) New 288.00 N/A
Design check of detailed street lighting proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (medium scheme) New 504.00 N/A
Design check of detailed street lighting proposals outside of S278/38 agreement (large scheme) New 720.00 N/A

Road safety audit outside of S278/38 process, completion of all overseeing organisation tasks for an 
individual stage 1/1+2/2/3 (small scheme)

New 540.00 N/A

Road safety audit outside of S278/38 process, completion of all overseeing organisation tasks for an 
individual stage 1/1+2/2/3 (medium scheme)

New 828.00 N/A

Road safety audit outside of S278/38 process, completion of all overseeing organisation tasks for an 
individual stage 1/1+2/2/3 (large scheme)

New 1,152.00 N/A

Attendance at max 3 hr meeting to discuss highway design proposals outside of S278/38 agreement, inc. 
advanced review of info and provision of written notes (but excl. formal design check of any highway 
design proposals)

New 684.00 N/A

Structural Approval in Principle to DMRB BD02 New 576.00 N/A
Geotechnical Approval in Principle to DMRB HD22/08 New Time charge at 

counsultancy 
rates

N/A

TRANSPORT PLANNING TASKS ASSOCIATED WITH PLANNING APPLICATIONS (INCLUDING PRE-
APPLICATION ADVICE)
Note: Where Planning Performance Agreements are proposed then the fees shall be calculated on a case 
specific basis and those below may not apply.

Generic written pre-Application advice without meeting (minor development - householder) New 108.00 N/A
Generic written pre-Application advice on proposals without meeting, excl. advice on TS/TA (minor 
development - other)

New 180.00 N/A

Generic written pre-Application advice on proposals without meeting, excl. advice on TS/TA (major 
development/prior approval - general)

New 324.00 N/A

Generic written pre-Application advice on proposals without meeting, excl. advice on TS/TA (largescale 
major development)

New 432.00 N/A

56



Attendance at max 2hr pre-Application meeting, inc. advanced review of  submitted information and 
provision of written notes, but excl. TS/TA screening/scoping (minor development scheme)

New 504.00 N/A

Attendance at max 2hr pre-Application meeting, inc. advanced review of  submitted information and 
provision of written notes, but excl. TS/TA screening/scoping (major development scheme)

New 612.00 N/A

Attendance at max 2hr pre-Application meeting, inc. advanced review of  submitted information and 
provision of written notes, but excl. TS/TA screening/scoping (largescale major development scheme)

New 720.00 N/A

Transport Note/Statement/Assessment screening opinion to determine type of report required New 216.00 N/A
Review and written response to Transport Statement/Assessment scoping note, per revision (major 
development)

New 630.00 N/A

Review and written response to Transport Statement/Assessment scoping note, per revision (large-scale 
major development)

New 1,080.00 N/A

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS - PLANNED (TEMP OR PERMANENT)
Administration & advertising costs 1,811.00 1,847.00 2.0%

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS - NOTICES (TEMP - EMERGENCY)
Administration fee & officer time 340.00 347.00 2.1%

SCAFFOLD LICENCE
Initial 6 weeks 72.00 73.00 1.4%
Renewal subsequent 8 weeks 72.00 73.00 1.4%
Initial 6 weeks for 12m. length along the Public Highway 210.00 214.00 1.9%
Renewal subsequent 8 weeks for 12m. length along Public Highway 210.00 214.00 1.9%
Manual renewal of Scaffolding licence for 8 weeks under 12m 122.00 130.00 6.6%
Manual reneal of scaffolding licence for 8 weeks over 12m 382.00 390.00 2.1%

SKIP LICENCE
Returnable Deposit 72.00 73.00 1.4%
Deposit Processing Fees 19.00 19.00 0.0%
1 day Licence Standard Skip 9.00 9.00 0.0%
7 day Licence Standard skip 28.00 29.00 3.6%
28 day Licence Standard Skip 54.00 55.00 1.9%
1 day Licence Large Skip 28.00 29.00 3.6%
7 day Licence Large Skip 54.00 55.00 1.9%
28 day Licence Large Skip 108.00 110.00 1.9%

HOARDING
Area of Hoarding per sq metre initial 6 week application 25.00 26.00 4.0%
Area of Hoarding per sq metre renewal 8 week application 25.00 26.00 4.0%

BUILDING MATERIALS 
Per week 33.00 34.00 3.0%

57



Secure Hazardous Waste, Lockable Storage Containers, Temporary offices, Welfare facilities and 
Asbestos removal, decontamination units. Per square metre

24.00 24.00

Crane. Tower cranes, mobile work platforms on the highway. 98.00 100.00 2.0%
OBJECTS ON THE HIGHWAY 
TABLES AND CHAIRS, SHOP DISPLAY ETC

Initial application less than 5 square metres 173.00 176.00 1.7%
Initial application 5 square metres or greater 353.00 360.00 2.0%
Annual renewal fee per square metre 24.50 25.00 2.0%

A-BOARD LICENCE
New application first year 109.00 111.00 1.8%
Annual renewal fee 75.50 77.00 2.0%

OTHER FEES
Highway Licence detail changes 29.00 30.00 3.4%
One off promotions per square metre 29.00 30.00 3.4%
Temporary Event Advertising Signs - first 50 (each) 10.00 10.00 0.0%
Temporary Event Advertising Signs - over 50 (each) 5.00 5.00 0.0%

SIGNS
Brown Tourist signs 185.00 189.00 2.2%
Neighbourhood watch signs 39.00 40.00 2.6%

CULTIVATION LICENCE
Licence for individuals who wish to cultivate a highway verge or other highway green space adjacent to 
their property.

35.00 36.00 2.9%

58



Proposed 

Charge

Proposed 

Charge

Change 

£ £ %

Black Rock

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

3 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

4 hours 5.00 5.00 0.0%

9 hours 6.00 6.00 0.0%

High Street

2 hours 4.20 4.20 0.0%

4 hours 8.40 8.40 0.0%

9 hours 11.00 11.00 0.0%

24 hours 18.20 18.20 0.0%

Quarterly season ticket 780.00 780.00 0.0%

Annual season ticket 2080.00 2080.00 0.0%

King Alfred

1 hour 1.60 1.60 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

3 hours 3.00 3.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

Rottingdean Marine Cliffs

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

11 hours 3.00 3.00 0.0%

Quarterly season ticket 52.00 52.00 0.0%

Norton Road

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 3.20 3.50 9.4%

5 hours 4.20 4.50 7.1%

9 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

12 hours 6.00 6.50 8.3%

Annual Season Ticket 780.00 780.00 0.0%

Oxford Court

2 hours 3.00 3.00 0.0%

4 hours 8.00 8.00 0.0%

9 hours 10.00 10.00 0.0%

24 hours 18.00 18.00 0.0%

Annual season ticket 780.00 780.00 0.0%

Rottingdean West Street

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

3 hours 3.00 3.00 0.0%

The Lanes

1 hour 2.00 2.00 0.0%

2 hours 6.00 6.00 0.0%

4 hours 14.00 14.00 0.0%

9 hours 20.00 20.00 0.0%

24 hours 32.00 32.00 0.0%

2018-19

Car parks

2019-20

Appendix 2 - Proposed City Transport (Parking) Fees and Charges 2019-20

59



Lost ticket 23.00 23.00 0.0%

Weekend - 1 hour 4.00 4.00 0.0%

Weekend - 2 hours 8.00 8.00 0.0%

Weekend - 4 hours 15.00 15.00 0.0%

Weekend - 9 hours 20.00 20.00 0.0%

Weekend - 24 hours / Lost ticket 25.00 25.00 0.0%

Evenings 18.00 – 24.00 4.50 4.50 0.0%

Night 24.00 – 11.00 5.00 5.00 0.0%

Annual season ticket 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.0%

Reduced Charge Annual Season ticket - Residents permit waiting list 16.00-11.00 Mon-Fri (Zone 

Z only)
1,500.00 1,500.00 0.0%

London Road

1 hour 1.50 1.50 0.0%

2 hours 3.00 3.00 0.0%

4 hours 6.00 6.00 0.0%

9 hours 8.00 9.00 12.5%

24 hours 15.00 15.00 0.0%

Lost ticket 15.00 15.00 0.0%

Evenings 1800 - 2400 4.50 4.50 0.0%

Night 24.00 – 11.00 5.00 5.00 0.0%

Lost ticket administration fee 5.00 5.00 0.0%

Weekly 55.00 55.00 0.0%

Annual season ticket 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.0%

Annual season ticket - Reduced Rate for Area Y permit holders and businesses of New England 

House, City Point or One Brighton 
800.00 800.00 0.0%

Reduced charge Annual season ticket - Residents permit waiting list (Zone Y)16.00-11.00 Mon-

Fri
420.00 420.00 0.0%

Quarterly Season ticket New 400.00 New

Regency Square

1 hour 2.00 2.00 0.0%

2 hours 4.50 4.50 0.0%

4 hours 10.00 10.00 0.0%

9 hours 13.00 13.00 0.0%

24 hours / Lost ticket 18.00 18.00 0.0%

Evenings 1800 - 2400 4.50 4.50 0.0%

Night 24.00 – 11.00 5.00 5.00 0.0%

Lost Ticket Administration fee 5.00 5.00 0.0%

Weekly season ticket 60.00 60.00 0.0%

Quarterly season ticket 300.00 300.00 0.0%

Annual season ticket 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

Commercial season ticket annual 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.0%

Reduced Annual Season ticket - Residents permit waiting list 16.00-11.00 Mon-Fri (Zone M) 750.00 750.00 0.0%

60



Trafalgar Street

1 hour 3.00 3.00 0.0%

2 hours 6.00 6.00 0.0%

4 hours 9.00 9.00 0.0%

6 hours 10.00 10.00 0.0%

9 hours 12.00 12.00 0.0%

24 hours / Lost ticket 16.00 16.00 0.0%

Weekend - 1 hour 2.50 2.50 0.0%

Weekend - 2 hours 4.50 4.50 0.0%

Weekend - 4 hours 8.00 8.00 0.0%

Weekend - 6 hours 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Weekend - 9 hours 12.00 12.00 0.0%

Weekend - 24 hours / Lost ticket 18.00 18.00 0.0%

Evenings 1800 - 2400 4.50 4.50 0.0%

Night 24.00 – 11.00 5.00 5.00 0.0%

Lost Ticket Administration fee 5.00 5.00 0.0%

Quarterly season ticket 400.00 400.00 0.0%

Annual season ticket 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.0%

Reduced Annual Season Ticket - Residents permit waiting list (Zone Y) 16.00-11.00 Mon-Fri 750.00 750.00 0.0%

On-street (Pay & Display)

TARIFF ZONE 1

Zone Y - Central Brighton North

1 hour 3.60 3.60 0.0%

2 hours 6.20 6.20 0.0%

4 hours 10.40 10.40 0.0%

Zone Z - Central Brighton South

1 hour 3.60 3.60 0.0%

2 hours 7.00 7.00 0.0%

4 hours 11.00 11.00 0.0%

TARIFF ZONE 2

Zone Y - Central Brighton North [Cheapside & The Level]

1 hour 2.00 2.00 0.0%

2 hours 4.20 4.50 7.1%

4 hours 6.20 6.50 4.8%

TARIFF ZONE 3

Zone M 

1 hour 2.00 2.00 0.0%

2 hours 4.20 4.50 7.1%

4 hours 6.20 6.50 4.8%

TARIFF ZONE 4

Zone A - Preston Park Station

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone C - Queen's Park

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

61



Zone E - Preston Park Station North

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone F - Fiveways

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone G - Hollingbury Road & Ditchling Gardens

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone H - Kemp Town

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone J - London Road Station

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone N - Central Hove

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone O - Goldsmid

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone Q - Prestonville

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone R - Westbourne

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Zone T - Hove Station Area

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

62



Zone W - Westbourne West / Wish park

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.00 4.00 0.0%

11 hours 5.20 5.50 5.8%

Seafront (Pay & Display)

TARIFF ZONE 1

Seafront Inner - Madeira Drive (1 Mar - 31 Oct) [West of Madeira Lift]

1 hour 3.20 3.50 9.4%

2 hours 6.00 6.00 0.0%

4 hours 11.00 11.00 0.0%

11 hours 16.00 16.00 0.0%

Seafront Inner - Marine Parade [West of Burlington Street]

1 hour 3.20 3.50 9.4%

2 hours 6.00 6.00 0.0%

4 hours 11.00 11.00 0.0%

11 hours 16.00 16.00 0.0%

Seafront Inner - King's Road

1 hour 3.20 3.50 9.4%

2 hours 6.00 6.00 0.0%

4 hours 11.00 11.00 0.0%

11 hours 16.00 16.00 0.0%

TARIFF ZONE 2

Seafront Inner - Kingsway [East of Fourth Avenue]

1 hour 2.00 2.00 0.0%

2 hours 4.20 4.50 7.1%

4 hours 6.20 6.50 4.8%

11 hours 10.40 10.50 1.0%

Seafront Inner - New Steine

1 hour 2.00 2.00 0.0%

2 hours 4.20 4.50 7.1%

4 hours 6.20 6.50 4.8%

11 hours 10.40 10.50 1.0%

TARIFF ZONE 3

Seafront Outer - Madeira Drive [East of Madeira Lift]

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.20 4.20 0.0%

11 hours 7.20 7.20 0.0%

Seafront Inner - Madeira Drive (1 Nov - 28/29 Feb) [West of Madeira Lift]

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.20 4.20 0.0%

11 hours 7.20 7.20 0.0%

TARIFF ZONE 4

Rottingdean High Street

1 hour 1.00 1.00 0.0%

2 hours 2.00 2.00 0.0%

4 hours 4.20 4.20 0.0%

Madeira Drive Coach Park

4 hours 9.00 9.00 0.0%

8 hours 16.00 16.00 0.0%

63



Permits and other

Residents permits - Full scheme (Zones A,C,E,F,G,H,J,M,N,O,Q,T,Y,Z)

First permit per household - 3 months (full scheme) (50% discount for Low Emission / 25% 

increase for high emission)
45.00 45.00 0.0%

First permit per household - 1 year (full scheme) (50% discount for Low Emission / 25% increase 

for high emission)
130.00 130.00 0.0%

Visitor Permit (Full schemes apart from zones M, Y & Z) 3.50 3.50 0.0%

Visitor Permit  (zones M, Y & Z) 4.50 4.50 0.0%

Residents permits - Light touch (Zones U & W)

First permit per household - 6 months (full scheme) (50% discount for Low Emission) 60.00 60.00 0.0%

First permit per household - 1 year (full scheme) (50% discount for Low Emission) 100.00 100.00 0.0%

Visitor Permit 2.20 2.20 0.0%

Business Permits

One year (50% discount for low emission / 25% increase for High Emission) 350.00 350.00 0.0%

3 months (50% discount for low emission / 25% increase for High Emission) 100.00 100.00 0.0%

Traders Permits

One year (50% discount for low emission / 25% increase for High Emission) 700.00 700.00 0.0%

3 months (50% discount for low emission / 25% increase for High Emission) 200.00 200.00 0.0%

Hotel Permits

Area C (24 hours) 8.00 8.00 0.0%

Area N (1 day) 3.50 3.50 0.0%

School Permits

3 months 50.00 50.00 0.0%

One year 150.00 150.00 0.0%

Doctors Permits (per bay) 100.00 100.00 0.0%

Electric Vehicles Permit 26.00 26.00 0.0%

Car Club (1 year) 25.00 25.00 0.0%

Professional Carers (1 year) 52.00 52.00 0.0%

Carers Permits (not Professional) 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Dispensations (1 year) 40.00 40.00 0.0%

Waivers (1 day) 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Suspensions

Suspensions ( Daily charge for non utilities) 40.00 40.00 0.0%

Suspensions - Community Events ( Daily charge for attendance 15k or less ) 20.00 20.00 0.0%

Suspensions for Utilities in zones M, Y & Z (Longer than 4 weeks increases to £80) 40.00 60.00 50.0%

Suspensions for Utilities in all zones except M, Y & Z (Longer than 4 weeks increases to £60) 40.00 50.00 25.0%

Suspensions (Admin Charge) (50% reduction for residents) New 30.00 New

Suspensions Amendment / Cancellation fee New 25.00 New

Suspensions - Daily charge for skips (longer than 4 weeks = £25) 20.00 20.00 0.0%

Suspensions  - Daily charge for building works (Longer than 4 weeks = £50) 40.00 40.00 0.0%

Administration fees

Change of CPZ 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Surrender of Permit 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Change of Vehicle 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Replacement Permit 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Issue of resident permit to Blue Badge holder 15.00 15.00 0.0%

Issue of resident permit to Blue Badge holder (low emission) 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Issue of Blue Badge 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Blue Badge Bay Application fee 11.00 11.00 0.0%

Blue Badge Bay - Individual disabled bay 102.00 102.00 0.0%

Zone B & D Permits (Event parking)

Resident Permit 0.00 0.00 N/A

Business permit 0.00 0.00 N/A

Carer 0.00 0.00 N/A

School Permit 0.00 0.00 N/A

Resident Visitor (transferable) 0.00 0.00 N/A

Resident visitor (one day) 2.60 2.60 0.0%

64



Change of vehicle 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Replacement Permit 10.00 10.00 0.0%

Lining

Access Protection White Lines (per metre) 12.00 12.00 0.0%

Replacing lining after crossover work (per metre) 12.00 12.00 0.0%

Disabled Bays

Application Fee 11.00 11.00 0.0%

Individual disabled bay 102.00 102.00 0.0%

TRO for new parking restriction o/s of Controlled Parking Zones

Administration, advertising costs, officer site visits, signing and lining costs 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.0%

Additional Search Enquiries

Solicitors and other agency queries per question 40.00 40.00 0.0%

65



66



Actual Charge Proposed 

Charge

Change 

£ £ %

TRADING STANDARDS

Buy with Confidence (1-5 Employees) 139.00 142.00 2.2%

Buy with Confidence (6-20 Employees) 208.00 212.00 1.9%

Buy with Confidence (over 21 Employees) 278.00 284.00 2.2%

Licence to store explosives where, by virtue of regulation 27 of, and Schedule 5 to, the 2014 

Regulations, a minimum separation distance of greater than 0 metres is prescribed. Fees are set 

by the Health and Safety Executive.

1 Year 185.00 185.00 N/A

2 Years 243.00 243.00 N/A

3 Years 304.00 304.00 N/A

4 Years 374.00 374.00 N/A

5 Years 423.00 423.00 N/A

Renewal of licence to store explosives where a minimum separation distance of greater than 0 

metres is prescribed. Fees are set by the Health and Safety Executive.

1 Year 86.00 86.00 N/A

2 Years 147.00 147.00 N/A

3 Years 206.00 206.00 N/A

4 Years 266.00 266.00 N/A

5 Years 326.00 326.00 N/A

Licence to store explosives where no minimum separation distance or a 0 metres separation 

distance is prescribed. Fees are set by the Health and Safety Executive.

1 Year 109.00 109.00 N/A

2 Years 141.00 141.00 N/A

3 Years 173.00 173.00 N/A

4 Years 206.00 206.00 N/A

5 Years 238.00 238.00 N/A

Renewal of licence to store explosives where no minimum separation distance or a 0 metres 

minimum separation distance is prescribed. Fees are set by the Health and Safety Executive.

1 Year 54.00 54.00 N/A

2 Years 86.00 86.00 N/A

3 Years 120.00 120.00 N/A

4 Years 152.00 152.00 N/A

5 Years 185.00 185.00 N/A

Varying the name of licensee or address of site. Fee set by the Health and Safety Executive. 36.00 36.00 N/A

Transfer of licence. Fee set by the Health and Safety Executive. 36.00 36.00 N/A

Replacement of licence if lost. Fee set by the Health and Safety Executive. 36.00 36.00 N/A

Licence to store petroleum, as per Provision of the Petroleum (Consolidation) Regulations 2014 

under which a fee is payable.  Fees are set by the Health & Safety Executive

Storage certificate

not exceeding 2.500 litres NEW 44.00 N/A

exceeding 2,500 litres, but not exceeding 50,000 litres NEW 60.00 N/A

exceeding 50,000 litres NEW 125.00 N/A

Licence to keep petrol of a quantity -

not exceeding 2.500 litres NEW 44.00 N/A

exceeding 2,500 litres, but not exceeding 50,000 litres NEW 60.00 N/A

exceeding 50,000 litres NEW 125.00 N/A

Weights and Measures verification fees officer time per hour 79.00 81.00 2.5%

Weights and Measures verification fees NAWI under 1 tonne 62.00 63.00 1.6%

Weights and Measures verification fees weights over 5kg under 500mg 11.00 11.00 0.0%

Weights and Measures verification fees other weights 9.00 9.00 0.0%

Weights and Measures verification fees liquid fuel first nozzle 124.00 126.00 1.6%

Weights and Measures verifications fees liquid fuel additional nozzle 77.00 79.00 2.6%

Appendix 3 - Proposed Safer Communities Fees and Charges 2019-20

2018-19 2019-20

67



Actual Charge Proposed 

Charge

Change 

£ £ %

Appendix 3 - Proposed Safer Communities Fees and Charges 2019-20

2018-19 2019-20

LOCAL AUTHORITY POLLUTION PREVENTION AND CONTROL

Application Fee:

Standard process (includes solvent emission activities)

Additional fee for operating without a permit

PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners

PVR I and II combined

VRs and other Reduced Fee Activities

Reduced fee activates: Additional fee for operating without a permit

Mobile plant (not using simplified permits):

for the first and second permits

for the third to seventh applications

for the eight and subsequent applications

Note: where an application for any of the above is for combined Part B and waste application, 

add an extra £297 to the above amounts

Annual Subsistence Charge:

Standard process Low

Standard process Medium

Standard process High

PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners Low/Medium/High

PVR I & II combined Low/Medium/High

Vehicle refinishers and other reduced fees Low/Medium/High

Mobile plant, for the first and second permits Low/Medium/High

for the third to seventh applications Low/Medium/High

eighth and subsequent permits Low/Medium/High

Late Payment Fee

the additional amounts in brackets above must be charged where a permit is for a combined 

Part B and waste installation

Where a Part B installation is subject to reporting under the E-PRTR Regulation, add an extra 

£99 to the above amounts:

Pollution Release and Transfer Register

Application

Additional fee for operating without a permit

Annual Subsistence Low

Annual Subsistence Medium

Annual Subsistence High

Late Payment Fee

Substational Variation

Transfer

Partial transfer

Surrender

Transfer and Surrender:

Standard process transfer

Standard process partial transfer

New Operator at low risk reduced fee activity (extra one-off subsistence charge - see Art 15 (2) 

of charging scheme)

Surrender: all Part B activities

Reduced fee activities: transfer

Reduced fee activities: partial transfer

Temporary transfer for mobiles:

First transfer

repeat following enforcement or warning

Substantial Change:

Standard process

Standard process where the substantial change results in a new PPC activity

Reduced fee activities

OTHER FEES

Language school inspection 87.00 89.00 2.3%

Information to solicitors 148.00 151.00 2.0%

FOOD PREMISES REGISTER

Signal page copy 9.00 9.00 0.0%

Copy containing information regarding particular category (by hand) 91.00 93.00 2.2%

Copy containing information regarding particular category (by post) 150.00 153.00 2.0%

Full copy of register (by hand) 279.00 285.00 2.2%

Full copy of register (by post) 298.00 304.00 2.0%

Food Hygiene Rating Scheme (FHRS) re-inspection of premises requested by businesses 148.00 151.00 2.0%

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

Set nationally by DEFRA

68



Actual Charge Proposed 

Charge

Change 

£ £ %

Appendix 3 - Proposed Safer Communities Fees and Charges 2019-20

2018-19 2019-20

ANIMAL WELFARE

Collection of reclaimed dogs:

Statutory charge (set by government) 25.00 25.00 N/A

dog warden charges (includes VAT) 28.00 29.00 3.6%

kennelling per day (includes VAT) 28.00 29.00 3.6%

administration charge (includes VAT) 16.00 16.00 0.0%

Vaccination (includes VAT) 26.00 27.00 3.8%

Dog Control Fixed penalty* 82.00 84.00 2.4%

Noise Pollution - Domestic - Fixed Penalty* 102.00 104.00 2.0%

Noise Pollution - Commercial - Fixed Penalty* 510.00 520.00 2.0%

Domestic Dog Boarding 250.00 250.00 N/A

Commercial Dog Boarding 315.00 315.00 N/A

Cat Boarding 260.00 260.00 N/A

Domestic Dog Breeding 275.00 275.00 N/A

Commercial Dog Breeding 315.00 315.00 N/A

Dog Day Care 260.00 260.00 N/A

Pet Vending 275.00 275.00 N/A

Exhibition of Animals 315.00 315.00 N/A

Hiring Horses 345.00 345.00 N/A

Variation / transfer of licence 105.00 105.00 N/A

Appeals / site visit P.O.A. P.O.A. N/A

Dangerous Wild Animals 255.00 260.00 2.0%

Export Licences 61.00 62.00 1.6%

Zoo                                        5,299.00 5,405.00 2.0%

Zoo (with dispensation)               2,945.00 3,004.00 2.0%

HEALTH PROMOTION / EDUCATION

Training Courses:

Food Safety Level 2 (previously Basic Food Hygiene) 69.00 70.00 1.4%

Intermediate Food Hygiene 140.00 143.00 2.1%

Food Safety Level 2 retake of exam 31.00 32.00 3.2%

Level 1 course for 10 people / 15 people P.O.A P.O.A N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

Contaminated Land Environmental Information Regulations Request (per hour) 27.00 28.00 3.7%

WID DEFAULT CHARGES

Environmental Health Manager 92.00 94.00 2.2%
Senior EHO per hour 85.00 87.00 2.4%

EHO/Senior Technical Officer 75.00 77.00 2.7%

Technical Officer per hour 70.00 71.00 1.4%

Admin staff per hour 41.00 42.00 2.4%

PEST CONTROL

Call out charge for pest control 51.00 52.00 2.0%

Wildlife Advice Service 51.00 52.00 2.0%

Pest Control Self Help Kits (including postage and packaging) 26.00 27.00 3.8%

Pest Control Self Help Kits (including postage and packaging) including natural chemical 26.00 27.00 3.8%

Air Vent Fitting Service - small (10in x 4in) 23.00 23.00 0.0%
Air Vent Fitting Service - medium (10in x 7in) 26.00 27.00 3.8%

Air Vent Fitting Service - small and medium extra 13.00 13.00 0.0%

Air Vent Fitting Service - large (10in x 9in) 29.00 30.00 3.4%

Air Vent Fitting Service - large extra 14.00 14.00 0.0%

Rats and Mice - Residential (up to 3 visits) 87.00 100.00 14.9%

Rats and Mice - Residential (additional visit) 31.00 36.00 16.1%

Wasps - Residential 66.00 67.00 1.5%

Fleas (1-2 Bedroom property) - residential 82.00 84.00 2.4%

Fleas (3-4 Bedroom property) - residential 102.00 104.00 2.0%

Fleas ( 5+ Bedroom property) - residential 143.00 146.00 2.1%

Cockroaches ( 1-2 Bedroom property) - residential 184.00 188.00 2.2%

Cockroaches ( 3-4 Bedroom property) - residential 245.00 250.00 2.0%

Cockroaches ( 5+ Bedroom property) - residential 316.00 322.00 1.9%

Commercial per visit rate 66.00 67.00 1.5%

Squirrels in loft service 163.00 166.00 1.8%

Carpet moth treatment (1-2 Bedroom property) - residential 82.00 84.00 2.4%

Carpet moth treatment (3-4 Bedroom property) - residential 102.00 104.00 2.0%

Carpet moth treatment (5+ Bedroom property) - residential 143.00 146.00 2.1%

Mice humane trapping service 275.00 281.00 2.2%

Wasp catchers (include 1 visit each month for 3 months) 153.00 156.00 2.0%

Fox repellent service 51.00 52.00 2.0%

False Widow Spider treatment (1-2 Bedroom property) - residential 82.00 84.00 2.4%

False Widow Spider treatment  ( 3-4 Bedroom property) - residential 102.00 104.00 2.0%

False Widow Spider treatment ( 5+ Bedroom property) - residential 143.00 146.00 2.1%

Fees agreed at Licensing Committee (29/11/18)  in respect of new Animal Welfare Licensing regulations introduced from 1st October 2018

69



70



2018-19

Actual Charge Proposed 

Charge

Change 

£ £ %

Travellers Transit Site

Weekly Rent per pitch 69.18 71.46 3.3%

Weekly Service Charges 35.38 36.09 2.0%

Travellers Permanent Site

Average Weekly Rent per pitch (Average across 12 pitches) 89.60 92.56 3.3%

 - Pitch 1 - Size M 87.15 90.03 3.3%

 - Pitch 2 - Size M 87.15 90.03 3.3%

 - Pitch 3 - Size L 93.30 96.38 3.3%

 - Pitch 4 - Size L 93.41 96.49 3.3%

 - Pitch 5 - Size L 93.41 96.49 3.3%

 - Pitch 6 - Size X/L 100.06 103.36 3.3%

 - Pitch 7 - Size X/L 100.06 103.36 3.3%

 - Pitch 8 - Size S 83.39 86.14 3.3%

 - Pitch 9 - Size S 83.39 86.14 3.3%

 - Pitch 10 - Size M 87.15 90.03 3.3%

 - Pitch 11 - Size S 83.39 86.14 3.3%

 - Pitch 12 - Size S 83.39 86.14 3.3%

Weekly Service Charges 11.43 11.66 2.0%

Appendix 4 - Proposed Travellers Sites Fees and Charges 2019-20

2019-20

71



72



Proposed 

Charge

Proposed 

Charge

Change 

£ £ %

CITY PARKS

Allotments Rents per square metre - 25% discount to allotment rent for senior citizens, full-time 

students, unemployed, disabled and community groups

0.3168 0.3231 2.0%

Allotments Waiting List Application 16.60 16.90 1.8%

Dedicated Benches 1,043.50 1,064.40 2.0%

Plaques for dedicated benches - includes engraving of 50 letters. Any additional engraving costs 

85p+VAT per letter.

132.60 135.30 2.0%

New Tree Planting - dedicate a tree 320.30 326.70 2.0%

Copy of Tree preservation order (TPO) 34.70 35.40 2.0%

FLYERING LICENCES

Standard Annual License - Can operate between 07:00 and 19:00 109.10 111.30 2.0%

Premium Annual License - Can operate 24 hours 163.20 166.50 2.0%

Standard 28 Day Licence - Can operate between 07:00 and 19:00 55.10 56.20 2.0%

Premium 28 Day Licence - Can operate 24 hours 82.60 84.30 2.1%

Standard Annual Renewal 76.50 78.00 2.0%

Premium Annual Renewal 163.20 166.50 2.0%

Fringe Badge 28.60 29.20 2.1%

Additional Badge (cost per badge) 28.60 29.20 2.1%

BOWLS

Per person per hour - Casual 3.20 3.30 3.1%

Concessionary per hour - Compass Card, Over 65s, unemployed (casual) 2.20 2.20 0.0%

Club session - Outside area club 4.60 4.70 2.2%

Club concessionary session - Compass Card, Over 65s, unemployed, outside area club 3.50 3.60 2.9%

Season ticket - adult unattended green 83.90 85.60 2.0%

Season ticket - junior 60.10 61.30 2.0%

Hire of woods 3.20 3.30 3.1%

Pavilion - evening committee meetings 34.00 34.70 2.1%

CRICKET

Adult (wicket only) 55.60 56.70 2.0%

Junior (wicket only) 29.50 30.10 2.0%

Changing facilities 34.00 34.70 2.1%

Training strip - Aldrington 17.70 18.10 2.3%

STALLBALL, SOFTBALL & ROUNDERS

First match  booked 26.80 27.30 1.9%

Subsequent matches 16.40 16.70 1.8%

CYCLING

Preston Park Cycle Track per hour - Club Events 31.20 31.80 1.9%

Preston Park Cycle Track per hour - Commercial Events 52.00 53.00 1.9%

Club season (once a week 2.5hrs for 3 months) [VAT exempt] 172.40 175.80 2.0%

TENNIS

Adult court per hour 8.20 8.40 2.4%

Junior court per hour (under 18's) 4.30 4.40 2.3%

Concessionary court per hour Compass Card, Over 65s, unemployed 7.70 7.90 2.6%

Junior court per hour weekday before 5 (including summer holidays) 2.20 2.20 0.0%

Concessionary court per hour weekday before 5 (including summer holidays) 3.70 3.80 2.7%

Season ticket 96.90 98.80 2.0%

Junior season ticket 14.80 15.10 2.0%

Club season ticket 33.00 33.70 2.1%

FOOTBALL

Adult (pitch only) 57.20 58.30 1.9%

Changing facilities 34.00 34.70 2.1%

Junior (pitch only) 16.40 16.70 1.8%

Changing facilities 34.00 34.70 2.1%

Junior training, no requirements 15.30 15.60 2.0%

5/7-a-side @Preston/Waterhall (per pitch) 46.20 47.10 1.9%

PAVILIONS

Pavilion -Casual per day 113.30 115.60 2.0%

Play group Mile Oak per half day [always VAT exempt] 15.30 15.60 2.0%

Table Tennis Mile Oak per evening [VAT exempt] 25.50 26.00 2.0%

RENTS

Waterhall [Brighton Rugby Club VAT exempt] 4,133.00 4,215.70 2.0%

Patcham Utd (Horsdean pitch + pavilion season) 1,976.00 2,015.50 2.0%

Queens Park tennis club (Clubhouse + Courts) 9,771.00 9,966.40 2.0%

Brighton & Hove Cricket Club - Pitch 762.50 777.80 2.0%

Brighton & Hove Cricket Club - Clubroom 762.50 777.80 2.0%

Rottingdean croquet club 1,155.20 1,178.30 2.0%

MISCELLANEOUS

Hot Air Ballooning (flat year rate) 312.70 319.00 2.0%

Cross Country (flat rate, no facilities) 35.40 36.10 2.0%

School Sports (Initial 8x100m) [VAT exempt] 72.70 74.20 2.1%

School Sports (overmarking) [VAT exempt] 27.10 27.60 1.8%

CITY CLEAN

Annual Green Waste Collection 52.00 52.00 0.0%

2019-20

Prices include VAT unless stated

Appendix 5 - Proposed City Environmental Management Fees and Charges 2019-20

2018-19

73



74



Fees and Charges in Life Events

Bereavement Services:  proposed fees and charges 2019/20

Service What is charged for Fee 2018/19
Proposed Fee 

2019/20

Percentage 

Increase/ 

Decrease

Cremation
Adult Cremation

(18 and over)
633 658 4%

Cremation
Child Cremation

(17 or below/Still-birth/Foetal remains)
No Charge No Charge No Charge

Cremation
Contract/Public Health Cremation

(Early Service)
439 457 4%

Cremation

Cremation Only

Unattended

(No Service)

337 377 12%

Cremation

Cremation Only

Attended

(No Service)

- 377
New Service for 

2019/20

Cremation
Body Parts Cremation

(No use of Chapel)
102 104 2%

Cremation

Use of Chapel

on a Weekday

(40 minutes in Chapel)

165 180 9%

Cremation Additional Fee for Saturday Cremation 235 244 4%

Cremation Additional Fee for Sunday or Bank Holiday Cremation 235 475 102%

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Single Photo
11 12 12%

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Simple Slideshow
33 36 12%

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Professional Photo Tribute
60 67 12%

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Checking for Supplied Video
16 18 12%

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Copy of Tribute
13 16 17%

Cremation

Visual Tributes

Each extra 25 Photos 

Or 30 Minutes Work

13 16 17%

Strewing Remains
Witnessed Strewing

Person Cremated at Woodvale
No Charge No Charge No Charge

Strewing Remains
Witnessed Strewing

Other Crematoria
71 72 2%

Appendix 6A

75



Service What is charged for Fee 2018/19
Proposed Fee 

2019/20

Percentage 

Increase/ 

Decrease

Strewing Remains
Witnessed Strewing

At Woodland Valley
91 93 2%

Strewing Remains

Witnessed Strewing

Additional Charge for

Saturday Morning

89 91 2%

Cremated Remains
Temporary storage per month 

(after first 3 months)
33 34 2%

Cremated Remains
Split of Cremated Remains

(Per Casket)
26 13 -48%

Certified Extract from 

Register

Certified Extract

From Register of

Cremations

16 18 12%

Certificate Duplicate Cremation Certificate 16 18 12%

Hire of Chapel
Use of Chapel on a Saturday

(40 minutes in Chapel)
235 244 4%

Hire of Chapel
Use of Chapel on a Sunday or Bank Holiday

(40 minutes in Chapel)
235 475 102%

Grave Purchase Adult 623 698 12%

Grave Purchase
Adult

Woodland Burials
707 792 12%

Grave Purchase

Child

Age limits vary

For B&H - 17 and under

No Charge No Charge No Charge

Interment Depth of 1 911 947 4%

Interment Depth of 2 911 947 4%

Interment Depth of 3 911 947 4%

Interment

Child

Age limits vary

For B&H - 17 and under

No Charge No Charge No Charge

Interment Public Health 448 457 2%

Interment
Large Coffins

Additional Fee
111 113 2%

Interment
Body Parts

(No use of Chapel)
102 143 40%

Biodegradable Coffin
Greenfield Coffin

Economy
188 105 -44%

Appendix 6A

76



Service What is charged for Fee 2018/19
Proposed Fee 

2019/20

Percentage 

Increase/ 

Decrease

Biodegradable Coffin
Greenfield Coffin

Oak
188 145 -23%

Biodegradable Coffin
Greenfield Coffin

White
188 120 -37%

Grave Purchase Cremated Remains 623 635 2%

Grave Purchase

Cremated Remains

Woodland Valley

Natural Burial Site

707 721 2%

Cremated Remains

Interment
Cremated Remains 140 143 2%

Cremated Remains

Interment

Cremated Remains

2nd interment at same time
70 71 2%

Cremated Remains

Interment

Additional Digging Fee

Per Foot

(After 3 Feet)

65 66 2%

Cremated Remains

Scattering Ashes

On a Grave

Mondays-Fridays

91 93 2%

Cremated Remains

Scattering Ashes

On a Grave

Additional Fee Saturdays

247 252 2%

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Wooden Casket

With Name Plate
87 88 2%

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Wooden Casket

(Double Size)
129 132 2%

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

NatureUrn® 

in Oatmeal or Green 
43 43 2%

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Brown Acorn Urn 43 43 2%

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Woodvale Cardboard Casket

(if not cremated at Woodvale)
13 13 2%

Certified Extract from 

Register

Certified Extract

From Register of

Burials

17 17 2%

Grave Markers
Replacement Grave Marker

Cast Aluminium
38 38 2%

Grave Deed
Transfer of Exclusive Right of Burial

By Probate
63 64 2%

Grave Deed
Transfer of Exclusive Right of Burial

By Statutory Declaration
105 107 2%

Grave Search Prices from 22 22 2%

Appendix 6A

77



Service What is charged for Fee 2018/19
Proposed Fee 

2019/20

Percentage 

Increase/ 

Decrease

Interment

Weekend Prices
Interment on Saturdays (Depth of 1, 2 or 3) 294 329 12%

Interment

Weekend Prices

Interment on Sundays or Bank Holidays

(Depth of 1, 2 or 3)

Subject to staff availability

294 329 12%

Interment

Weekend Prices

Cremated Remains

Interment on Saturdays
247 277 12%

Interment

Weekend Prices

Cremated Remains

Interment on Sundays or Bank Holidays

Subject to staff availability

247 277 12%

Non Resident Charges
Method of Additional Charge

(eg 2 x resident price)
x 2 x 2 x2

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Full Permit

Adult

Single Headstone

113 115 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Full Permit

Adult

Double Headstone

225 230 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Child's Grave 51 52 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Tablet for Lawn Memorial Cemetery 107 109 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Kerbset Including Headstone

7ft x 7ft
248 253 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Kerbset Including Headstone

7ft x 3ft
202 206 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Kerbset Including Headstone

4ft6ins x 2ft
113 115 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Additional Cover Slab or Chippings 117 119 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Additional Inscription

Adult
45 46 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Additional Inscription

Child
18 18 2%

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Vase with Inscription 58 59 2%

Appendix 6A

78



Fees and Charges in Life Events

Bereavement Services:  Benchmarking

Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Cremation
Adult Cremation

(18 and over)
633 845 660 744 773 688 -

Cremation
Child Cremation

(17 or below/Still-birth/Foetal remains)

Up to 16

No Charge
No Charge

0-12 No Charge

13-17 £370
No Charge No Charge No Charge -

Cremation
Contract/Public Health Cremation

(Early Service)
469 625 - - - 569 -

Cremation

Cremation Only

Unattended

(No Service)

469

445

315 (300+)

360 (150-300)

405 (50-150)

- 519 528 - -

Cremation

Cremation Only

Attended

(No Service)

469 - - - - - -

Cremation
Body Parts Cremation

(No use of Chapel)
263 - - - 28 86 -

Cremation

Use of Chapel

on a Weekday

(40 minutes in Chapel)

317 250 165 115 275
115 to

162

125 to

250

Cremation Additional Fee for Saturday Cremation 317

Appendix 6B

79



Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Cremation Additional Fee for Sunday or Bank Holiday Cremation 633

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Single Photo

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Simple Slideshow

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Professional Photo Tribute

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Checking for Supplied Video

Cremation
Visual Tributes

Copy of Tribute

Cremation

Visual Tributes

Each extra 25 Photos 

Or 30 Minutes Work

Strewing Remains
Witnessed Strewing

Person Cremated at Woodvale
- 95 45 25 51 110 -

Strewing Remains
Witnessed Strewing

Other Crematoria
- 125

30 to

85
80 100 110

150 to

225

Strewing Remains
Witnessed Strewing

At Woodland Valley
- - - - - - -

Appendix 6B

80



Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Strewing Remains

Witnessed Strewing

Additional Charge for

Saturday Morning

- 120 20 - - - -

Cremated Remains
Temporary storage per month 

(after first 3 months)
- - 40 26 26 52 -

Cremated Remains
Split of Cremated Remains

(Per Casket)
33 - - - - - -

Certified Extract from 

Register

Certified Extract

From Register of

Cremations

- 50 - 25 - 28 -

Certificate Duplicate Cremation Certificate 24 - - - - - -

Hire of Chapel
Use of Chapel on a Saturday

(40 minutes in Chapel)
633 - - - - - 325

Hire of Chapel
Use of Chapel on a Sunday or Bank Holiday

(40 minutes in Chapel)
633 - - - - - 325

Grave Purchase Adult
950 single

2,186 double
815 850

865 to

1649

805 to

2500

816 to

1316
-

Grave Purchase
Adult

Woodland Burials
- - - 662 - 412

995 to

3495

Grave Purchase

Child

Age limits vary

For B&H - 17 and under

327 120
325

425
No Charge

510 to

600
130

550

0-2 years

Appendix 6B

81



Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Interment Depth of 1 846 1325 870 725 755 626 550

Interment Depth of 2 1130 1325 950 670 755 626 -

Interment Depth of 3 - 1325 - 670 1020 626 -

Interment

Child

Age limits vary

For B&H - 17 and under

No Charge No Charge
0-12 No Charge

13-17 £475
No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Interment Public Health - - 920 - - - -

Interment
Large Coffins

Additional Fee
- - - x 2 - - -

Interment
Body Parts

(No use of Chapel)
- - - - 102 - -

Biodegradable Coffin
Greenfield Coffin

Economy
- - - - - - -

Biodegradable Coffin
Greenfield Coffin

Oak
- - - - - - -

Biodegradable Coffin
Greenfield Coffin

White
- - - - - - -

Appendix 6B

82



Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Grave Purchase Cremated Remains - 390 515 713 - 665 -

Grave Purchase

Cremated Remains

Woodland Valley

Natural Burial Site

- - - - - -
675 to

1195

Cremated Remains

Interment
Cremated Remains 119 230 190 235 220 110 125

Cremated Remains

Interment

Cremated Remains

2nd interment at same time
- - - - - - -

Cremated Remains

Interment

Additional Digging Fee

Per Foot

(After 3 Feet)

- - - - - - -

Cremated Remains

Scattering Ashes

On a Grave

Mondays-Fridays

- - -
49 to

80
- - -

Cremated Remains

Scattering Ashes

On a Grave

Additional Fee Saturdays

- - - - - - -

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Wooden Casket

With Name Plate
- - - - - - -

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Wooden Casket

(Double Size)
- - - - - - -

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

NatureUrn® 

in Oatmeal or Green 
- - - - - - -

Appendix 6B

83



Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Brown Acorn Urn - - - - - - -

Biodegradable 

Containers for Ashes 

Burials

Woodvale Cardboard Casket

(if not cremated at Woodvale)
- - - - - - -

Certified Extract from 

Register

Certified Extract

From Register of

Burials

- - - - - - -

Grave Markers
Replacement Grave Marker

Cast Aluminium
- - - - - - -

Grave Deed
Transfer of Exclusive Right of Burial

By Probate
74 75 55 - 52 - -

Grave Deed
Transfer of Exclusive Right of Burial

By Statutory Declaration
74 75 70 - 52 - -

Grave Search Prices from 24 25 5 - - - -

Interment

Weekend Prices
Interment on Saturdays (Depth of 1, 2 or 3) - - - 262 - -

250 to

945

Interment

Weekend Prices

Interment on Sundays or Bank Holidays

(Depth of 1, 2 or 3)

Subject to staff availability

- - - 262 - - -

Interment

Weekend Prices

Cremated Remains

Interment on Saturdays
- - - - - -

250 to

945

Appendix 6B

84



Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Interment

Weekend Prices

Cremated Remains

Interment on Sundays or Bank Holidays

Subject to staff availability

- - - - - -
250 to

945

Non Resident Charges
Method of Additional Charge

(eg 2 x resident price)
- x 2 x 2

x 2

x 1.5 for CR
- x 2 -

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Full Permit

Adult

Single Headstone

300 190 - 145 275
89 to

140
-

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Full Permit

Adult

Double Headstone

300 - - 290 275
89 to

140
-

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Child's Grave 160 95 - No Charge -

89 to

140
-

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Tablet for Lawn Memorial Cemetery 300 125 - 145 163 89 -

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Kerbset Including Headstone

7ft x 7ft
300 395 - 290 - - -

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Kerbset Including Headstone

7ft x 3ft
300 395 - 145 158

140 to

165
-

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Kerbset Including Headstone

4ft6ins x 2ft
166 198 - No Charge 107 89 -

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Additional Cover Slab or Chippings 140 - - - - - -

Appendix 6B

85



Service What is charged for

Downs 

Crematorium 

Fees from 

16/04/18

(Burials from 

01/10/17)

Adur & 

Worthing Fees 

from 01/01/18

Eastbourne Fees 

from 01/04/17

(still current at 

23/07/18)

Bournemouth

Fees from

01/04/18

Poole

Fees from

01/04/18

Hastings 

Fees from 

15/01/18

Clayton Wood

Woodland

Fees at

03/09/18

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Additional Inscription

Adult
140 65 - 50 56 89 -

Memorial 

Permit Fee

Additional Inscription

Child
140 65 - 50 56 89 -

Memorial 

Permit Fee
Vase with Inscription 140 - - 50 56 - -

Appendix 6B

86



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 
  

Agenda Item 57 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: City Environment Modernisation Update  

Date of Meeting: 22 January 2019 

Report of: Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture 

Contact Officer: Name: Lynsay Cook Tel: 01273 292448 

 Email: lynsay.cook@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE    
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 At Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee on 9 October 2018 

Members were presented with an update on the City Environment Modernisation 
Programme. It was agreed that a report updating progress on all matters be 
brought to the 22 January 2019 Environment, Transport & Sustainability 
Committee. This report provides the update and a RAG status for each of the 
projects. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee note the progress made 

through the City Environment Modernisation Programme. 
 

2.2 That Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee note the outcomes of 
the communal recycling trial in the Montpelier area of the city as detailed in 
Appendix 1. 

 
2.3 That Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee note the activity 

planned as part of the Increasing Recycling Project, including the education and 
information campaign, as detailed in Appendix 2. 

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

Increasing recycling (amber) 
 
3.1 From August to October 2018, a communal recycling bin trial took place in the 

Montpelier area of the city. The purpose of the trial was to identify potential 
solutions to reduce high levels of contamination found in communal recycling 
rounds. Cityclean also took the opportunity to better understand how recycling 
can be made easier for residents and how recycling information can be 
presented in the most effective way. 

 
3.2 The trial involved installing 29 green dry mixed recycling bins and seven red 

glass recycling bins, replacing the black containers. All bins were kept the same 
size and in the same locations. The bins served 1,761 properties and 
approximately 12% of the CM3 communal recycling round. 

87



 
3.3 Before the trial began, an information leaflet was sent to all properties on the 

roads affected by the trial. This detailed the purpose of the trial, pictures of the 
trial bins, the items that can be placed in each of the recycling bins, and how 
residents can provide feedback on the trial. An online feedback form was created 
for residents to share their feedback and #MakingRecyclingEasier was supplied 
for people to use social media to provide feedback. 
 

3.4 Arrangements were made to sample the recycling from the trial area once a 
week. Weekly reports were provided by Veolia showing the recycling quality from 
the sample. Cityclean used a separate vehicle to ensure the contents were not 
mixed with the regular bins from the remaining CM3 round. 
 

3.5 The results of the trial, including recycling quality, feedback and next steps are in 
Appendix 1. 
 

3.6 A trial is also being explored for litter bin recycling. Cityclean, in partnership with 
the Friends of Hove Lagoon (FHL) and the Big Beach Café, are trialling a 
recycling litter bin scheme to try and capture recyclable litter. Launched on 8 
September 2018, three dual recycling litter bins have been placed in the lagoon 
area. The bins are closely monitored by the FHL and staff at the Café to ensure 
there is no contamination in the bins before the material gets collected by 
Cityclean. FHL and the Café are responsible for decanting the litter bin into a 
larger 1100 litre bins ready for operatives to collect. The trial is initially three 
months long but as the contamination levels have been reasonable and 
potentially solvable, the recommendation would be to extend it over onto the 
summer of 2019 and see how it could work during a busier period, to ultimately 
inform what may be achievable city-wide. 
 
Commercial services (amber) 

 
3.7 Consultation with staff and trade unions has been completed regarding the 

creation of the Commercial Team and recruitment has started. 
 

3.8 The trade waste terms and conditions have been updated to provide a more 
robust service. All customers will be written to informing them that following a 
review of costs and current charges, prices will increase from 1 April 2019. 
Cityclean has completed a capacity audit to take on new customers. Those on 
the waiting list will be contacted over the coming months. 
 

3.9 Improvements are being made to the trade waste sack service, including updated 
terms and conditions and improved data management. This is a service the 
Commercial Team will be looking to expand as it provides the additional benefit 
of reducing the number of bins stored on the highway. 
 

3.10 The new digital application to manage the garden waste service has been 
launched which has improved the customer experience and the back office 
functionality. Cityclean has completed a capacity audit to identify the rounds 
which have the scope to take new customers from the waiting list. Customers will 
be contacted over the coming months. 
 

88



3.11 Veolia has recently confirmed that garden waste customers could, if they wish, 
put some types of food waste out for collection within their garden waste bins. 
The proposal would have the benefit of removing a further percentage of waste 
from the municipal waste stream to be turned into a useful product via in-vessel 
composting. The practicalities of this option need to be carefully explored and if a 
secure, hygienic system can be devised, it will be included within a further report 
to the committee on increasing recycling. Meanwhile, the council will be making a 
response to the forthcoming consultation on the government’s Resources and 
Waste Strategy that is expected to include proposals for food waste collection 
and Members will be kept informed. 
 

3.12 Work is still to be completed to improve the approach to waste management at 
events. Work to be completed includes the drafting of terms and conditions to 
make it clear what customers can expect from the council and what the council 
expects in return and a charging schedule. 

 
Public conveniences (green) 

 
3.13 At Policy, Resources & Growth Committee on 11 October 2018, Committee 

agreed for City Environment to access £550,000 from the Capital Investment 
Programme to refurbish 12 public toilets sites, as well as, introduce a 30p charge 
at 11 public convenience sites across the city.  

 

3.14 A Project Team has been formed with representatives from City Environment, 
Premises and Healthmatic and four priority sites have been identified. It is 
anticipated that the refurbishment of these four sites will be complete by 31 
March 2019. Healthmatic are preparing specifications and drawings for the four 
sites. The capital investment is being profiled in accordance with the needs of 
each site. The whole programme of work is expected to be complete by March 
2020. 

 
Environmental enforcement (green) 

 
3.15 At Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee on 27 November 2018, 

Committee agreed that the environmental enforcement service be delivered in-
house from the end of the current contract period. Committee also approved the 
Environmental Enforcement Framework which set out how the service will be 
delivered from the commencement of the new in-house service. 
 

3.16 A project team has been established to manage the transition and 
implementation to the new arrangements. Representatives from City 
Environment, Communications, HR, IT&D and Legal are meeting on a monthly 
basis to ensure the project is on track. Working groups have been established to 
focus on key areas of change, including TUPE and staff engagement, IT systems 
and service delivery, to ensure the necessary activities are completed for the 
service to commence on 1 March 2019. 
 

3.17 As part of this, an educational, engagement and communications plan will be 
developed to ensure residents, businesses and visitors are aware of their 
responsibilities regarding environmental enforcement and the implications of 
what may happen if they are found to be committing an offence. This plan will be 
deployed from 1 March 2019, when the service is managed by the council. 

89



 
3.18 The Graffiti Reduction Strategy was agreed at Environment, Transport & 

Sustainability Committee on 27 November 2018. Work is underway to develop a 
delivery plan with partners. City Environment will also be developing a Flytipping 
Reduction Strategy and education campaign in the future. 

 
Customer experience (amber) 

 
3.19 Over the last few months, City Environment has been scoping this project, 

seeking advice and guidance from other council contact centres and the 
corporate Customer Experience Programme. 
 

3.20 Work has started to improve the information flow between the Contact Centre 
and the operational element of the service, to enhance the information shared 
with residents, particularly with regards collections. This has included utilising the 
technology available and presenting information in a clearer way. 
 

3.21 City Environment is making better use of the data available to understand more 
about the customer experience. Using this data, such as: reason for telephone 
calls, reasons for emails, contact volumes and response times, City Environment 
is designing improvements to respond in the best way to customers and design 
services to make it easier for customers to contact the service. 
 

3.22 Improvements are also being made to the website and digital transactions. This 
includes new online content as part of the development and launch of the new 
council website. Working with Digital First, more transactions can be completed 
online. Using online forms is the quickest way to contact Cityclean as the request 
in sent straight to operational crews. 
 

3.23 The service is also making changes to the way the Environment Contact Centre 
operates. To date, this has included improvements to how the Cityclean mailbox 
is managed, the development of a number of Standard Operating Procedures to 
ensure consistency of customer contact and improved IT hardware. 
 

3.24 Performance relating to complaint responses has seen an improvement for 
quarter 3. Significant effort has been put into providing both a better service to 
residents and improving how the service manages complaints. The results of 
these efforts can be seen in the table below, with work continuing to maintain this 
performance:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90



 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
Q1 
2018/19 

Q2 
2018/19 

Q3 
2018/19 

Stage 1 complaints 

Number of 
complaints 

278 294 445 207 167 102 

Number of 
complaints upheld 

135 180 341 187 156 90 

Average response 
time (days) 

14 16 11 41 22 10 

% responded within 
10 days 

57% 57% 56.0% 10% 23% 68% 

% responded within 
20 days 

83% 76% 95% 27% 47% 92% 

Stage 2 complaints 

Number of 
complaints 

15 16 12 15 10 4 

Number of 
complaints upheld 

2 4 1 9 7 0 

 
3.25 City Environment has appointed three Customer Ambassadors as part of the 

corporate Customer Experience Programme. Working with colleagues from 
across the council to embed a One Council approach, the Ambassadors will 
receive training and peer support to enable City Environment colleagues to 
improve the customer experience and increase customer satisfaction. 

 
Management Framework (green) 
 

3.26 An additional temporary Head of Operations is in post to provide increased 
capacity to deliver the modernisation programme, and the vacant Operations 
Manager post has been recruited to, bringing the management team to its full 
complement. The new temporary Head of Operations is working alongside the 
existing Head of Service, with the responsibilities split to focus on key priorities 
over the next 12 months. The new role is focusing on developing and embedding 
the Management Framework and developing the skills and capacity within the 
management structure of the operational element of the service. The existing 
Head of Service is concentrating on budget management and a financial 
recovery plan for the service, leading and delivery the round restructures and 
recruiting and embedding the Commercial Team.  
 

3.27 The Management Framework is being established to deliver regular one-to-ones 
and PDPs with the management team. Team Leaders have received training on 
holding PDPs, and from January, PDPs will be rolled out to frontline operatives. 
The Behaviour Framework is being adapted for use within City Environment to 
ensure the right conversations take place regarding behaviour and expectations. 
Equalities training is being developed for staff to ensure all staff understand their 
responsibilities regarding equality and inclusion.  Future areas of focus include 
improvements to the organisation of attendance management and agreeing 
Standard Operating Procedures for key activities. 

 
Round restructures (green) 
 

3.28 The last significant round restructures took place in 2013, with best practice 
stating work schedules should be reviewed every two years. Since 2013, there 
have been a number of small local changes that have made a small difference, 
but not addressed the fairness of the work distribution across the service. To 

91



address this, a comprehensive review of rounds will be completed, focusing on 
kerbside refuse and recycling and communal refuse and recycling. 

 
3.29 The work has started and is involving Cityclean staff and trade unions. Members 

will be updated as the work progresses. At present, it is envisaged that any 
changes will be implemented from 1 September 2019. Residents will be given 
sufficient notice of any changes to their collection arrangements.  
 

3.30 Some round restructure work has already been completed. A recycling round 
designed to service roads which are difficult to access was restructured in 
December to accommodate more roads where there are access issues. It is 
anticipated this will reduce missed collections on these streets as the smaller 
vehicle will be able to gain access. 

 
Recycling wheelie bins (green) 

 
3.31 The grey wheeled bins for recycling have proved popular with residents and are 

helping to increase recycling rates further. However, they are not suitable for all 
streets so an audit is underway to determine which type of containment is 
appropriate for each road across the city – a 240 litre wheelie bin, a 140 litre bin, 
a box or a communal bin. Each street is being considered against a set of criteria 
to identify whether a wheelie bin is appropriate. The most important factor is that 
every household in the street must have the same type of container to allow the 
collection teams to work efficiently and effectively.  
 

3.32 Once a round is audited, recycling wheelie bins will be rolled out to those streets 
deemed suitable. Residents will receive a letter informing them of the changes 
(there will be no changes to their collection day). Ward members will also receive 
an update. Accompanying the letter will be a leaflet detailing what can and 
cannot be put in the recycling bin. This leaflet has been developed and informed 
by the Increasing Recycling Project. 
 

3.33 The data will be used on the council website so when ordering a new container, 
residents can only request what has been agreed for their street. Similarly, the 
Environment Contact Centre will use the data when a resident telephones and 
requests a new container. 

 
Communal bins (green) 

 
3.34 The council is working on a set of communal bin guidelines to inform future 

placement of bins. The guidelines will be informed by feedback from a range of 
stakeholders and reflecting on the experience of the existing placement of 
communal refuse, recycling and glass bins. Following this, a communal bin audit 
will be completed, using the agreed guidelines, which means there may be a 
need to reposition some bins, particularly if they are causing a hazard. 
 

3.35 To complement this and linked to the Increasing Recycling Project, the type and 
design of communal containment will be analysed. 

 
 
 
 

92



Health & Safety (amber) 
 
3.36 A Health & Safety Advisor started in January 2019, funded through the 

Modernisation Fund, to improve all aspects of health and safety for City 
Environment. A Health & Safety Improvement Plan will be developed in 
consultation with staff, the trade unions and the management team. The Plan will 
cover areas such as depot safety, PPE requirements and observance, team 
safety plans, risks assessments and health surveillance. 
 

3.37 The nurse-led health checks have been very well received and more sessions 
have been arranged. 

 
Other activities 

 
3.38 Work is continuing to improve the management of existing contracts, including 

regular contract meetings, monitoring of KPIs and improved management of 
complaints and enquiries. For contracts about to expire, options appraisals are 
being completed to determine the best delivery option moving forward. 
 

3.39 The Cityclean fleet is in the process of being reviewed. Once this is complete, the 
fleet replacement programme will be updated. 

 
4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The City Environment Modernisation Programme is developing a sustainable 

future for City Environment services in Brighton & Hove in the context of reducing 
council budgets, increases in customer demand and an expanding service offer. 
Within this, work is taking place to improve performance on refuse, recycling, 
garden and trade waste collections, as well as adopt a more commercial 
approach to managing income generating services. Without the continuation of 
the Programme, there is a risk that improvements will not be delivered and there 
will be further pressures on City Environment budget. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Previous community engagement and consultation activities in relation to City 

Environment service are detailed in the committee reports listed as Background 
Documents below. 
 

5.2 Moving forward, engagement and consultation required as part of the 
Modernisation Programme will take place on a project-by-project basis. 

 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 This report provides Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee with a 

progress report on the Modernisation Programme as agreed by Committee in 
October 2018. 

 
6.2 A significant amount of work has been completed, but there is still a long way to 

go. The additional capacity provided by the Head of Operations and the Health & 
Safety Advisor means the drive to deliver improvements can be enhanced. 

 

93



7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 The communal recycling trial was financed from within the City Environment 

Management budget. The financial benefits of the trial are being explored and at 
this point in time the complexity of the payment mechanism within the current 
contract makes it difficult to quantify any financial savings that may be delivered 
through Dry Mixed Recycling. 
 

7.2 The recruitment of a Commercial Waste Team is estimated to cost £143,000 
including on-costs. There is currently no budget for this team and will need to be 
funded through additional income generated through future commercial activities. 
 

7.3 Amendments to fees and charges for the Commercial Trade Waste service are 
reviewed and reported back at least annually. Price rises will be effected from 1 
April 2019 to reflect the costs and current charges for the service. 
 

7.4 Following a review both the Commercial Trade Waste and Garden Waste 
services have had considerable work undertaken to ensure that the services are 
operating efficiently with revised income projections due to be reflected in the 
latest TBM09 report 

 
7.5 Any surpluses generated from the Garden Waste and Trade Waste commercial 

activities will be reinvested back into waste and recycling services within City 
Environment. This re-investment should be factored into the Medium Term  
Financial Strategy and budget process for Economy, Environment & Culture. 
 

7.6 Approval for capital investment into the public conveniences has been approved 
at Policy, Resources & Growth Committee and has been factored into the 
council’s Capital Investment Programme. The income generated from the 
introduction of a charge for public conveniences will be monitored and reported 
within the Targeted Budget Management process. 

 
7.7 The Environmental Enforcement service will need continued monitoring of costs 

and income projections when it is introduced in-house from 1 March 2019. 
 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Rob Allen Date: 09/01/19 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.8 Although there are no direct legal implications arising from the report’s 

recommendations the legal background to the matters set out in the report can 
be found in the reports listed as Background Documents below. 

   
 Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward                                      Date: 27/12/18 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.9 Equalities implications in relation to City Environment services are detailed in the 

committee reports listed as Background Documents below. 
 

94



 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.10 The garden waste scheme has increased the recycling rate by 1.1%, and 

contributes to a reduction in the amount of garden waste disposed of within 
residual waste. 
 

7.11 Further sustainability implications in relation to City Environment services are 
detailed in the committee reports listed as Background Documents below. 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Results of communal recycling trial 
 
2. Increasing Recycling Project – next steps to explore 
 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. Environmental Enforcement Framework Report to Environment, Transport & 

Sustainability Committee on 27 November 2018 
 

2. Graffiti Reduction Strategy Report to Environment, Transport & Sustainability 
Committee on 27 November 2018 

 
3. Public Convenience Report to Policy, Resources & Growth Committee on 11 

October 2018 
 
4. City Environmental Management – Modernisation Programme Update Report to 

Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee on 9 October 2018 
 
5. City Environmental Management – Modernisation Programme Update Report to 

Policy, Resources & Growth Committee on 12 July 2018 
 
6. Update on Chargeable Garden Waste Collection Service Report to Environment, 

Transport & Sustainability Committee on 28 June 2016 
 
7. Proposals for a Chargeable Garden Waste Collection Service Report to 

Environment, Transport & Sustainability Committee on 13 October 2015 
 
8. Cityclean Service Plan and Priorities Report to Policy & Resources Committee on 

9 July 2015 

95



96



Appendix 1: results of communal recycling trial 
 
1. Background 

 
1.1. From August to October 2018, a communal recycling bin trial took place in the 

Montpelier area of the city. The purpose of the trial was to identify potential 
solutions to reducing the high levels of contamination found in communal recycling 
rounds. Cityclean also took the opportunity to better understand how recycling can 
be made easier for residents and how recycling information can be presented in 
the most effective way. 

 
1.2. The trial involved installing 29 green Dry Mixed Recycling (DMR) bins and seven 

red glass recycling bins, replacing the black containers. All bins were kept the 
same size and in the same locations. The bins served 1,761 properties and 
approximately 12% of the CM3 communal round. 

 
1.3. Before the trial began, an information leaflet was sent to all properties on the roads 

affected by the trial. This detailed the purpose of the trial, pictures of the trial bins, 
the items that can be placed in each of the recycling bins, and how residents can 
provide feedback on the trial. An online feedback form was created for residents to 
share their feedback and #MakingRecyclingEasier was supplied for people to use 
social media to provide feedback. 

 
1.4. Arrangements were made to sample the recycling from the trial area once a week. 

Weekly reports were provided by Veolia showing the recycling quality from the 
sample. Cityclean used a separate vehicle to ensure the contents were not mixed 
with the regular bins from the remaining CM3 round. 

 
2. Trial findings 

 
2.1. The results from the trial sampling are: 

 

Period Location 
Number of 
samples 

Average 
contamination 
(%) 

Samples 
containing >10% 
contamination 

October 2017 
to July 2018 

CM3 26 18.5% 23/26 (89%) 

1 August to 6 
November 
2018 

CM3: no change to 
bins 

14 18.1% 12/14 (86%) 

CM3: trial bin area 14 13.3% 10/14 (71%) 

CM3: all bins 28 15.7% 22/28 (79%) 

 
2.2. Following analysis with East Sussex County Council (ESCC), the following 

conclusions have been drawn: 
o The trial bins show a lower input contamination rate (13.3%) compared to 

pre-trial (18.5%) and bins in the CM3 round that remained unchanged 
(18.1%) 

o This improvement of 5.2 percentage points equates to a 28% reduction in 
contaminated tonnage in the trial bins 

o The sampling results from the bins that remained unchanged in the CM3 
area is only marginally better than before. This supports the view the 
improvement in CM3 is not simply a reflection of the background trend. 

97



o Cityclean and ESCC were surprised at the frequency of exceptionally 
contaminated bins – the highest was 44% on 23 October (existing design of 
bin); the highest for the trial bins was 26% on 14 September. This 
contamination may be due to residents leaving bags of general waste, 
unwanted household items and fly-tipping in the recycling containers. In 
some cases, residents were able to unlock to bins to deposit bags and large 
items, bypassing the aperture 

 
2.3. The graph below shows the quality of the material during the trial. In weeks 2, 10, 

12 and 13 contamination levels were less than 10%, with 93.8% the highest quality 
in week 2. 

 

 
 

2.4. As the trial progressed, some changes were made based on feedback from 
residents and crews. This included: 
o Placing “no glass” stickers on all the green DMR bins; this however, did not 

lead to an improvement in reducing the contamination of glass in the mixed 
recycling bins (week 6) 

o Replacing triangle locks to padlocks with provide extra security and reduce 
the likelihood of contaminated rubbish being placed in recycling bins (week 8) 

o Removing the brushes from the DMR bins; this did lead to an increase in 
recycling quality and an increase in the weight of recyclable material in the 
bins (week 12) 

 
3. Feedback 

 
3.1. A drop-in session was held during October, inviting residents of the trial area to 

share their feedback about the coloured bins and updated bin signage with 
Cityclean officers. Surveying also took place in the trial area. 

 
3.2 Results from the survey include: 

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

M
at

er
ia

l q
u

al
it

y 
(%

) 

Trial week 

Quality % (sample)

Linear (Quality % (sample))

98



o 33% strongly agreed or agreed that the different colour bins used in the trial 
has helped / would help them recycle more; 37% strongly disagreed or 
disagreed; further analysis suggests this is the actual colours used in the 
trial, rather than differentiating the colours 

o 67% strongly agreed or agreed that the updated signage has helped them 
better understand what can and cannot be recycled in Brighton & Hove. 

This demonstrates that the trial was partially successful in identifying potential 
solutions to reduce levels of contamination and identifying how recycling 
information can be presented in a better way. 

 
3.3 Furthermore,  

o 60% did not know they could recycle metal jar lids 
o 57% did not know they could recycle aerosols 
o 40% thought they could recycle pots, tubs and trays 
o 33% thought they could recycle tetra-pak cartons 

This demonstrates there is a significant amount of education and communication 
to be completed across the city. 

 
3.4 Further notable feedback from residents, Members and crews include: 

o While different colours are helpful because they make the distinction between 
the bins, the colours used in trial area are not suitable for conservation areas; 
darker, more muted colours would be more appropriate, or coloured lids only 

o The brush on the aperture prevents recycling being placed in the bin; there 
were suggestions that the brush is removed or the aperture is larger 

o Locking the bin is restrictive 
o The updated signage is much clearer and easier to understand 
o More communication on recycling is needed e.g. distribution of leaflets, what 

can and cannot be recycled, explain what contamination is and why it is a 
problem 

o Some bins are too far away and better communication of location of recycling 
sites would be helpful e.g. signs on bins directing to relevant locations  

o More frequent recycling collections would help increase the amount of waste 
sent for recycling 

 
4. Citywide implications 

 
4.1. The results of the trial provide insight into what the citywide implications are, 

including the financial impact. 
 

4.2. 30% of DMR in Brighton & Hove comes from communal bins. This means that 
about 4,000 tonnes out of 13,400 tonnes of DMR is from communal bins. The 
average contamination rate across the communal bin areas is 14.1%, which 
equates to 567 tonnes of contamination in communal bins citywide. A 28% 
reduction in contaminated tonnage would reduce contamination to 408 tonnes, 
lowering the contamination rate from 14.4% to 10.1%. 

 
4.3. However, it is a big assumption that the 28% reduction seen in a small sample 

area can be repeated in other communal bin areas. CM3 has greater scope to 
improve because it is more highly contaminated than other communal bin areas in 
the city. Assuming a smaller reduction of 20% would lower the citywide 
contamination rate for communal bins to approximately 11.3%, closer to 
contractual compliance. 

99



 
4.4. Using the analysis to understand the financial impact is complicated due to the 

payment mechanism within the contract. 
 

4.5. The key issue is process lost, where the system is not 100% efficient at extracting 
recyclable material. Some process loss is unavoidable, but greater levels of 
contamination cause more process loss by making the sorting process less 
efficient. The volume of process loss is significant – it can be as much as the 
amount of contamination present in recycling at the sampling stage. 

 
4.6. The payment mechanism means that only a reduction in process loss results in a 

direct financial saving. Analysis by ESCC estimated that each one percentage 
point reduction in process loss would save around £5-10k through increased 
recycling and income from the sale of the material. However, it is difficult to 
quantify the improvement in process loss as a result of less contamination, making 
any savings figure hard to gauge. 

 
4.7. The main benefit of reducing input contamination to below 10% is compliance with 

contractual requirements. There is a risk that if contamination levels are too high, 
communal recycling bins will be rejected resulting in a loss of £67k per annum due 
to loss of clean recycling in rejected loads. 

 
4.8. Lower levels of contamination also helps to reduce the risk of end re-processors 

rejecting loads. This is particularly a risk for paper and cardboard. Whilst the 
immediate financial benefit appears small, the risk of recyclate being rejected is a 
real threat with significant financial consequences. 

 
5. Next steps 

 
5.1. The trial has provided the Project Team with a number of lessons learnt for future 

projects of this nature. 
 

5.2. In addition, the results and feedback demonstrate further consideration is needed 
regarding the design of bins. The colour of the bin and / or lid is one aspect; further 
consideration needs to be given to locking mechanisms and the size of the 
aperture:  
o unlocked bins makes it easier for residents to dispose of their recycling, but 

increases the risk of contamination 
o a bigger aperture makes it easier for residents recycle, but again increases 

the risk of the recycling being contaminated 
 
6.2 Using the feedback and lessons learned, a number of potential next steps have 

been identified. These are contained in Appendix 2 and will be considered for 
inclusion in the Increasing Recycling Project. 

 

100



Appendix 2: Increasing Recycling Project – next steps to explore 

 

Theme Action 

Communication 

Recycling campaign 

Introduce an ongoing recycling campaign for the city, aimed at educating people who live, study, work, are visiting or 

own a business in the city, on how to recycle and dispose of their waste correctly and lawfully.  

Work closely with Veolia to ensure all relevant information to create the campaign is known before any communications 

is created. 

Social media 

Develop a social media campaign and an active online profile. 

Share tips and tricks for recycling and reuse. 

Use info-graphic cards in social media posts. 

Time social media releases to engage with shopping and entertainment behaviour e.g. releasing guides to what can be 

recycled on Saturday mornings before the weekly shop or what happens to food and drink packaging just before an 

outdoor event.  

Website 

Ensure all recycling information on the website is up to date.  

Use informative text, pictorial, easy to understand information.  

Create interactive maps to show where the nearest recycling points are for a range of materials. 

Create an A-Z of the different types of items people might question on how to recycle/dispose of. 

Assign an owner to each webpage and make arrangements for regular review. 

Explain clearly: 

 what happens to recycling after it has been collected 

 why certain plastics cannot be recycled with the council 

 how recycling is calculated.  

Many residents in the city are interested in the information and can be misinformed elsewhere if the information is not 

readily available on the council website. 

Internal 

communications 
Engage with members of staff; circulate information about how to recycle properly. 

Seasonal waste Use periods when waste created may be higher, such as Christmas (packaging, wrapping etc.) and summer (garden 

101



Theme Action 

waste, litter) to tailor the campaign messaging. 

Mobile application 

Explore options for creating a recycling app if there’s evidence that this would enable the council to reach out to an 

audience who heavily relies on mobile technology for information (see mobile application designed by Southampton City 

Council). 

Vehicle advertising Utilise collection vehicle side panels to advertise campaign messages. 

Collaboration 

City Environment 

Improve the procedure for managing contaminated recycling receptacles e.g. 

 Educating collection crews on what to do if they find a contaminated container 

 Distribute appropriate information to households and businesses with contaminated bins, explaining what can 

and cannot go in a recycling bin 

Educate all City Environment staff on recycling; what can and cannot be recycled in Brighton & Hove. 

Stakeholders 

Identify all stakeholders who can assist the council in creating a meaningful campaign e.g. 

 Council services: Environment Contact Centre, Seafront Team, City Planning, Sustainability Team, Visit 

Brighton, Housing etc. who may speak to residents and visitors on a regular basis and may have a good 

understanding of frequent issues and barriers to correct recycling and waste disposal. 

 Collection crews: to share their experience and knowledge of barriers to recycling and public behaviours 

observed. 

 Community groups and residents’ associations: to share their experience and knowledge, as well as act as a 

conduit to share council messages. 

Steering group 
Set-up a steering group and invite essential stakeholders to assist the council to create a meaningful campaign, 

involving the right people and based on insightful feedback.   

BHCC services 

Work with other council services to identify joint communication opportunities to maintain the message about recycling 

e.g. Private Sector Housing, Electoral Services and Council Tax. 

Engage with council services (Housing, Estates, Social Care) to support the nudge towards recycling and reducing 

waste as part of their everyday interactions with residents.  

 

 

102



Theme Action 

Outreach 

Community 

champions 

Create a scheme whereby residents become recycling champions for their local area.  

Support champions to deliver outreach activity in the community where people can go to find out more about recycling 

and waste, and take away useful giveaway items available.  

Cityclean needs to ensure the approach adopted is sustainable and can address the issues caused by transient 

populations. 

Promotional material 

Produce useful giveaway material to improve the approach to recycling e.g.  

 Pictorial leaflets / cards detailing what can and cannot be recycled and where 

 Reusable bags for communal recycling to be stored in and used for taking waste to the bin 

 Recycling bin pencil sharpener with the different colour and types for communal and kerbside 

Education 

Work with schools, colleges and universities to incorporate the campaign messaging into their courses.  

Work with university societies that engage in recycling issues to communicate better to students. 

Have a presence a regular, visible presence at Fresher’s Fairs to inform students on recycling matters when they first 

move to the city. 

Support schools with the delivery of recycling talks and design some activities that can be carried out by City 

Environment staff and/or community champions.  

Fund school work where possible, such as the BHee programme with the Sussex Wildlife Trust, and work closely with 

them to ensure that messages are aligned and consistent.  

Community partners 

Work in partnership with stakeholders, local organisations and local residents’ forums to promote key recycling 

messages. 

Create a communications strategy to promote these messages and work with community partners to disseminate the 

information.  

Property 

management 

Work closely with estate and letting agencies, particularly those that let to students, to share information for correct 

disposal of recycling and waste, including bulky items. 

Improve the approach to using new build data to ensure new homes have the right recycling infrastructure and 

information on completion. 

 

103



Theme Action 

Council recycling 

Council buildings 

Work with Premises to improve the council’s approach to recycling e.g.  

 Replicate the city recycling arrangements in council buildings e.g. one bin to collect dry mixed recycling, one for 

glass 

 Provide cigarette bins at council buildings to reduce littering and encourage good behaviour 

 Make improvements to recycling at Hollingdean depot 

Containers 

Colour 

Rollout different colour bins and / or lids for mixed and glass recycling across the city, to differentiate between refuse 

and recycling. 

Use feedback from Planning and conservation groups to use appropriate colours for conservation areas and / or 

coloured lid only e.g. use a softer, darker green for mixed recycling, and a darker brown for glass. 

Design Consider the best design of bin to encourage the maximisation of recycling i.e. locked vs unlocked; size of aperture. 

Signage 
Incorporate feedback received from the Montpelier trial to make amendments to the signage designs, such as making it 

less busy, including a map for nearest bins for glass, textiles etc.  

Service delivery 

Street cleansing 

Explore options for improving the approach to cleaning leaves from the streets e.g. trialling different technologies to 

sweep leaves from the street in order to send it for composting. 

Review the current approach to litter picking and street cleansing to identify options for increasing recycling e.g. 

introducing compartmentalised barrows and devising methods for the Tidy Up Team to recycle material collected. 

Garden waste service 
Use the Commercial Team to explore options for increasing garden waste recycling e.g. providing a service to 

businesses and domestic properties unable to store garden waste bin e.g. through providing sacks. 

Recycling Complete an options appraisal regarding the feasibility of increasing recycling collections. 

Food 

Work with Brighton & Hove Food Partnership to deliver the Food Strategy Action Plan, particularly with regards 

becoming a 'food use' not a 'food waste' city. 

Identify the next steps for a food waste collection service. 

 

104



Theme Action 

New initiatives 

Reduce, reuse, 

recycle 
Establish a mechanism to continually review the new initiatives available for City Environment to engage with. 

Circular economy Identify how City Environment can promote and engage in circular economy initiatives. 

Range of plastics 
With partners, monitor markets for plastics not currently collected to see if there are opportunities to expand the range of 

plastics collected. 

 

105



106



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY 

Agenda Item 58 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Rottingdean High St Air Quality Management Area 
traffic scheme 

Date of Meeting: 22 January 2019 

Report of: Executive Director, Economy, Environment & 
Culture   

Contact Officer: Name: Matthew Thompson   Tel: 01273 290235 

 Email: matthew.thompson@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Rottingdean Coastal 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to address air quality issues in the section of the 

High Street south of Park Street where the proximity of building frontages to the 
kerb mean nitrous oxide levels in excess of EU and UK legislation (and World 
Health Organisation Guidelines) present the greatest hazard to human health.  

 
1.2 Rottingdean High St has been the subject of an Air Quality Management Area 

since 2013 due to levels of Nitrogen dioxide in excess of the 40 micrograms per 
cubic metre annual mean limit following local authority statutory duties under Part 
IV of the Environment Act 1995. The annual average limit applies where people 
are likely to breathe polluted air for the majority of the calendar year. It does not 
apply to transient exposure for a few hours or days.    

 
1.3 All efficient combustion processes in air produce oxides of nitrogen (NOX). 

Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and nitric oxide (NO) are both oxides of nitrogen and 
together are referred to as NOX. In the case of Rottingdean High St, road 
transport is the main source of these emissions. For modern vehicles operating 
on the public highway, NOx emissions can be mitigated with selective catalytic 
reduction on the vehicle exhausts. This technology is less effective in stop-start 
traffic, when engines idle and exhausts have lower temperatures. Road traffic 
emissions disperse less effectively in confined spaces such as street canyons.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Committee grants permission for officers to advertise an experimental 

traffic order for a period of 18 months to allow a trial of temporary physical and 
other road traffic measures on Rottingdean High Street as listed in paragraph 3.2 
of this report.  
 

3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
3.1  Rottingdean Parish Council and Brighton & Hove City Council have formed a 

joint action group in response to serious public concerns about air quality in 
Rottingdean High Street and have been meeting since 2017. The Project group, 

107



including ward and parish councillors, have commissioned traffic modelling to 
consider various options and are now proposing an experimental trial on a 
temporary basis.  

 
3.2 The trial will consist of three physical measures:  

 A temporary chicane outside  80-82 High Street (north of Park Street / south 
of the existing zebra crossing) with a give way to the north giving priority to 
northbound traffic including lining and signing. 

 A no stopping (yellow hatched) box on southbound lane from southern 
building line of Dene’s Mews (No 66 High Street) to the southern boundary of 
29 High Street (approximately 13.6m).   

 A ban on right turns out of West Street including signage. 
 

3.3 The chicane is intended to ensure that northbound traffic is not impeded by any  
manoeuvres from southbound traffic, encouraging a free flow in the narrowest 
part of the High Street where the air quality is worst.  
 

3.4  The yellow hatched box on the southbound lane is intended to prevent vehicles 
with idling engines from waiting in the same area or from impeding the movement 
of the occasional larger vehicles through the narrowest pinch point.  

 
3.5  The ban on right turns out of West Street is intended to prevent vehicles blocking 

the northbound lane and making it necessary for vehicles turning on to the High 
Street from the A259 to wait with idling engines at the junction for a vehicle in the 
southbound High Street lane to allow the turning vehicle to join the lane.  

 
3.6  A preliminary design for the scheme is attached (see Appendix 1). The project 

group will sign off the final detailed design prior to implementation.  
 
3.7  The experimental order will run for a maximum of 18 months. During the 18 

month period officers may adjust or suspend the scheme at any time. (See 
sections 5.1 and 5.2 for details on public consultation during the initial six 
months).  

 
3.8 The scheme will also include the installation of gas sensitive air quality mesh or 

wireless technology alongside the existing conventional air quality monitoring 
tubes in the High Street. In the longer term, weekday traffic data south of 
Steyning Road will provide inputs to the dispersion model allowing an up to date 
detailed assessment of local air quality. 

 
3.9 Signage at the Falmer exit from the A27 will be improved to deter HGV use of the 

B2123 to access Newhaven Port. Officers are negotiating designs with the 
relevant highway authorities, Highways England and East Sussex County 
Council. 

 
3.10 Traffic monitoring will be undertaken within the first 12 months of the trial to 

mirror surveys undertaken on a ‘neutral’ (non-holiday, roadworks free) week in 
March 2018. Validation data from the Department for Transport Trafficmaster 
Satnav database will also be used. This will allow officers to accurately measure 
the impact on journey times through the area and manoeuvres in the wider area 
at key junctions.  

 

108



4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Traffic modelling using ‘Vissim’ software and air quality modelling using ADMS 

Software has been undertaken. Surveys were conducted over a ‘neutral’ seven 
day period in March 2018 to collect data to allow both models to simulate 2018 
traffic conditions in the Rottingdean Village area and assess the impact of 
various proposed measures given those conditions.  
 

4.2 Validation data derived from the Department for Transport Satnav database has 
been used to cross check traffic turning and count data collected in surveys. 
Satnav data reflects actual journey times through the entire length of the 
proposed trial area to ensure the model accurately reflects the real traffic 
conditions.   
 

4.3 Traffic modelling tested the proposed location of the chicane north of Park Street 
and an alternative location south of Park Street. The model suggested the 
position north of Park Street would have minimal negative impacts on journey 
times, whereas the position to the south of this junction showed much greater 
negative impacts.  
 

4.4 Traffic modelling also tested the length of the yellow box to prevent idling engines 
only in the narrowest part of the High Street and an additional proposed yellow 
box across the Park Street junction to protect turning manoeuvres. The results 
suggested there were considerable negative congestion impacts to the north of 
the area from the box on the Park Street junction, and that minimizing the length 
of the box to the south was desirable.  

 
4.5 Modelling the air quality impact of the chicane north of Park St (using the same 

survey and validation data) predicted a slightly adverse impact around Vicarage 
Lane (though levels will still be well within acceptable standards). Levels were 
predicted to remain unchanged on The Green northbound and in general 
background levels further away from the High Street. A slight benefit in the 
southern High Street where levels are currently breached and a benefit to the 
A259 was predicted from this chicane position.  
 

4.6 Modelling of a yellow box south of Park St predicted a slight Nitrogen Dioxide 
increase on The Green and by three points at Bazehill Rd (from 19-22 
micrograms per cubic metre where the legal limit is 40). The model indicates that 
the roadside level at this location has less impact here because the building 
frontages are set further back from the kerb line than in the southern High Street. 
A yellow box was predicted by the model to deliver a slight air quality benefit for 
the lower High Street and further benefit for traffic flow and emissions on the 
A259.  
 

4.7 The right turn ban out of Park Street was included in all the scenarios and has 
been retained to prevent drivers making this manoeuvre, blocking northbound 
flows at peak times through the narrowest part of the High Street.  
 

4.8 Neither the traffic model nor the air quality model predict how much traffic will 
divert away from the trial area but a ‘reassignment value’ of around 10% of total 
current traffic diverting eastbound via Steyning Road has been assumed on top 
of the benefits predicted above. This suggests further air quality benefits are 

109



possible for the lower High Street which will be assessed during the trial. 
Frontages on Steyning Road are further from the kerb than those on the lower 
High Street where traffic speeds are slower and emissions higher throughout the 
year including for AM and PM peaks and for inter-peak hours 
 

4.9 A minimum ‘bedding in’ period of three months from the commencement of the 
trial is the minimum time frame likely to establish the accuracy of traffic diversion 
estimates and the benefit to air quality in the AQMA area. Colder temperatures 
often lead to the worst air quality (nitrogen dioxide) conditions so a prompt start 
in March 2019 is desirable to capture the conditions most crucial to predicting the 
success of the trial.  
 

5.        COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Details of preliminary consultation and engagement with Parish and Ward 

councillors are described at 3.1. 
 

5.2 Private addresses and businesses in the Rottingdean area will receive letters 
informing them of the trial one month prior to implementation, giving details of 
how to submit comments. Displays of the plans will be available for public 
inspection at the Whiteways Centre and Rottingdean Public Library. 
 

5.3 Members of the public will be invited to submit objections during the first six 
months of the experimental Traffic regulation order. All objections will be reported 
back to the committee before the end of the 18 month period of the order. 
 

5.4 Brighton & Hove Buses fully support this because of current issues with their 
services. They reminded officers that they have been lobbying for this measure 
for some time. To support the trial, they are offering to supply punctuality data to 
provide additional evidence to support the scheme.  

 
5.5 The Big Lemon Bus Company has also welcomed the trial. Other bus companies 

operating in the city have declined to comment.  
 

5.6 East Sussex Fire and Rescue have no objection to the trial and believe it will not 
impede their response to an incident in the area. 
 

5.7 Sussex and Surrey Roads Police support the trial aims but have made it clear 
that they would not prioritise the area in terms of enforcement. They have been 
assured that the Experimental order allows officers to suspend the trial if there 
are safety concerns and that officers will do so immediately if advised to do so by 
the Police.  
 

6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 The AQMA in Rottingdean High St continues to record readings in breach of 

statutory limits and the council has a duty to act to reduce emissions in the area 
to make it conform to acceptable legal standards for ambient air quality.  
 

6.2 Extensive modelling work has been carried out using industry standard software 
of various potential physical measures and the results suggest benefits are likely.   

 

110



6.3 The point of the trial is to further test a selection of these measures in situ in 
actual traffic conditions.  
 

7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1      The estimated cost of the report recommendations of an experimental Traffic 

Regulation Order and temporary physical and other road traffic measures on 
Rottingdean High Street is £0.017m. This will be funded from the 2018/19 Local 
Transport Plan capital grant allocation. The cost of the capital works includes 
design, signage, implementation, monitoring and contingency costs.  

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Gemma Jackson Date: 10/01/19 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.2 Section 83 of the Environment Act 1995 imposes a duty on local authorities to 

designate air quality management areas (“AQMA”) where air quality standards or 
objectives are not being achieved or are not likely to be achieved within a 
prescribed period. The Air Quality (England) Regulations 2000 prescribe air 
quality objective levels.  Once an area is designated as an AQMA the local 
authority must prepare a plan setting out how it will seek to improve air quality in 
the area (s84 of the 1995 Act). 

  
7.3 Under s9 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 a traffic authority may make an 

experimental traffic regulation order (ETRO) for the purposes of carrying out an 
experimental scheme of traffic control. An ETRO can contain any provision that a 
permanent traffic order can contain, but an ETRO cannot continue in force for 
more than 18 months. While the ETRO is in force the effects of the traffic control 
can be monitored and assessed before the traffic authority decides whether or 
not to continue the ETRO on a permanent basis. 

  
 Lawyer Consulted: Name: Hilary Woodward Date: 27/12/18   
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.4 Improved air quality will benefit vulnerable residents and road users 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.5 The aim of the measures is to reduce the negative impact of transport emissions 

within the southern section of the High Street.  
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Plan of physical measures 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 

111



 
1. None 

 
Background Documents 
 
1. None 
 
 

112



Key to symbols

App’dCh’k’dDescriptionDrawnDateRev

RevStatus

Drawing Number

Scale at A1

Eng check

Approved

Coordination

Dwg check

Drawn 

Designed

Title

Notes

Client

Security

\\mottmac\project\Croydon\VOY\ITL\341760 BHCC Framework\341760_QQ Rottingdean\CAD\Working Drawings\Rottingdean

Highstreet\Drawings\341760-MMD-QQ-XX-DR-C-0001 - Rottingdean Highstreet - Traffic Management Measures - Concept design.dwg Jan 9, 2019 -

2:30PM IGA87799

T

F

W

©

Rottingdean High Street

Proposed Air Quality Improvement 

Measures - Concept design

NI

NI

CH

-

-

RR

1:250 PRE

341760-MMD-QQ-XX-DR-C-0001

P1 STD

Mott MacDonald House

8-10 Sydenham Road

Croydon, CR0 2EE

United Kingdom

+44 (0)20 8774 2000

+44 (0)20 8681 5706

mottmac.com

This document is issued for the party which commissioned it and for specific purposes connected with the captioned project only. It should not be relied upon by any other party or used for any other purpose.

We accept no responsibility for the consequences of this document being relied upon by any other party, or being used for any other purpose, or containing any error or omission which is due to an error or omission in data supplied to us by other parties.

Mott MacDonald

P1 08/01/2019 NI First Issue

CH RR

© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey 100025457

Indicative location of

temporary chicane requiring

southbound vehicles to give

way to northbound vehicles.

Yellow box on

southbound lane

(Approximately 12m)

No right turn out of

West Street

© COPYRIGHT : UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION PROHIBITED.

BASED ON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP WITH THE SANCTION

OF H.M. STATIONERY OFFICE - LICENCE No. 086452 2001.

Temporary chicane (exact specification to

be confirmed)

Yellow box

1. Existing street lighting and drainage has not been assessed at this stage,

and should be considered in design development.

2. Design subject to site and utility survey information and design development.

3. Design based on OS mapping. A full topographical survey should be

undertaken for subsequent design stages.

4. Road markings shown indicatively.

113

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
30.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Greenway Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
23.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
25.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Beacon

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
118a

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
43.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
59.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
The Cot

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Byre Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
48.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
118b

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Flints

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
OVINGDEAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Grange Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
63.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Nook

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
34.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
WANDERDOWN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
Upper

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
61.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
64.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
26.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
88a

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
61.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
DOWER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
AINSWORTH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
28.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
AINSWORTH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
35.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
48.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Ovingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
25.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
30.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
31.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Court Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
29.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Norton

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
War

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
Little

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Squash

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Kipling Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
St Margaret's

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
25.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Little Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Court House

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
NORTHGATE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Farm House

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
West

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Cannongate

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Flagstones

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
CHALLONERS MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Downlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Norton

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
St Margaret's

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Kipling Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
22.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Lych

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
19.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
BURNES VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
Prospect Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
Convent

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Rottingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
THE ROTYNGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
The Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Car

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
Pineglade

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
The Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Aubrey House

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
BAZEHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
Coppers

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
North End House

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
2 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Dale

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
Down House

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
18.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
32.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Sycamores

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
Bowls Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Northgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
Squash

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
St Martha's

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
The Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Lanterns

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
30.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
The Byre

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
29.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
THE ROTYNGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
41.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
Court House

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
Tudor

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
Box Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
28.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
St Dunstan's Training Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Beacon Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
Tumuli

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
and Holiday Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Cliff

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
Miniature Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Greenway Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
15.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Olde Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
Sorting

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
VICARAGE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
14.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
St Aubyns

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
RC

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
18.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Whipping

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
NEVILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
Laureens

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
Caspian

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Margos

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Cownwy Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
WHIPPING POST LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Sandhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
White Horse

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
24.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
WEST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
Park Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Blacksmith

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
(Library)

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
32.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
16.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
2 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
Honeysuckle

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
5.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Beacon Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
9 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
5.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
6.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Olde Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
Rumneys

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Brookside

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
OLDE PLACE MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
Cavendish

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
14 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
Forge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
Cliff Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
73 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
Our Lady of Lourdes

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
Chyngton

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
St James's

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
Braemar

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
VICARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
Westview

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
SHEEP WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
86a

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Pax

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
Post House

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
86c

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Caspian

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
Southdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
Exchange

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
14.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
29.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
35.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
5.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
Rottingdean Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
Burial Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
40.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
ROWAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
WANDERDOWN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
WANDERDOWN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Longhill School

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
Kapiolani

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
WANDERDOWN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
ELVIN CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
WANDERDOWN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
53.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
Brightsands

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
53.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
LONGHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
ELEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
62.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
MARTYN'S CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
NEW BARN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
COURT ORD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
Court Ord Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
30.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
MEADOW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
COURT FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
WILKINSON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
Trough

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
Trough

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
New Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
MEADOW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
Bramble Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Mound

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
24.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
34.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
44.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
Treetops

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
Beacon Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
56.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
29.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
60.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
AINSWORTH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
56.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
ELVIN CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
BEACON HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
58.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
ELEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
47.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
ELEY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
GORHAM CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
Whiteway Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
30.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
Graveyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
Grange Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
Tudor Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
Graveyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
30.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
Doyly Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
10 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
16 to 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
Bazehill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
Shepherds Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
Maddalena

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
GORHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
Whiteway Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
31.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
CHALLONERS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
NORTHFIELD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
Dean Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
31.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
DEAN COURT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
ROYLES CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
Stirrups

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
1 to 12 14 to 43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
ST AUBYN'S MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
ROMNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
Our Lady

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
St Ives

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
St Margarets

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
59 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
30 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
GRAND CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
109a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
1 to 12, 12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
Kipling Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
Highcliff Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
28.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
First Aid Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
22.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
LENHAM ROAD WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
Thistle-Doo

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
of Lourdes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
Eastfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
War Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
D Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
Highbury House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
Blenheim

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
St Edmunds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
STEYNING ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
Rotherdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
Eagles

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
Strood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
Green Shutters

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
NEWLANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
KNOLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
CHAILEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
87.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
58.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
GORHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
56.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
86.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
83.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
73.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
BAZEHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
WELESMERE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
81.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
78.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
63.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
68.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
60.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
75.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
18A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
18B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
Little Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
The Studio

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
Aldingbourne Grange Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
Mulberry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
St Margarets

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
3 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
The Cape

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
68a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
The Deans

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
Leisure Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
The Annexe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
MLW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
Bazehill Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
Ocean Reach

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
Golden

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
14b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
E Baulk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
E Baulk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
Winton Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
Ardwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
Plough

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
DENES MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
The Elms Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
128a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
130a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
Marine Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
Hideaway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
TYEDEAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
26a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
HIGHVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
48a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
FAIRLIGHT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
SPRINGFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
CLIFF GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
Fairlight

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
Telscombe Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
BROOMFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
34b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
34a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
GRASSMERE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
44a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
31.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
41a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
33.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
BUCKHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
Seacliffe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
Tavern

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
369

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
Telscombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
Tuscan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
392

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
14 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
374

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
11 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
1 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
378

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
403

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
424

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
29.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
Ventoso

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
1 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
New

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
5 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
BROOMFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
438a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
416

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
27.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
384

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
405

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
Deborah

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
THE ESPLANADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
438

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
26.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
26.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
Fairhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
388

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
398

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
393

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
28.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
Sussex

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
23.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
FAIRLIGHT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
14 to 27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
391

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
Aqua House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
Evershed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
AMHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
422

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
Telscombe Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
TELSCOMBE CLIFFS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
SUSSEX WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
426

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
9 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
446

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
379

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
396

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
396a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
RYE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
Pedlersburgh

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
Telscombe Tye

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
SALTDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
Tenant Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
Slurry Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
The Saltdean Kennels

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
Coombe Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
65.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
SALTDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
114.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
111.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
Coombe Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
WESTFIELD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
Jesmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
HOMEBUSH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
Landour

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
St Michaels

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
WESTFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
COOMBE MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
Grenofen

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
Coombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
AVENUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
Coombe Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
The Burgh

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
82.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
118.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
111.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
102.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
89.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
113.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
Highdole Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
119.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
Settlement

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
113.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
68.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
30.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
Greenway Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
31.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
23.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
25.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
30.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
30.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
Sand and Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
29.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
Tythe Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
The Olde Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
Lych

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
Greenways

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
Beacon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
118a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
St Wulfran's Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
43.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
Sunset

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
56.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
136a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
59.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
The Cot

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
THE RIDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
Bulstrode

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
Byre Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
48.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
118b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
Flints

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
Ovingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
OVINGDEAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
Grange Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
Willorose

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
Hames

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
63.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
Nook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
34.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
134a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
Greenways

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
WANDERDOWN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
Orchard Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
Ashdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
Ovingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
Three Ways

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
Granary

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
Upper

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
59.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
Bulstrode

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
36.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
South

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
North

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
Hall Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
61.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
64.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
Meadows

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
Preambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
61.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
Cattle Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
53.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
Bulstrode

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
26.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
88a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
61.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
DOWER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
AINSWORTH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
28.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
AINSWORTH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
35.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
48.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
Ovingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
68.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
25.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
30.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
31.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
Air Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
66.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
Cattle Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
402

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
75.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
96.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
380

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
390

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
CRESCENT DRIVE SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
70.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
86.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
Woodside

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
99.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
89.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
80.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
Wick Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
Mount Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
OVINGDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
76.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
76.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
79.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
69.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
84.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
Mount Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
89.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
Monterey

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
OVINGDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
Winton

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
Barbara

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
58.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
Ketts Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
Sandhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
Santa

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
Fairways

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
The Pines

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
Badgers Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
73.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
96.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
55.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
80.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
Court Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
29.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
Norton

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
War

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
Little

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
Squash

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
Kipling Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
St Margaret's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
25.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
Little Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
Court House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
NORTHGATE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
Farm House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
West

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
Cannongate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
Flagstones

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
CHALLONERS MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
Downlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
Norton

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
St Margaret's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
Kipling Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
22.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
Lych

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
19.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
BURNES VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
Prospect Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
Convent

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
Rottingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
THE ROTYNGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
The Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
Car

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
Pineglade

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
The Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
Aubrey House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
BAZEHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
Coppers

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
North End House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
2 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
Dale

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
Down House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
18.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
32.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
Sycamores

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
Bowls Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
Northgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
Squash

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
St Martha's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
The Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
Lanterns

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
30.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
The Byre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
29.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
THE ROTYNGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
41.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
Court House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
Tudor

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
Box Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
28.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
St Dunstan's Training Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
Beacon Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
Tumuli

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
and Holiday Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
Cliff

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
Miniature Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
Greenway Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
15.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
Olde Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
Sorting

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
VICARAGE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
14.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
St Aubyns

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
RC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
18.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
Whipping

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
NEVILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
Laureens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
Caspian

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
Margos

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
Cownwy Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
WHIPPING POST LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
Sandhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
White Horse

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
24.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
WEST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
Park Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
Blacksmith

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
(Library)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
32.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
16.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
2 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
Honeysuckle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
5.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
Beacon Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
9 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
5.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
6.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
Olde Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
Rumneys

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
Brookside

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
OLDE PLACE MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
Cavendish

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
14 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
Forge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
Cliff Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
73 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
Our Lady of Lourdes

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
Chyngton

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
St James's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
Braemar

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
VICARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
Westview

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
SHEEP WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
86a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
Pax

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
Post House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
86c

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
Caspian

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
Southdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
Exchange

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
14.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
29.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
35.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
5.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
Rottingdean Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
Burial Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
40.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
ROWAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
WANDERDOWN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
WANDERDOWN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
Longhill School

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
Kapiolani

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
WANDERDOWN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
ELVIN CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
WANDERDOWN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
53.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
THE VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
Brightsands

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
53.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
LONGHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
ELEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
62.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
MARTYN'S CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
NEW BARN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
COURT ORD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
Court Ord Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
30.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
MEADOW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
COURT FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
WILKINSON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
Trough

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
Trough

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
New Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
MEADOW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
Bramble Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
Mound

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
24.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
34.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
44.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
Treetops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
Beacon Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
56.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
29.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
60.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
AINSWORTH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
56.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
ELVIN CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
BEACON HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
58.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
ELEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
47.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
ELEY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
79.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
RAVENSWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
STANSTEAD CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
74.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
85.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
71.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
62.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
PINFOLD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
The Old Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
67.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
The Toby Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
ABINGER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
ROSEDENE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
61.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
BROWNLEAF ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
55.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
GREEN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
Piggeries

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
57.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
DONNINGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
COWLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
SELHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
Swallowdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
BROAD GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
MERSTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
Settlement

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
Gable End

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
Woodingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
Woodingcote Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
THE VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
49.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
55.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
OVINGDEAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
Fir Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
Woodingcote

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
Water Gauge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
Newlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
Vale

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
59.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
55.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
Rottingdean Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
59.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
25.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
29.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
LUSTRELLS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
FALMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
LENHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
67.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
43a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
LUSTRELLS CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
79.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
LINDFIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
77.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
56.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
Whiteway Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
82.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
58.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
CHORLEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
72.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
WESTMESTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
78.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
71.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
LUSTRELLS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
BISHOPSTONE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
60.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
ASHDOWN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
GORHAM CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
Whiteway Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
30.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
Graveyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
Grange Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
Tudor Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
Graveyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
30.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
Doyly Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
10 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
16 to 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
Bazehill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
Shepherds Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
Maddalena

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
GORHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
40.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
Whiteway Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
LUSTRELLS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
31.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
Sunrise

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
Point Clear

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
CHALLONERS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
NORTHFIELD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
Dean Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
31.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
47.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
DEAN COURT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
ROYLES CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
The Headland

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
LENHAM ROAD EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
Westward

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
ABBOTSBURY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
THE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
53.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
CHICHESTER DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
FOUNTHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
FOUNTHILL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
35.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
ASHDOWN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
GRAND CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
ARUNDEL DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
CRANLEIGH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
HILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
153a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
52.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
59.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
Bellaria

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
74.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
26.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
Chrysalis

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
Field End

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
LENHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
44.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
LITTLE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
159a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
EILEEN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
44.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
65.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
70.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
The Dome

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
Pentheos

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
The Rosary

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
SALTDEAN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
MARINE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
Stirrups

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
1 to 12 14 to 43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
ST AUBYN'S MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
THE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
ROMNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
Our Lady

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
LITTLE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
St Ives

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
St Margarets

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
59 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
THE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
30 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
GRAND CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
109a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
1 to 12, 12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
Kipling Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
Greenway

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
Highcliff Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
28.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
First Aid Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
Frederic

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
22.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
LENHAM ROAD WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
Thistle-Doo

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
of Lourdes

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
Eastfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
War Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
D Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
Highbury House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
Blenheim

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
St Edmunds

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
STEYNING ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
Rotherdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
Eagles

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
Strood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
Green Shutters

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
NEWLANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
KNOLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
CHAILEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
100.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
98.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
89.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
91.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
93.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
108.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
103.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
87.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
DEAN COURT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
75.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
FALMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
58.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
GORHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
56.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
86.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
83.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
73.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
BAZEHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
WELESMERE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
81.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
78.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
63.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
68.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
60.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
75.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
Balsdean Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
High Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
119.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
114.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
112.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
Balsdean Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
61.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
HAMSEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
Latchwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
ARDINGLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
HAMSEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
42a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
Hunters'

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
NUTLEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
Tye Chalet

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
Reba Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_3935
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3936
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3937
COWDEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3938
Anscomb

AutoCAD SHX Text_3939
The Hacienda

AutoCAD SHX Text_3940
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3941
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3942
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3943
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3944
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3945
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3946
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3947
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3948
WALESBEECH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3949
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3950
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3951
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3952
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3953
Rhondhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_3954
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3955
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3956
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3957
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3958
Boulders & Scattered Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3959
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3960
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3961
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3962
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3963
39.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3964
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3965
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_3966
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3967
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3968
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3969
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3970
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3971
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3972
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3973
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3974
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3975
25.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3976
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3977
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3978
CROWBOROUGH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3979
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3980
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_3981
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3982
42b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3983
Martlet House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3984
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3985
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3986
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3987
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3988
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3989
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3990
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3991
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3992
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_3993
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3994
Bannings Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_3995
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3996
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3997
31 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3998
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3999
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4000
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4001
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4002
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4003
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_4004
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_4005
31.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4006
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4007
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4008
TYE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4009
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4010
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4011
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4012
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_4013
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4014
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4015
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4016
26.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4017
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4018
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4019
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4020
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4021
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4022
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4023
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4024
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4025
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4026
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4027
Moon

AutoCAD SHX Text_4028
Rowanden

AutoCAD SHX Text_4029
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4030
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4031
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4032
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4033
187 189

AutoCAD SHX Text_4034
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4035
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4036
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4037
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4038
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_4039
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4040
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4041
26.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4042
1 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4043
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4044
Curzon House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4045
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4046
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4047
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4048
Lynwood Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4049
20.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4050
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4051
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4052
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4053
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4054
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4055
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4056
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4057
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4058
Teynham House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4059
24.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4060
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4061
185

AutoCAD SHX Text_4062
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4063
Spanish Lady

AutoCAD SHX Text_4064
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4065
1 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4066
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4067
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4068
Saltdean Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4069
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4070
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4071
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4072
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_4073
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_4074
29.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4075
Marine Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4076
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4077
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4078
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_4079
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4080
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4081
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4082
LONGRIDGE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4083
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4084
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4085
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4086
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4087
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4088
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4089
181

AutoCAD SHX Text_4090
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4091
Roofs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4092
LYNWOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4093
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_4094
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4095
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4096
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4097
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4098
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_4099
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4100
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4101
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4102
26a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4103
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_4104
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4105
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4106
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4107
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4108
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4109
17.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4110
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4111
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4112
23.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4113
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_4114
Boulders & Scattered Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4115
MLW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4116
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4117
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4118
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4119
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4120
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4121
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4122
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4123
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4124
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4125
MOUNT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4126
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4127
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4128
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4129
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4130
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4131
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4132
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4133
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4134
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4135
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_4136
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4137
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4138
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4139
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4140
SALTDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4141
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4142
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4143
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4144
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4145
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4146
24.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4147
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4148
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4149
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4150
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_4151
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4152
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4153
47.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4154
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_4155
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4156
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4157
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4158
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4159
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4160
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4161
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4162
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4163
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4164
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4165
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4166
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4167
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4168
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_4169
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_4170
GREENBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4171
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4172
HEATHFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4173
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4174
ARLINGTON GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4175
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_4176
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4177
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4178
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4179
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4180
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4181
SHEPHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4182
GLYNDE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4183
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4184
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4185
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4186
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4187
SALTDEAN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4188
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4189
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4190
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4191
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4192
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4193
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4194
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4195
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_4196
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_4197
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4198
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4199
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4200
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4201
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4202
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4203
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_4204
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4205
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4206
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4207
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4208
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4209
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4210
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4211
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4212
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_4213
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4214
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4215
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4216
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4217
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4218
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4219
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4220
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4221
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_4222
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4223
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4224
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4225
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4226
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4227
20.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4228
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4229
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4230
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_4231
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4232
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4233
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4234
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_4235
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4236
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4237
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4238
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_4239
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_4240
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4241
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4242
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4243
Mayfield Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4244
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4245
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4246
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4247
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4248
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4249
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_4250
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4251
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4252
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4253
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4254
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4255
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4256
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_4257
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4258
FALMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4259
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4260
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4261
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4262
TUMULUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4263
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_4264
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4265
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4266
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4267
LUSTRELLS CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4268
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4269
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4270
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4271
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4272
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4273
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4274
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4275
GREENBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4276
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4277
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4278
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4279
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4280
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4281
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4282
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4283
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4284
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4285
EFFINGHAM CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4286
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4287
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_4288
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4289
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4290
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4291
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4292
LUSTRELLS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4293
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_4294
14 to 103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4295
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4296
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4297
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4298
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4299
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4300
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_4301
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4302
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4303
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4304
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4305
SCHOOL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4306
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4307
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4308
BISHOPSTONE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4309
19.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4310
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4311
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4312
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4313
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4314
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4315
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4316
GLYNDEBOURNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4317
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4318
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4319
Westbrook

AutoCAD SHX Text_4320
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4321
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4322
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4323
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4324
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4325
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4326
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4327
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4328
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4329
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4330
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4331
18.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4332
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4333
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4334
Southdowns Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4335
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4336
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4337
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4338
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4339
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4340
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4341
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4342
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4343
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4344
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4345
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4346
TREMOLA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4347
21.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4348
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4349
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4350
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4351
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4352
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4353
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4354
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4355
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4356
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4357
CHILTINGTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4358
CHILTINGTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4359
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4360
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4361
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4362
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4363
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4364
SAXON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4365
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4366
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4367
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4368
HAWTHORN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4369
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4370
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4371
Saltdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_4372
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4373
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4374
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4375
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4376
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4377
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4378
St Martin's

AutoCAD SHX Text_4379
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4380
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4381
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4382
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4383
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4384
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4385
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_4386
64.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4387
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4388
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_4389
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4390
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4391
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4392
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_4393
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4394
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4395
HOMEBUSH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4396
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4397
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4398
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4399
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4400
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4401
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4402
75.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4403
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4404
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4405
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4406
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4407
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4408
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4409
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4410
HARTFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4411
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4412
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4413
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4414
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4415
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4416
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4417
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4418
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4419
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4420
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4421
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4422
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4423
11b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4424
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4425
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4426
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4427
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_4428
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4429
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4430
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4431
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4432
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4433
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4434
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4435
WICKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4436
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4437
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4438
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4439
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4440
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4441
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4442
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4443
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4444
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_4445
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4446
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_4447
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4448
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_4449
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4450
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4451
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4452
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4453
BEVENDEAN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4454
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4455
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4456
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4457
1 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4458
70.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4459
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4460
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4461
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4462
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4463
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4464
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4465
RODMELL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4466
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4467
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4468
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4469
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4470
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4471
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_4472
67.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4473
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4474
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4475
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4476
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4477
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4478
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4479
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4480
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4481
60.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4482
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4483
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4484
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_4485
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4486
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4487
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4488
BRAMBLETYNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4489
LONGRIDGE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4490
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4491
LINCHMERE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4492
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4493
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4494
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_4495
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4496
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4497
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4498
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4499
39a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4500
Homeridge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4501
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4502
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4503
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4504
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4505
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4506
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4507
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4508
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4509
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4510
39b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4511
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4512
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4513
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4514
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4515
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4516
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_4517
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4518
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_4519
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4520
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4521
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4522
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4523
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4524
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4525
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4526
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4527
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4528
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4529
43a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4530
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4531
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4532
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4533
CROWBOROUGH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4534
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4535
OAKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4536
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4537
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4538
73a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4539
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4540
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4541
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4542
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_4543
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4544
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4545
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4546
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4547
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4548
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4549
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4550
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4551
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4552
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4553
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4554
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4555
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4556
73.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4557
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4558
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4559
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4560
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_4561
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4562
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4563
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4564
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4565
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4566
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4567
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4568
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4569
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4570
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4571
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4572
35b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4573
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4574
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4575
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4576
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4577
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_4578
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4579
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4580
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4581
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4582
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4583
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_4584
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4585
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4586
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4587
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4588
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4589
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4590
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4591
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4592
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4593
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4594
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4595
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4596
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4597
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4598
WITHYHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4599
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4600
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4601
20.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4602
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4603
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_4604
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4605
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4606
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4607
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4608
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4609
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4610
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4611
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4612
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4613
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4614
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4615
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4616
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4617
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4618
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4619
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4620
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4621
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4622
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4623
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4624
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_4625
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4626
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4627
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4628
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4629
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4630
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4631
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4632
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4633
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4634
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4635
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4636
WICKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4637
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4638
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4639
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4640
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4641
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4642
and Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_4643
CHICHESTER DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4644
ARUNDEL DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4645
Paddling

AutoCAD SHX Text_4646
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4647
ARUNDEL DRIVE EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4648
Saltdean Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4649
Miniature Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_4650
15.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4651
Saltdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_4652
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4653
CHICHESTER DRIVE EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_4654
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4655
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4656
GREENBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4657
LINCHMERE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4658
Community Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_4659
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4660
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4661
34.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4662
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_4663
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4664
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4665
Lido

AutoCAD SHX Text_4666
SHEPHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4667
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4668
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4669
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4670
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4671
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4672
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4673
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4674
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4675
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4676
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4677
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4678
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4679
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_4680
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4681
NUTLEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4682
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4683
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4684
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4685
Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_4686
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4687
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4688
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4689
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4690
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4691
53 to 57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4692
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4693
63a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4694
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4695
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4696
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4697
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4698
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4699
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4700
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4701
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4702
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4703
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4704
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4705
St Nicholas'

AutoCAD SHX Text_4706
SALTDEAN PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4707
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4708
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4709
The Golf House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4710
Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4711
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4712
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4713
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4714
44.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4715
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4716
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4717
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4718
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4719
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4720
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4721
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4722
30.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4723
32.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4724
39.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4725
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_4726
Chichester

AutoCAD SHX Text_4727
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4728
OAKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4729
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4730
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4731
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4732
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4733
Pickers Hill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_4734
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4735
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4736
30.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4737
31.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4738
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4739
Pickers Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_4740
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4741
50.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4742
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_4743
Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_4744
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_4745
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_4746
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4747
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4748
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4749
Waldegrave Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4750
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4751
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4752
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4753
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4754
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4755
COOMBE RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4756
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_4757
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4758
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4759
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4760
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4761
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_4762
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_4763
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4764
STANMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4765
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_4766
WESTFIELD AVENUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4767
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4768
EDWARD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4769
HILGROVE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4770
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4771
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4772
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4773
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4774
28.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4775
HEMPSTEAD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4776
HAILSHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4777
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4778
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4779
WESTFIELD AVENUE SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4780
STANMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4781
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_4782
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4783
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4784
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4785
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4786
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4787
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4788
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_4789
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4790
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4791
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4792
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4793
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4794
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4795
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4796
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4797
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4798
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4799
BERWICK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4800
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4801
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4802
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4803
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4804
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4805
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4806
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4807
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4808
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4809
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4810
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4811
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_4812
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4813
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4814
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4815
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4816
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_4817
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4818
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4819
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4820
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_4821
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4822
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4823
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4824
Coombe Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_4825
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4826
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_4827
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4828
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4829
VALE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4830
STANMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4831
25.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4832
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4833
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4834
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4835
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4836
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4837
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4838
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_4839
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_4840
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4841
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4842
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4843
30.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4844
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_4845
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4846
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4847
COOMBE VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4848
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4849
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4850
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_4851
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4852
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4853
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4854
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4855
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4856
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4857
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4858
WESTFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4859
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4860
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4861
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4862
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_4863
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4864
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4865
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4866
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4867
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4868
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4869
HAILSHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4870
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_4871
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4872
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4873
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4874
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4875
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4876
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4877
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4878
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4879
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4880
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4881
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4882
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4883
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4884
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4885
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_4886
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4887
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4888
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4889
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4890
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_4891
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4892
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4893
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_4894
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4895
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4896
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4897
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4898
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4899
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4900
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_4901
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4902
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4903
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4904
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4905
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4906
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4907
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4908
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_4909
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4910
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_4911
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4912
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4913
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_4914
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4915
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4916
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4917
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4918
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4919
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4920
TUMULUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4921
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4922
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4923
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4924
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4925
WINTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4926
WIVELSFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4927
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4928
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4929
PERRY HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4930
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4931
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4932
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4933
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_4934
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4935
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4936
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4937
RIDGEWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4938
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_4939
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4940
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4941
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4942
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4943
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4944
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4945
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4946
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_4947
High Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_4948
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4949
Portobello

AutoCAD SHX Text_4950
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4951
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4952
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4953
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4954
&

AutoCAD SHX Text_4955
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4956
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4957
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4958
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4959
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4960
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4961
Telscombe Tye

AutoCAD SHX Text_4962
Scattered

AutoCAD SHX Text_4963
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4964
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_4965
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4966
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4967
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4968
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4969
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4970
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4971
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4972
ASHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4973
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4974
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4975
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_4976
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4977
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4978
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4979
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4980
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4981
14 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4982
32.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4983
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_4984
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4985
Telscombe Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4986
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4987
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_4988
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4989
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_4990
Gorham Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4991
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4992
58b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4993
Bannings Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_4994
GORHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4995
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4996
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4997
&

AutoCAD SHX Text_4998
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_4999
448

AutoCAD SHX Text_5000
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5001
Cliff

AutoCAD SHX Text_5002
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5003
Public House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5004
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5005
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5006
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5007
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5008
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5009
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5010
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5011
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5012
Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5013
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5014
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5015
Scattered

AutoCAD SHX Text_5016
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5017
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5018
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5019
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5020
Telscombe Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5021
RODMELL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5022
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_5023
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_5024
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5025
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_5026
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5027
Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_5028
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_5029
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5030
82.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5031
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_5032
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5033
81.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5034
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5035
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_5036
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_5037
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5038
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5039
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_5040
151b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5041
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_5042
76.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5043
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5044
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5045
97a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5046
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5047
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_5048
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5049
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_5050
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5051
RYE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5052
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5053
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_5054
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_5055
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_5056
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_5057
224

AutoCAD SHX Text_5058
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5059
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_5060
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5061
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5062
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5063
131a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5064
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_5065
149a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5066
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_5067
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_5068
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5069
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5070
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5071
81.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5072
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5073
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5074
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5075
FINDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_5076
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5077
Tenant Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_5078
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5079
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5080
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5081
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_5082
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5083
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_5084
59.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5085
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5086
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_5087
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5088
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5089
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5090
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_5091
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_5092
101a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5093
70.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5094
IFIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5095
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5096
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_5097
64.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5098
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5099
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5100
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_5101
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_5102
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_5103
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_5104
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_5105
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5106
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_5107
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_5108
114a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5109
CISSBURY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5110
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_5111
222

AutoCAD SHX Text_5112
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5113
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_5114
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_5115
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5116
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_5117
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5118
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_5119
Bannings

AutoCAD SHX Text_5120
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_5121
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5122
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5123
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5124
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5125
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_5126
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5127
92a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5128
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5129
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5130
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_5131
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5132
99a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5133
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_5134
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5135
FINDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_5136
109a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5137
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_5138
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5139
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_5140
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5141
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5142
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_5143
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5144
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5145
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_5146
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_5147
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5148
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5149
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_5150
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5151
71a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5152
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5153
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_5154
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5155
FINDON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5156
83a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5157
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5158
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5159
118c

AutoCAD SHX Text_5160
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5161
Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_5162
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5163
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_5164
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5165
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5166
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_5167
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5168
51.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5169
36.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5170
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5171
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5172
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5173
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5174
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5175
54.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5176
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5177
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5178
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_5179
BRAMBLETYNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5180
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5181
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5182
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5183
50a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5184
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5185
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5186
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_5187
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5188
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_5189
81a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5190
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5191
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_5192
71c

AutoCAD SHX Text_5193
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5194
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_5195
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5196
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5197
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5198
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5199
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5200
BEVENDEAN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5201
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5202
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5203
85a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5204
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5205
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5206
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5207
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5208
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5209
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5210
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5211
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5212
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5213
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_5214
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_5215
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_5216
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5217
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5218
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_5219
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5220
71b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5221
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_5222
78a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5223
104a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5224
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5225
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_5226
50b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5227
65a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5228
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5229
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5230
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5231
118b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5232
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5233
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_5234
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5235
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5236
CHAILEY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5237
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_5238
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_5239
WICKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5240
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_5241
Brambletyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5242
LEWES

AutoCAD SHX Text_5243
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_5244
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5245
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5246
ASHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5247
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5248
Bircle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5249
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5250
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5251
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5252
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5253
CISSBURY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5254
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5255
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5256
38.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5257
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5258
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_5259
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_5260
40.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5261
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_5262
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5263
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5264
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_5265
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5266
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5267
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_5268
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_5269
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5270
Bannings Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_5271
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5272
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5273
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5274
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5275
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5276
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_5277
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_5278
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5279
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5280
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_5281
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_5282
NORTHWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5283
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_5284
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_5285
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_5286
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_5287
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5288
44.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5289
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5290
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5291
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5292
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5293
OAKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5294
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5295
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5296
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5297
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5298
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5299
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5300
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5301
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5302
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_5303
118a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5304
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5305
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5306
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5307
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_5308
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5309
NORTHWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5310
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5311
FINDON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5312
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_5313
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5314
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5315
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5316
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5317
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5318
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_5319
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5320
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5321
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5322
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_5323
105a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5324
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5325
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5326
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5327
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5328
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5329
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5330
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5331
22-24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5332
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_5333
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5334
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5335
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5336
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5337
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5338
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5339
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5340
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5341
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5342
Sandmere

AutoCAD SHX Text_5343
Marine View

AutoCAD SHX Text_5344
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_5345
Southcliffe Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5346
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5347
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5348
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5349
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5350
40a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5351
39a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5352
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5353
18A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5354
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5355
18B

AutoCAD SHX Text_5356
Little Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5357
The Studio

AutoCAD SHX Text_5358
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5359
Bonnets

AutoCAD SHX Text_5360
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_5361
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5362
Aldingbourne Grange Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_5363
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5364
Mulberry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5365
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5366
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5367
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5368
St Margarets

AutoCAD SHX Text_5369
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_5370
Saltdean Tavern (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5371
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5372
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5373
LOOES

AutoCAD SHX Text_5374
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5375
72a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5376
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5377
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5378
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5379
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5380
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5381
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5382
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5383
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5384
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5385
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5386
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5387
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5388
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5389
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5390
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5391
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5392
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5393
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5394
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5395
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5396
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5397
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5398
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5399
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5400
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5401
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5402
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5403
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5404
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5405
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5406
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5407
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5408
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5409
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5410
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5411
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5412
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5413
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5414
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5415
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5416
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5417
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5418
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5419
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5420
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5421
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5422
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5423
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5424
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5425
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5426
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5427
MLW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5428
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5429
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5430
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5431
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5432
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5433
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5434
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5435
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5436
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5437
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5438
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5439
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5440
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5441
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5442
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5443
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5444
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5445
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5446
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5447
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5448
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5449
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_5450
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5451
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5452
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5453
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_5454
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5455
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_5456
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5457
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5458
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5459
3 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5460
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5461
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5462
The Cape

AutoCAD SHX Text_5463
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5464
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5465
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5466
68a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5467
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5468
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5469
402a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5470
The Deans

AutoCAD SHX Text_5471
Leisure Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_5472
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5473
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5474
The Annexe

AutoCAD SHX Text_5475
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5476
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5477
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5478
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5479
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5480
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5481
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5482
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5483
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5484
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5485
MLW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5486
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5487
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_5488
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5489
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5490
Bazehill Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_5491
The Old Dairy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5492
Skateboard Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5493
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5494
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5495
Broad Green Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_5496
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5497
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5498
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5499
Ocean Reach

AutoCAD SHX Text_5500
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5501
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5502
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5503
CG

AutoCAD SHX Text_5504
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5505
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5506
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5507
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5508
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5509
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_5510
Golden

AutoCAD SHX Text_5511
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_5512
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5513
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5514
53a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5515
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5516
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5517
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5518
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5519
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5520
Timor

AutoCAD SHX Text_5521
1 to 48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5522
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5523
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_5524
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5525
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_5526
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5527
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5528
Atlantic Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_5529
53a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5530
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5531
14b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5532
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_5533
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_5534
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5535
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5536
Pacific Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_5537
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5538
21a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5539
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5540
Grand Ocean

AutoCAD SHX Text_5541
Caspian Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_5542
Ionian Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_5543
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5544
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5545
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5546
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5547
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5548
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5549
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5550
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5551
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5552
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_5553
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_5554
1 to 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5555
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_5556
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5557
1 to 44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5558
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5559
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_5560
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5561
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5562
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5563
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5564
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5565
TB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5566
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5567
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5568
Co Const,ED & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5569
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5570
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5571
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5572
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5573
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5574
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5575
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5576
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5577
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5578
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5579
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_5580
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5581
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_5582
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5583
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5584
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5585
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_5586
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5587
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5588
E Baulk

AutoCAD SHX Text_5589
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5590
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5591
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5592
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5593
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5594
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5595
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5596
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5597
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5598
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5599
E Baulk

AutoCAD SHX Text_5600
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5601
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5602
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5603
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5604
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5605
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5606
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5607
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5608
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5609
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5610
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5611
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5612
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5613
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5614
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5615
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5616
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5617
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5618
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5619
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5620
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5621
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5622
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5623
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5624
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5625
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5626
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5627
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5628
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5629
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5630
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5631
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5632
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5633
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5634
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5635
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5636
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5637
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5638
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5639
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5640
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5641
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5642
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5643
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5644
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5645
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5646
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5647
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5648
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5649
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5650
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5651
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5652
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5653
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5654
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5655
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5656
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5657
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5658
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5659
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5660
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5661
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5662
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5663
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5664
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5665
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5666
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5667
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5668
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5669
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5670
BP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5671
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5672
BP

AutoCAD SHX Text_5673
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5674
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5675
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5676
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5677
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5678
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5679
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5680
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5681
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5682
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5683
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5684
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5685
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5686
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5687
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5688
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5689
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5690
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5691
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5692
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5693
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5694
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5695
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5696
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5697
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5698
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5699
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5700
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5701
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5702
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5703
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5704
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5705
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5706
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5707
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5708
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5709
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5710
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5711
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5712
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5713
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5714
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5715
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5716
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5717
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5718
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5719
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5720
418

AutoCAD SHX Text_5721
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_5722
420

AutoCAD SHX Text_5723
Portobello Sea Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5724
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_5725
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_5726
1 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5727
SUEZ WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5728
1 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5729
Baltic View

AutoCAD SHX Text_5730
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5731
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5732
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5733
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_5734
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_5735
1 to 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5736
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_5737
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5738
Roedean School

AutoCAD SHX Text_5739
Winton Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_5740
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5741
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5742
Ardwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_5743
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5744
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5745
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5746
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5747
Plough

AutoCAD SHX Text_5748
Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_5749
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5750
DENES MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5751
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5752
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5753
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5754
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5755
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5756
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5757
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5758
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5759
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5760
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5761
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_5762
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5763
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5764
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5765
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_5766
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5767
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5768
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5769
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5770
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5771
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5772
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5773
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5774
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5775
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5776
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5777
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5778
CHURCH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5779
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5780
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5781
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5782
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5783
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5784
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5785
The Elms Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5786
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5787
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5788
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5789
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5790
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5791
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5792
128a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5793
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_5794
130a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5795
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5796
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5797
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5798
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5799
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5800
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5801
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5802
Marine Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5803
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5804
Carfax

AutoCAD SHX Text_5805
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_5806
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5807
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_5808
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5809
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_5810
Hideaway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5811
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5812
St Patrick's

AutoCAD SHX Text_5813
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_5814
TYEDEAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5815
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5816
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5817
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5818
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5819
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5820
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_5821
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5822
26a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5823
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5824
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5825
HIGHVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5826
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5827
48a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5828
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5829
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5830
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5831
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5832
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5833
FAIRLIGHT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5834
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5835
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5836
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5837
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5838
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5839
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5840
SPRINGFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5841
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5842
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5843
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5844
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5845
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5846
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5847
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5848
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5849
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5850
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5851
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5852
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5853
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5854
CLIFF GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5855
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_5856
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5857
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5858
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5859
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5860
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5861
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_5862
Fairlight

AutoCAD SHX Text_5863
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5864
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5865
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5866
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5867
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5868
Telscombe Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_5869
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5870
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5871
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5872
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5873
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5874
BROOMFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5875
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5876
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5877
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5878
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5879
34b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5880
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5881
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5882
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5883
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5884
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5885
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5886
34a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5887
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5888
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5889
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5890
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5891
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5892
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5893
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5894
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5895
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5896
GRASSMERE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5897
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5898
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5899
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5900
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5901
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5902
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5903
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5904
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5905
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5906
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5907
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_5908
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5909
44a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5910
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5911
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5912
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5913
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5914
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5915
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5916
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5917
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5918
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5919
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5920
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5921
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5922
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5923
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5924
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5925
31.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5926
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5927
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5928
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5929
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5930
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5931
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5932
41a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5933
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5934
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5935
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5936
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5937
33.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5938
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5939
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5940
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5941
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5942
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5943
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5944
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5945
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5946
BUCKHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5947
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5948
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_5949
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5950
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5951
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5952
Seacliffe

AutoCAD SHX Text_5953
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5954
Tavern

AutoCAD SHX Text_5955
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5956
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5957
369

AutoCAD SHX Text_5958
Telscombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_5959
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5960
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5961
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5962
Tuscan

AutoCAD SHX Text_5963
392

AutoCAD SHX Text_5964
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5965
14 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5966
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5967
374

AutoCAD SHX Text_5968
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5969
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5970
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5971
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5972
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5973
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5974
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5975
11 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5976
1 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5977
378

AutoCAD SHX Text_5978
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5979
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5980
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_5981
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5982
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5983
403

AutoCAD SHX Text_5984
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5985
424

AutoCAD SHX Text_5986
29.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5987
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5988
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5989
Ventoso

AutoCAD SHX Text_5990
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_5991
1 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5992
New

AutoCAD SHX Text_5993
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5994
5 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5995
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5996
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5997
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_5998
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5999
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6000
BROOMFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6001
438a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6002
416

AutoCAD SHX Text_6003
27.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6004
384

AutoCAD SHX Text_6005
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6006
405

AutoCAD SHX Text_6007
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6008
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6009
Deborah

AutoCAD SHX Text_6010
THE ESPLANADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6011
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6012
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6013
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6014
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6015
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6016
438

AutoCAD SHX Text_6017
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6018
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6019
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6020
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6021
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6022
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6023
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6024
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6025
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6026
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6027
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6028
26.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6029
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6030
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6031
26.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6032
Fairhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_6033
388

AutoCAD SHX Text_6034
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6035
398

AutoCAD SHX Text_6036
393

AutoCAD SHX Text_6037
28.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6038
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6039
Sussex

AutoCAD SHX Text_6040
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6041
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6042
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6043
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6044
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6045
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6046
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6047
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6048
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6049
23.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6050
FAIRLIGHT AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6051
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6052
14 to 27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6053
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6054
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6055
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6056
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6057
391

AutoCAD SHX Text_6058
Aqua House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6059
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6060
Evershed

AutoCAD SHX Text_6061
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6062
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6063
AMHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6064
422

AutoCAD SHX Text_6065
Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_6066
Telscombe Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_6067
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6068
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6069
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6070
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6071
TELSCOMBE CLIFFS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6072
SUSSEX WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6073
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6074
426

AutoCAD SHX Text_6075
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6076
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6077
9 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6078
446

AutoCAD SHX Text_6079
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6080
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6081
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6082
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6083
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6084
379

AutoCAD SHX Text_6085
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6086
396

AutoCAD SHX Text_6087
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6088
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6089
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6090
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6091
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6092
396a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6093
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6094
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6095
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6096
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6097
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6098
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6099
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6100
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6101
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6102
RYE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6103
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6104
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6105
Pedlersburgh

AutoCAD SHX Text_6106
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6107
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6108
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6109
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6110
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6111
Telscombe Tye

AutoCAD SHX Text_6112
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6113
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6114
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6115
SALTDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6116
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6117
Tenant Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6118
Slurry Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_6119
The Saltdean Kennels

AutoCAD SHX Text_6120
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6121
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6122
Coombe Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_6123
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6124
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6125
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6126
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6127
65.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6128
SALTDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6129
114.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6130
111.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6131
Coombe Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_6132
WESTFIELD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6133
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6134
Jesmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6135
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6136
HOMEBUSH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6137
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_6138
Landour

AutoCAD SHX Text_6139
St Michaels

AutoCAD SHX Text_6140
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6141
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_6142
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6143
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6144
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6145
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6146
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6147
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6148
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6149
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6150
WESTFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6151
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6152
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_6153
COOMBE MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_6154
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6155
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6156
Grenofen

AutoCAD SHX Text_6157
Coombe

AutoCAD SHX Text_6158
AVENUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6159
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_6160
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6161
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6162
Coombe Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6163
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6164
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6165
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6166
119.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6167
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6168
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6169
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6170
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_6171
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6172
The Burgh

AutoCAD SHX Text_6173
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_6174
82.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6175
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6176
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6177
118.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6178
111.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6179
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6180
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6181
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6182
102.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6183
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6184
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6185
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6186
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6187
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6188
89.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6189
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6190
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6191
113.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6192
Highdole Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6193
119.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6194
Settlement

AutoCAD SHX Text_6195
113.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6196
68.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6197
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6198
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6199
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6200
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6201
30.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6202
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6203
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6204
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6205
Greenway Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_6206
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6207
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6208
31.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6209
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_6210
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6211
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6212
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6213
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_6214
23.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6215
25.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6216
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6217
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6218
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6219
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6220
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6221
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6222
30.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6223
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6224
30.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6225
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_6226
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_6227
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6228
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6229
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6230
Sand and Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6231
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6232
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_6233
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6234
29.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6235
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_6236
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6237
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_6238
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6239
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6240
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6241
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6242
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6243
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6244
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6245
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6246
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6247
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_6248
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6249
Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_6250
Tythe Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6251
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6252
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6253
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6254
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6255
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_6256
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_6257
The Olde Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6258
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6259
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6260
End

AutoCAD SHX Text_6261
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6262
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6263
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_6264
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6265
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6266
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6267
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6268
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_6269
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_6270
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_6271
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6272
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6273
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6274
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6275
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6276
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6277
Lych

AutoCAD SHX Text_6278
Greenways

AutoCAD SHX Text_6279
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_6280
Beacon

AutoCAD SHX Text_6281
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6282
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_6283
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6284
118a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6285
St Wulfran's Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6286
43.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6287
WOODLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_6288
Sunset

AutoCAD SHX Text_6289
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6290
56.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6291
136a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6292
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_6293
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_6294
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6295
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6296
59.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6297
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_6298
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6299
The Cot

AutoCAD SHX Text_6300
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6301
THE RIDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6302
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6303
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6304
Bulstrode

AutoCAD SHX Text_6305
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6306
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6307
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_6308
Byre Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6309
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_6310
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_6311
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6312
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6313
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_6314
48.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6315
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6316
118b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6317
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6318
Flints

AutoCAD SHX Text_6319
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6320
Ovingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_6321
OVINGDEAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6322
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6323
Grange Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6324
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_6325
Willorose

AutoCAD SHX Text_6326
Hames

AutoCAD SHX Text_6327
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6328
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6329
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_6330
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_6331
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6332
63.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6333
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6334
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6335
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6336
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6337
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_6338
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6339
Nook

AutoCAD SHX Text_6340
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_6341
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_6342
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6343
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_6344
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_6345
34.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6346
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6347
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_6348
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6349
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6350
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6351
134a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6352
Greenways

AutoCAD SHX Text_6353
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6354
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_6355
WANDERDOWN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6356
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6357
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6358
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_6359
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6360
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_6361
Orchard Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6362
Ashdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_6363
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6364
Ovingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_6365
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6366
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6367
Three Ways

AutoCAD SHX Text_6368
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_6369
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_6370
Granary

AutoCAD SHX Text_6371
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6372
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6373
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_6374
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6375
Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_6376
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6377
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6378
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6379
Upper

AutoCAD SHX Text_6380
59.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6381
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6382
Bulstrode

AutoCAD SHX Text_6383
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6384
36.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6385
South

AutoCAD SHX Text_6386
North

AutoCAD SHX Text_6387
Hall Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6388
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6389
61.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6390
64.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6391
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6392
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6393
Meadows

AutoCAD SHX Text_6394
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_6395
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6396
Preambles

AutoCAD SHX Text_6397
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6398
61.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6399
Cattle Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6400
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6401
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6402
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6403
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6404
53.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6405
Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_6406
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6407
Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_6408
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6409
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6410
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6411
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6412
Bulstrode

AutoCAD SHX Text_6413
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6414
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_6415
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6416
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_6417
26.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6418
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6419
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6420
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6421
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6422
88a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6423
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6424
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6425
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6426
61.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6427
DOWER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6428
AINSWORTH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6429
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6430
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6431
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6432
28.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6433
AINSWORTH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6434
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6435
35.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6436
48.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6437
Ovingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_6438
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6439
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6440
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6441
68.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6442
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6443
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6444
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6445
25.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6446
30.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6447
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6448
31.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6449
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6450
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6451
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6452
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6453
Air Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_6454
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6455
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6456
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6457
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6458
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6459
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6460
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6461
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6462
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_6463
66.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6464
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6465
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6466
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6467
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6468
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6469
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6470
Cattle Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6471
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6472
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_6473
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6474
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6475
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6476
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6477
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6478
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6479
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6480
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6481
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6482
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_6483
402

AutoCAD SHX Text_6484
75.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6485
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6486
96.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6487
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_6488
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6489
380

AutoCAD SHX Text_6490
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6491
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6492
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6493
390

AutoCAD SHX Text_6494
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6495
CRESCENT DRIVE SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6496
70.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6497
86.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6498
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_6499
Woodside

AutoCAD SHX Text_6500
99.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6501
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6502
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6503
89.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6504
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_6505
Tumulus

AutoCAD SHX Text_6506
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6507
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_6508
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6509
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6510
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6511
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6512
80.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6513
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6514
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6515
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6516
Wick Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_6517
Mount Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_6518
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6519
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6520
OVINGDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6521
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6522
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6523
76.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6524
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6525
76.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6526
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6527
79.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6528
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_6529
69.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6530
84.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6531
Mount Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_6532
89.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6533
Monterey

AutoCAD SHX Text_6534
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6535
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6536
OVINGDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6537
Winton

AutoCAD SHX Text_6538
Barbara

AutoCAD SHX Text_6539
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6540
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6541
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6542
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6543
58.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6544
Ketts Ridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6545
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6546
Sandhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_6547
Santa

AutoCAD SHX Text_6548
Fairways

AutoCAD SHX Text_6549
The Pines

AutoCAD SHX Text_6550
Badgers Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_6551
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6552
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6553
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6554
73.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6555
96.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6556
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6557
55.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6558
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6559
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6560
80.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6561
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6562
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6563
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6564
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6565
Court Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6566
Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_6567
29.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6568
Norton

AutoCAD SHX Text_6569
War

AutoCAD SHX Text_6570
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6571
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6572
Little

AutoCAD SHX Text_6573
Squash

AutoCAD SHX Text_6574
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6575
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6576
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6577
Kipling Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6578
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6579
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6580
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_6581
St Margaret's

AutoCAD SHX Text_6582
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6583
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6584
25.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6585
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6586
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6587
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6588
Little Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6589
Court House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6590
NORTHGATE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6591
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6592
Farm House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6593
West

AutoCAD SHX Text_6594
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6595
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6596
Cannongate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6597
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6598
Flagstones

AutoCAD SHX Text_6599
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_6600
CHALLONERS MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6601
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_6602
Downlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_6603
Norton

AutoCAD SHX Text_6604
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_6605
St Margaret's

AutoCAD SHX Text_6606
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6607
Kipling Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6608
22.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6609
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6610
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6611
Lych

AutoCAD SHX Text_6612
19.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6613
BURNES VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6614
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6615
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6616
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6617
Prospect Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6618
Convent

AutoCAD SHX Text_6619
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6620
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6621
Rottingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_6622
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6623
THE ROTYNGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6624
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6625
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6626
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6627
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6628
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6629
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_6630
The Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_6631
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_6632
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_6633
Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_6634
Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_6635
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6636
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6637
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6638
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6639
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6640
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6641
Car

AutoCAD SHX Text_6642
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6643
Pineglade

AutoCAD SHX Text_6644
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6645
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6646
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6647
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6648
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6649
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6650
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6651
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6652
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6653
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6654
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6655
The Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_6656
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6657
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6658
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6659
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6660
Aubrey House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6661
BAZEHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6662
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6663
Coppers

AutoCAD SHX Text_6664
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6665
North End House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6666
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6667
2 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6668
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6669
Dale

AutoCAD SHX Text_6670
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_6671
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6672
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6673
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6674
Down House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6675
18.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6676
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6677
32.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6678
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6679
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6680
Sycamores

AutoCAD SHX Text_6681
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6682
Bowls Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6683
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6684
Northgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6685
Squash

AutoCAD SHX Text_6686
St Martha's

AutoCAD SHX Text_6687
The Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_6688
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6689
Lanterns

AutoCAD SHX Text_6690
30.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6691
The Byre

AutoCAD SHX Text_6692
29.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6693
Challoners

AutoCAD SHX Text_6694
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_6695
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_6696
THE ROTYNGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6697
41.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6698
Timbers

AutoCAD SHX Text_6699
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6700
Court House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6701
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6702
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_6703
Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6704
Tudor

AutoCAD SHX Text_6705
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6706
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_6707
Box Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6708
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6709
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6710
28.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6711
St Dunstan's Training Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_6712
Beacon Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6713
Tumuli

AutoCAD SHX Text_6714
GREENWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6715
and Holiday Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_6716
Cliff

AutoCAD SHX Text_6717
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6718
Miniature Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_6719
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6720
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_6721
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6722
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_6723
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_6724
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6725
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6726
Greenway Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_6727
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_6728
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6729
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6730
15.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6731
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6732
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_6733
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_6734
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6735
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_6736
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6737
Olde Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_6738
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6739
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6740
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6741
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6742
Sorting

AutoCAD SHX Text_6743
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6744
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6745
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6746
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6747
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_6748
VICARAGE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6749
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6750
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6751
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6752
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6753
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6754
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_6755
14.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6756
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6757
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6758
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6759
St Aubyns

AutoCAD SHX Text_6760
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6761
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6762
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6763
RC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6764
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6765
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_6766
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6767
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6768
18.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6769
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_6770
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6771
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6772
Whipping

AutoCAD SHX Text_6773
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6774
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6775
NEVILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6776
Laureens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6777
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6778
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6779
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_6780
Caspian

AutoCAD SHX Text_6781
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6782
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6783
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6784
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6785
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6786
Margos

AutoCAD SHX Text_6787
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6788
Cownwy Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6789
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6790
WHIPPING POST LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6791
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6792
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6793
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6794
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6795
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6796
Sandhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_6797
White Horse

AutoCAD SHX Text_6798
24.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6799
WEST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_6800
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6801
Park Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_6802
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6803
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6804
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6805
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6806
Blacksmith

AutoCAD SHX Text_6807
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6808
(Library)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6809
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6810
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6811
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_6812
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6813
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_6814
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6815
32.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6816
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_6817
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6818
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6819
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6820
16.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6821
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6822
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_6823
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_6824
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6825
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6826
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6827
2 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6828
Honeysuckle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6829
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6830
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_6831
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6832
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6833
5.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6834
Beacon Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_6835
Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_6836
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6837
9 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6838
5.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6839
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6840
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6841
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6842
6.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6843
Olde Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_6844
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_6845
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6846
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6847
Rumneys

AutoCAD SHX Text_6848
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6849
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_6850
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6851
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6852
Brookside

AutoCAD SHX Text_6853
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_6854
OLDE PLACE MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6855
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6856
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6857
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6858
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6859
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6860
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6861
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6862
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6863
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6864
Cavendish

AutoCAD SHX Text_6865
Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_6866
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6867
14 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6868
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6869
Forge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6870
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6871
Cliff Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6872
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6873
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6874
73 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6875
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6876
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6877
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_6878
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_6879
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6880
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6881
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6882
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6883
Our Lady of Lourdes

AutoCAD SHX Text_6884
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6885
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6886
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6887
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6888
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6889
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6890
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6891
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6892
Chyngton

AutoCAD SHX Text_6893
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6894
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6895
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6896
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6897
St James's

AutoCAD SHX Text_6898
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6899
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_6900
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6901
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6902
Braemar

AutoCAD SHX Text_6903
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6904
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6905
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6906
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6907
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6908
VICARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6909
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_6910
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6911
Westview

AutoCAD SHX Text_6912
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6913
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_6914
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6915
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6916
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_6917
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_6918
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6919
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6920
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6921
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_6922
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6923
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6924
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_6925
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6926
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6927
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_6928
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6929
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_6930
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6931
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6932
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6933
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_6934
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6935
SHEEP WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_6936
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6937
86a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6938
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6939
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6940
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_6941
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6942
Pax

AutoCAD SHX Text_6943
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6944
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6945
Post House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6946
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6947
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6948
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6949
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6950
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6951
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_6952
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6953
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6954
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6955
86c

AutoCAD SHX Text_6956
Caspian

AutoCAD SHX Text_6957
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6958
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6959
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6960
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6961
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_6962
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6963
Southdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_6964
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_6965
Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text_6966
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6967
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6968
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6969
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6970
Exchange

AutoCAD SHX Text_6971
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_6972
5.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6973
14.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6974
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6975
29.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6976
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6977
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6978
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_6979
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6980
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6981
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_6982
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6983
35.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6984
5.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6985
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6986
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_6987
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_6988
Rottingdean Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_6989
Burial Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_6990
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6991
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6992
40.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6993
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6994
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6995
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_6996
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6997
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6998
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6999
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7000
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7001
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7002
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7003
ROWAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7004
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7005
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7006
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7007
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7008
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7009
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7010
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7011
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7012
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7013
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7014
WANDERDOWN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7015
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7016
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_7017
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7018
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7019
WANDERDOWN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7020
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7021
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7022
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_7023
Longhill School

AutoCAD SHX Text_7024
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7025
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7026
Kapiolani

AutoCAD SHX Text_7027
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7028
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7029
WANDERDOWN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7030
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7031
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7032
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7033
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7034
ELVIN CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7035
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7036
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7037
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7038
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7039
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7040
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7041
WANDERDOWN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7042
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7043
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7044
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7045
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7046
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7047
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7048
53.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7049
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7050
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7051
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7052
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7053
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7054
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7055
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7056
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7057
THE VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7058
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7059
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7060
Brightsands

AutoCAD SHX Text_7061
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7062
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7063
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7064
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7065
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7066
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7067
53.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7068
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7069
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7070
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_7071
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7072
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7073
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7074
LONGHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7075
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7076
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7077
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7078
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7079
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7080
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7081
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_7082
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7083
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7084
Long Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_7085
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7086
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7087
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7088
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7089
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7090
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7091
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7092
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7093
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7094
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7095
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7096
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_7097
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7098
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7099
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7100
ELEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7101
62.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7102
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7103
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7104
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7105
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7106
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7107
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7108
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7109
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7110
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7111
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7112
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7113
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7114
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7115
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7116
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7117
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7118
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7119
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7120
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7121
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7122
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7123
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7124
MARTYN'S CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7125
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7126
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7127
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7128
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7129
NEW BARN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7130
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7131
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7132
PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7133
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7134
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7135
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7136
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_7137
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7138
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7139
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7140
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7141
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7142
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7143
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7144
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7145
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7146
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7147
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7148
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7149
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7150
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7151
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7152
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7153
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7154
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7155
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7156
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7157
COURT ORD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7158
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_7159
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7160
Court Ord Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_7161
30.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7162
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7163
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7164
MEADOW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7165
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7166
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7167
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7168
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7169
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7170
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7171
COURT FARM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7172
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7173
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7174
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7175
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7176
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_7177
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7178
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7179
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7180
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7181
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7182
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7183
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7184
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7185
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7186
WILKINSON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7187
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7188
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7189
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7190
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7191
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_7192
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7193
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7194
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7195
Trough

AutoCAD SHX Text_7196
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7197
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7198
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_7199
Trough

AutoCAD SHX Text_7200
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7201
New Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_7202
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7203
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7204
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7205
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7206
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7207
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7208
MEADOW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7209
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7210
Bramble Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7211
Mound

AutoCAD SHX Text_7212
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7213
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7214
24.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7215
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7216
34.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7217
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7218
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7219
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7220
44.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7221
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7222
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7223
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7224
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7225
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7226
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7227
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7228
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7229
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7230
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7231
Treetops

AutoCAD SHX Text_7232
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7233
Beacon Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_7234
56.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7235
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7236
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7237
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7238
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7239
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7240
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7241
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7242
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7243
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7244
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7245
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7246
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7247
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7248
29.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7249
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7250
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_7251
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7252
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7253
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7254
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7255
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7256
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7257
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7258
LONGHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7259
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7260
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7261
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7262
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7263
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7264
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7265
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7266
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7267
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7268
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7269
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7270
60.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7271
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7272
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7273
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7274
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7275
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7276
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7277
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7278
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7279
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7280
AINSWORTH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7281
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7282
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7283
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7284
56.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7285
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7286
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7287
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7288
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7289
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7290
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7291
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7292
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7293
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7294
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7295
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7296
ELVIN CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7297
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7298
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7299
BEACON HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7300
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7301
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7302
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7303
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7304
58.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7305
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7306
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7307
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7308
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7309
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7310
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7311
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7312
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7313
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7314
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7315
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7316
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_7317
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7318
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7319
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7320
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7321
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7322
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7323
ELEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7324
47.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7325
ELEY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7326
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7327
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7328
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_7329
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7330
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7331
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7332
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7333
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7334
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_7335
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7336
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7337
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_7338
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7339
79.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7340
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7341
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_7342
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_7343
RAVENSWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7344
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7345
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7346
STANSTEAD CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7347
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7348
74.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7349
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7350
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_7351
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7352
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7353
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7354
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_7355
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7356
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7357
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_7358
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7359
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_7360
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7361
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7362
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7363
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_7364
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7365
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7366
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7367
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7368
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7369
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7370
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7371
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7372
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_7373
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_7374
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7375
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7376
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7377
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7378
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7379
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7380
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7381
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_7382
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7383
85.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7384
71.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7385
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7386
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7387
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7388
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7389
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7390
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7391
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7392
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7393
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7394
62.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7395
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7396
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7397
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7398
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7399
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7400
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7401
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_7402
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7403
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_7404
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7405
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7406
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7407
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7408
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7409
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7410
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7411
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7412
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7413
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7414
PINFOLD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7415
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7416
The Old Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7417
67.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7418
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7419
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7420
The Toby Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_7421
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7422
ABINGER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7423
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7424
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_7425
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_7426
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7427
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7428
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7429
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_7430
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7431
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7432
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7433
ROSEDENE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7434
61.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7435
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7436
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7437
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7438
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7439
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7440
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7441
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7442
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7443
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7444
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7445
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7446
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7447
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7448
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7449
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_7450
BROWNLEAF ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7451
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7452
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_7453
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7454
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7455
55.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7456
GREEN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7457
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7458
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7459
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7460
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7461
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7462
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7463
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7464
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7465
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_7466
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7467
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7468
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7469
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7470
Piggeries

AutoCAD SHX Text_7471
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7472
57.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7473
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7474
DONNINGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7475
COWLEY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7476
SELHURST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7477
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7478
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7479
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7480
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7481
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7482
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7483
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_7484
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7485
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7486
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7487
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7488
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7489
Swallowdene

AutoCAD SHX Text_7490
BROAD GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7491
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7492
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7493
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7494
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7495
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7496
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7497
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_7498
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7499
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7500
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_7501
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7502
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7503
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_7504
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7505
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7506
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_7507
MERSTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7508
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7509
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7510
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_7511
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7512
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7513
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_7514
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7515
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7516
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_7517
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7518
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7519
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7520
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7521
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7522
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7523
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7524
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7525
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7526
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7527
(site of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7528
Settlement

AutoCAD SHX Text_7529
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7530
Gable End

AutoCAD SHX Text_7531
Woodingdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_7532
Woodingcote Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7533
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7534
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7535
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7536
THE VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7537
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7538
Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_7539
49.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7540
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7541
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7542
55.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7543
OVINGDEAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7544
Fir Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_7545
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7546
Woodingcote

AutoCAD SHX Text_7547
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7548
Water Gauge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7549
Newlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_7550
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7551
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7552
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7553
Vale

AutoCAD SHX Text_7554
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7555
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7556
59.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7557
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7558
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7559
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7560
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7561
55.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7562
Rottingdean Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_7563
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7564
FALMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7565
59.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7566
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7567
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7568
25.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7569
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_7570
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_7571
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_7572
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7573
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_7574
29.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7575
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_7576
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_7577
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_7578
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_7579
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_7580
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7581
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7582
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_7583
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7584
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7585
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7586
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7587
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7588
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7589
LUSTRELLS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7590
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7591
FALMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7592
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7593
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7594
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7595
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7596
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7597
LENHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7598
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7599
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7600
67.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7601
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7602
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7603
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7604
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7605
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7606
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7607
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7608
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7609
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7610
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7611
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7612
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7613
43a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7614
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7615
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7616
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7617
LUSTRELLS CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7618
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7619
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7620
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7621
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7622
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7623
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7624
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_7625
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7626
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7627
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7628
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7629
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7630
79.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7631
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7632
LINDFIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7633
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7634
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7635
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7636
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7637
77.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7638
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7639
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7640
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7641
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7642
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7643
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7644
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7645
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7646
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7647
56.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7648
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7649
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7650
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7651
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7652
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7653
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7654
Whiteway Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_7655
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7656
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7657
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7658
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7659
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7660
82.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7661
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7662
58.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7663
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7664
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7665
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7666
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7667
CHORLEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7668
72.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7669
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7670
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7671
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7672
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7673
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7674
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7675
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7676
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7677
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7678
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7679
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7680
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7681
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7682
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7683
WESTMESTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7684
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7685
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7686
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7687
78.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7688
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7689
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7690
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7691
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7692
71.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7693
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7694
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7695
LUSTRELLS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7696
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7697
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7698
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7699
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7700
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7701
BISHOPSTONE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7702
60.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7703
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7704
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7705
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7706
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7707
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7708
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7709
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7710
ASHDOWN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7711
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7712
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7713
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7714
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7715
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7716
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7717
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7718
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7719
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7720
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7721
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7722
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7723
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7724
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7725
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7726
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7727
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7728
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7729
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_7730
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7731
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7732
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7733
GORHAM CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7734
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7735
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7736
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7737
Whiteway Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_7738
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7739
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7740
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7741
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7742
30.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7743
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7744
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7745
Graveyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_7746
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7747
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7748
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7749
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7750
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7751
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7752
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7753
Grange Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_7754
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7755
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7756
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7757
Tudor Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_7758
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7759
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7760
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7761
Graveyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_7762
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7763
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7764
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7765
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7766
30.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7767
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7768
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7769
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7770
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7771
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7772
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7773
Doyly Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7774
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7775
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7776
10 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7777
16 to 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7778
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7779
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7780
Bazehill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7781
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7782
Shepherds Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7783
Maddalena

AutoCAD SHX Text_7784
GORHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7785
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7786
40.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7787
Whiteway Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_7788
LUSTRELLS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7789
31.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7790
Sunrise

AutoCAD SHX Text_7791
Point Clear

AutoCAD SHX Text_7792
CHALLONERS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7793
NORTHFIELD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7794
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7795
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7796
Dean Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_7797
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7798
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7799
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7800
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7801
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7802
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7803
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7804
31.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7805
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7806
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7807
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7808
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7809
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7810
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7811
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7812
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7813
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7814
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7815
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7816
47.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7817
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7818
DEAN COURT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7819
ROYLES CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7820
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7821
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7822
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7823
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7824
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7825
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7826
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7827
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7828
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7829
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_7830
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7831
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_7832
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7833
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7834
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7835
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7836
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_7837
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7838
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7839
The Headland

AutoCAD SHX Text_7840
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7841
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7842
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7843
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7844
LENHAM ROAD EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7845
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7846
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7847
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7848
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7849
Westward

AutoCAD SHX Text_7850
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7851
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7852
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7853
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7854
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7855
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7856
ABBOTSBURY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7857
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7858
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7859
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7860
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7861
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7862
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7863
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7864
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_7865
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7866
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_7867
THE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_7868
53.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7869
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_7870
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7871
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_7872
CHICHESTER DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7873
59.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7874
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7875
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7876
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7877
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7878
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7879
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7880
FOUNTHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7881
FOUNTHILL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7882
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7883
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7884
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7885
35.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7886
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7887
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7888
ASHDOWN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7889
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_7890
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7891
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7892
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7893
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7894
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7895
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7896
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7897
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7898
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7899
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7900
GRAND CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7901
ARUNDEL DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7902
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7903
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7904
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7905
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_7906
CRANLEIGH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7907
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7908
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7909
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7910
HILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7911
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_7912
153a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7913
52.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7914
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7915
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7916
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7917
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7918
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7919
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7920
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7921
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7922
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7923
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7924
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7925
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7926
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7927
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7928
59.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7929
Bellaria

AutoCAD SHX Text_7930
74.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7931
26.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7932
Chrysalis

AutoCAD SHX Text_7933
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7934
Field End

AutoCAD SHX Text_7935
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7936
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7937
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7938
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7939
LENHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7940
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7941
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7942
44.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7943
LITTLE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7944
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7945
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7946
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7947
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7948
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7949
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7950
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7951
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7952
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7953
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7954
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7955
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7956
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7957
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7958
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7959
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7960
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7961
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7962
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7963
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7964
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7965
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7966
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7967
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7968
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7969
159a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7970
EILEEN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7971
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7972
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7973
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7974
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7975
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7976
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7977
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7978
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7979
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7980
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7981
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7982
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7983
44.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7984
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7985
65.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7986
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_7987
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7988
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7989
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7990
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7991
70.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7992
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_7993
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7994
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_7995
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7996
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7997
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7998
The Dome

AutoCAD SHX Text_7999
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8000
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8001
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8002
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8003
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8004
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8005
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8006
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8007
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8008
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8009
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_8010
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8011
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8012
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8013
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8014
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8015
Pentheos

AutoCAD SHX Text_8016
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8017
The Rosary

AutoCAD SHX Text_8018
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_8019
SALTDEAN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8020
MARINE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8021
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8022
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8023
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8024
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8025
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8026
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8027
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8028
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8029
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8030
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8031
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_8032
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8033
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8034
Stirrups

AutoCAD SHX Text_8035
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8036
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8037
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8038
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8039
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8040
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8041
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8042
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8043
1 to 12 14 to 43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8044
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8045
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8046
ST AUBYN'S MEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8047
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8048
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_8049
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8050
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8051
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8052
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8053
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8054
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8055
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8056
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8057
THE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_8058
ROMNEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8059
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_8060
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8061
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_8062
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8063
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8064
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8065
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8066
Our Lady

AutoCAD SHX Text_8067
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_8068
LITTLE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8069
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_8070
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8071
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8072
St Ives

AutoCAD SHX Text_8073
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8074
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_8075
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8076
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8077
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8078
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8079
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8080
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8081
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8082
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8083
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8084
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8085
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_8086
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_8087
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8088
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8089
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_8090
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8091
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_8092
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8093
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8094
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_8095
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8096
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8097
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8098
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8099
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8100
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8101
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8102
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_8103
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8104
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8105
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8106
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8107
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8108
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8109
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_8110
St Margarets

AutoCAD SHX Text_8111
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8112
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8113
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8114
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_8115
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8116
59 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8117
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_8118
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8119
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8120
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8121
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8122
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8123
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8124
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8125
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8126
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8127
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8128
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8129
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8130
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8131
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8132
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8133
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_8134
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8135
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8136
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8137
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8138
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8139
THE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_8140
30 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8141
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8142
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8143
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8144
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8145
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8146
22.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8147
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8148
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8149
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8150
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8151
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8152
GRAND CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8153
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8154
109a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8155
1 to 12, 12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8156
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8157
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8158
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8159
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8160
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8161
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8162
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8163
Kipling Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8164
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_8165
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8166
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8167
Greenway

AutoCAD SHX Text_8168
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8169
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_8170
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8171
Highcliff Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8172
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8173
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8174
28.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8175
First Aid Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_8176
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8177
Frederic

AutoCAD SHX Text_8178
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8179
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8180
22.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8181
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8182
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8183
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8184
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_8185
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8186
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_8187
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8188
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8189
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8190
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8191
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_8192
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8193
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8194
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8195
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8196
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8197
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8198
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8199
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8200
LENHAM ROAD WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_8201
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8202
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_8203
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8204
Thistle-Doo

AutoCAD SHX Text_8205
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_8206
of Lourdes

AutoCAD SHX Text_8207
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_8208
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_8209
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8210
Eastfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_8211
War Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_8212
D Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_8213
Highbury House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8214
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8215
Blenheim

AutoCAD SHX Text_8216
St Edmunds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8217
STEYNING ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8218
Rotherdown

AutoCAD SHX Text_8219
Eagles

AutoCAD SHX Text_8220
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_8221
Strood

AutoCAD SHX Text_8222
Green Shutters

AutoCAD SHX Text_8223
NEWLANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8224
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8225
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_8226
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8227
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8228
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_8229
KNOLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8230
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8231
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8232
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_8233
CHAILEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8234
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8235
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8236
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8237
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8238
100.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8239
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_8240
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8241
98.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8242
89.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8243
91.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8244
93.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8245
108.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8246
103.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8247
87.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8248
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8249
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8250
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8251
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8252
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8253
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8254
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_8255
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_8256
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_8257
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_8258
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8259
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8260
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_8261
DEAN COURT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8262
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8263
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8264
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8265
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_8266
75.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8267
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_8268
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_8269
FALMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8270
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8271
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_8272
58.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8273
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8274
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8275
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8276
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_8277
GORHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8278
56.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8279
86.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8280
83.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8281
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8282
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_8283
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_8284
73.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8285
BAZEHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8286
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8287
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8288
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8289
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8290
WELESMERE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8291
81.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8292
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8293
78.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8294
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8295
63.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8296
68.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8297
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8298
60.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8299
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8300
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8301
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8302
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8303
75.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8304
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8305
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8306
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8307
Balsdean Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8308
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_8309
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_8310
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_8311
Field System

AutoCAD SHX Text_8312
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_8313
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8314
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8315
High Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_8316
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_8317
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8318
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8319
119.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8320
114.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8321
112.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8322
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8323
Balsdean Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_8324
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8325
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8326
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8327
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8328
61.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8329
HAMSEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8330
Latchwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_8331
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8332
ARDINGLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8333
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8334
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8335
HAMSEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8336
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8337
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8338
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8339
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8340
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8341
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8342
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8343
42a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8344
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8345
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8346
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8347
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8348
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8349
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8350
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8351
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8352
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8353
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8354
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8355
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8356
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8357
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8358
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8359
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8360
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8361
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8362
Hunters'

AutoCAD SHX Text_8363
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8364
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8365
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_8366
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8367
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8368
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_8369
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8370
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8371
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8372
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8373
NUTLEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8374
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8375
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8376
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8377
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8378
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8379
Tye Chalet

AutoCAD SHX Text_8380
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8381
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8382
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8383
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8384
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8385
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8386
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_8387
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8388
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_8389
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8390
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8391
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8392
Reba Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8393
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_8394
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8395
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8396
COWDEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8397
Anscomb

AutoCAD SHX Text_8398
The Hacienda

AutoCAD SHX Text_8399
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8400
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8401
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8402
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8403
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8404
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8405
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8406
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8407
WALESBEECH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8408
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8409
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8410
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8411
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8412
Rhondhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_8413
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8414
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8415
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8416
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8417
Boulders & Scattered Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8418
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8419
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8420
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8421
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8422
39.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8423
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8424
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_8425
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8426
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8427
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8428
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8429
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8430
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8431
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8432
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8433
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8434
25.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8435
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8436
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8437
CROWBOROUGH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8438
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8439
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_8440
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8441
42b

AutoCAD SHX Text_8442
Martlet House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8443
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8444
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8445
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8446
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8447
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8448
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8449
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8450
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8451
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_8452
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8453
Bannings Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_8454
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8455
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8456
31 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8457
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8458
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8459
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8460
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8461
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8462
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_8463
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_8464
31.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8465
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8466
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8467
TYE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8468
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8469
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8470
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8471
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_8472
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8473
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8474
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8475
26.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8476
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8477
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8478
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8479
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8480
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8481
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8482
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8483
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_8484
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8485
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8486
Moon

AutoCAD SHX Text_8487
Rowanden

AutoCAD SHX Text_8488
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8489
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8490
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8491
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8492
187 189

AutoCAD SHX Text_8493
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8494
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8495
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8496
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8497
Undercliff Walk

AutoCAD SHX Text_8498
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8499
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8500
26.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8501
1 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8502
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8503
Curzon House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8504
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8505
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8506
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8507
Lynwood Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8508
20.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8509
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8510
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8511
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8512
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8513
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8514
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8515
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8516
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8517
Teynham House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8518
24.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8519
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8520
185

AutoCAD SHX Text_8521
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8522
Spanish Lady

AutoCAD SHX Text_8523
MARINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8524
1 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8525
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8526
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8527
Saltdean Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8528
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8529
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8530
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8531
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_8532
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_8533
29.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8534
Marine Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_8535
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8536
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8537
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_8538
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8539
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_8540
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8541
LONGRIDGE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8542
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_8543
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8544
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8545
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8546
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8547
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8548
181

AutoCAD SHX Text_8549
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8550
Roofs

AutoCAD SHX Text_8551
LYNWOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8552
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_8553
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_8554
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8555
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8556
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8557
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_8558
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8559
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8560
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8561
26a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8562
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_8563
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8564
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_8565
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8566
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8567
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8568
17.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8569
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8570
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8571
23.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8572
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_8573
Boulders & Scattered Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_8574
MLW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8575
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8576
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8577
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8578
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_8579
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8580
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8581
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8582
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8583
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8584
MOUNT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8585
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8586
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8587
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_8588
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_8589
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8590
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8591
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8592
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_8593
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8594
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_8595
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8596
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8597
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8598
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8599
SALTDEAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_8600
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8601
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8602
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_8603
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8604
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8605
24.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8606
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8607
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_8608
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8609
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_8610
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8611
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8612
47.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8613
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_8614
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8615
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_8616
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8617
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8618
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8619
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8620
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8621
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8622
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_8623
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8624
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8625
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8626
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8627
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_8628
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_8629
GREENBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8630
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8631
HEATHFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8632
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8633
ARLINGTON GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8634
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_8635
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_8636
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8637
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8638
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8639
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8640
SHEPHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8641
GLYNDE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8642
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_8643
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8644
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8645
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8646
SALTDEAN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8647
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8648
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8649
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8650
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8651
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8652
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_8653
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8654
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_8655
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_8656
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8657
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8658
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8659
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_8660
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8661
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8662
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_8663
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8664
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8665
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8666
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_8667
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8668
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8669
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8670
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8671
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_8672
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8673
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_8674
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8675
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8676
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8677
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_8678
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8679
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_8680
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_8681
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8682
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8683
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8684
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8685
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8686
20.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8687
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8688
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_8689
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_8690
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8691
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8692
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8693
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_8694
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8695
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8696
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8697
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_8698
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_8699
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_8700
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8701
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8702
Mayfield Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8703
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8704
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8705
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8706
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8707
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8708
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_8709
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8710
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_8711
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8712
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_8713
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8714
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8715
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_8716
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8717
FALMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8718
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8719
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8720
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8721
TUMULUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8722
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_8723
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8724
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8725
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8726
LUSTRELLS CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8727
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8728
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8729
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8730
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8731
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8732
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_8733
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8734
GREENBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8735
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8736
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8737
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_8738
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8739
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8740
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8741
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8742
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_8743
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8744
EFFINGHAM CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8745
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8746
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_8747
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8748
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8749
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8750
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8751
LUSTRELLS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8752
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_8753
14 to 103

AutoCAD SHX Text_8754
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8755
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8756
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8757
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8758
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8759
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_8760
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8761
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8762
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8763
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8764
SCHOOL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8765
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8766
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_8767
BISHOPSTONE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8768
19.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8769
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8770
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8771
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8772
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8773
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8774
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8775
GLYNDEBOURNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8776
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8777
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8778
Westbrook

AutoCAD SHX Text_8779
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_8780
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8781
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_8782
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8783
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8784
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_8785
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8786
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_8787
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8788
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8789
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8790
18.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8791
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8792
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8793
Southdowns Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8794
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8795
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_8796
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8797
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8798
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_8799
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8800
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8801
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_8802
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8803
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8804
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8805
TREMOLA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8806
21.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8807
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8808
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8809
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8810
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8811
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8812
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8813
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8814
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8815
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8816
CHILTINGTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8817
CHILTINGTON WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8818
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8819
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8820
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8821
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_8822
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8823
SAXON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8824
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8825
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8826
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8827
HAWTHORN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8828
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8829
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8830
Saltdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_8831
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_8832
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8833
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8834
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8835
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8836
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8837
St Martin's

AutoCAD SHX Text_8838
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_8839
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_8840
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8841
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8842
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8843
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8844
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_8845
64.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8846
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8847
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_8848
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8849
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8850
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8851
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_8852
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8853
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8854
HOMEBUSH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8855
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_8856
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8857
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8858
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_8859
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_8860
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8861
75.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8862
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8863
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8864
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8865
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_8866
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8867
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8868
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8869
HARTFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8870
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8871
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_8872
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8873
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8874
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8875
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8876
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8877
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8878
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8879
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_8880
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8881
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8882
11b

AutoCAD SHX Text_8883
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8884
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_8885
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8886
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_8887
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8888
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8889
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8890
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8891
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8892
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8893
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8894
WICKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8895
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8896
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8897
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8898
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8899
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8900
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8901
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8902
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8903
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_8904
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_8905
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_8906
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8907
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_8908
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_8909
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_8910
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8911
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8912
BEVENDEAN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8913
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8914
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8915
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_8916
1 to 75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8917
70.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8918
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8919
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8920
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8921
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8922
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8923
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8924
RODMELL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8925
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8926
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8927
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8928
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8929
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8930
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_8931
67.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8932
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8933
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8934
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8935
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_8936
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8937
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8938
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_8939
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8940
60.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8941
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8942
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8943
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_8944
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8945
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_8946
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8947
BRAMBLETYNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8948
LONGRIDGE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8949
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8950
LINCHMERE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8951
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8952
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_8953
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_8954
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8955
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8956
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8957
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8958
39a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8959
Homeridge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8960
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8961
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8962
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8963
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8964
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8965
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8966
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8967
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8968
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_8969
39b

AutoCAD SHX Text_8970
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8971
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_8972
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8973
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8974
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8975
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8976
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8977
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_8978
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_8979
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8980
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8981
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8982
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8983
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8984
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8985
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8986
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8987
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8988
43a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8989
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_8990
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8991
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8992
CROWBOROUGH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8993
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8994
OAKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8995
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8996
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8997
73a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8998
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8999
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9000
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9001
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_9002
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9003
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_9004
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_9005
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9006
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9007
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_9008
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9009
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_9010
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9011
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9012
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9013
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9014
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9015
73.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9016
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9017
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9018
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9019
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_9020
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9021
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9022
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9023
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_9024
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9025
37a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9026
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9027
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9028
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_9029
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9030
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9031
35b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9032
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9033
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_9034
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_9035
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9036
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_9037
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_9038
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_9039
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9040
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9041
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9042
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_9043
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9044
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9045
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9046
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9047
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_9048
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9049
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9050
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9051
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9052
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9053
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9054
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9055
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9056
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9057
WITHYHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9058
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9059
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9060
20.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9061
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9062
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_9063
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9064
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9065
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9066
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_9067
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_9068
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9069
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9070
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9071
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9072
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_9073
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9074
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9075
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9076
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_9077
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9078
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9079
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9080
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9081
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9082
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9083
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_9084
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_9085
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9086
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9087
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9088
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9089
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9090
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_9091
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_9092
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9093
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_9094
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9095
WICKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9096
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9097
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9098
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9099
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_9100
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_9101
and Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_9102
CHICHESTER DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_9103
ARUNDEL DRIVE WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_9104
Paddling

AutoCAD SHX Text_9105
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_9106
ARUNDEL DRIVE EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_9107
Saltdean Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_9108
Miniature Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_9109
15.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9110
Saltdean

AutoCAD SHX Text_9111
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_9112
CHICHESTER DRIVE EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_9113
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_9114
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9115
GREENBANK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9116
LINCHMERE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9117
Community Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_9118
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9119
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9120
34.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9121
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_9122
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_9123
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9124
Lido

AutoCAD SHX Text_9125
SHEPHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9126
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9127
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9128
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_9129
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_9130
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9131
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_9132
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9133
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9134
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9135
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_9136
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9137
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9138
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_9139
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_9140
NUTLEY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9141
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9142
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_9143
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_9144
Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_9145
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9146
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9147
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9148
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9149
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9150
53 to 57

AutoCAD SHX Text_9151
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9152
63a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9153
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9154
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9155
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9156
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9157
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9158
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9159
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9160
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9161
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9162
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9163
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9164
St Nicholas'

AutoCAD SHX Text_9165
SALTDEAN PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9166
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_9167
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9168
The Golf House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9169
Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_9170
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_9171
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_9172
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_9173
44.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9174
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9175
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_9176
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9177
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9178
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9179
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9180
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_9181
30.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9182
32.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9183
39.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9184
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_9185
Chichester

AutoCAD SHX Text_9186
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9187
OAKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9188
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9189
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9190
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_9191
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9192
Pickers Hill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_9193
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9194
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9195
30.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9196
31.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9197
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9198
Pickers Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_9199
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9200
50.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9201
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_9202
Farm Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_9203
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_9204
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_9205
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9206
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9207
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9208
Waldegrave Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_9209
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9210
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9211
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9212
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_9213
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9214
COOMBE RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9215
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_9216
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9217
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9218
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9219
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9220
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_9221
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_9222
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9223
STANMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9224
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_9225
WESTFIELD AVENUE NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_9226
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9227
EDWARD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9228
HILGROVE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9229
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_9230
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9231
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9232
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9233
28.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9234
HEMPSTEAD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9235
HAILSHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9236
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9237
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9238
WESTFIELD AVENUE SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_9239
STANMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9240
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_9241
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9242
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9243
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9244
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_9245
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9246
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_9247
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_9248
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9249
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9250
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9251
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9252
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9253
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9254
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9255
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9256
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9257
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9258
BERWICK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9259
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9260
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9261
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9262
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9263
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9264
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9265
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9266
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_9267
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9268
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_9269
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_9270
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_9271
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9272
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9273
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9274
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9275
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_9276
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_9277
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9278
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9279
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_9280
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9281
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9282
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9283
Coombe Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_9284
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9285
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_9286
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9287
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9288
VALE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9289
STANMER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9290
25.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9291
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9292
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9293
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9294
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9295
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9296
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9297
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_9298
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_9299
SALTDEAN VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9300
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9301
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_9302
30.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9303
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_9304
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9305
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9306
COOMBE VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9307
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9308
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9309
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_9310
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_9311
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9312
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9313
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9314
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_9315
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9316
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9317
WESTFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9318
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9319
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9320
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9321
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_9322
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9323
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9324
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9325
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9326
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9327
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9328
HAILSHAM AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9329
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_9330
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9331
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9332
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_9333
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9334
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9335
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9336
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9337
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_9338
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9339
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_9340
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9341
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9342
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9343
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9344
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_9345
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9346
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_9347
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9348
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9349
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_9350
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9351
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9352
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_9353
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9354
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9355
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_9356
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9357
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9358
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_9359
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_9360
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9361
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9362
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9363
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9364
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_9365
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_9366
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_9367
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9368
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9369
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_9370
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_9371
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_9372
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_9373
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9374
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9375
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9376
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9377
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_9378
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9379
TUMULUS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9380
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9381
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9382
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9383
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9384
WINTON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9385
WIVELSFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9386
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9387
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9388
PERRY HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_9389
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9390
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_9391
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_9392
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_9393
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9394
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9395
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9396
RIDGEWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9397
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_9398
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9399
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9400
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_9401
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9402
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9403
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9404
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9405
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_9406
High Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_9407
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9408
Portobello

AutoCAD SHX Text_9409
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_9410
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9411
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9412
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9413
&

AutoCAD SHX Text_9414
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9415
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9416
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_9417
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9418
SOUTH COAST ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9419
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9420
Telscombe Tye

AutoCAD SHX Text_9421
Scattered

AutoCAD SHX Text_9422
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9423
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_9424
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9425
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9426
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9427
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_9428
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9429
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_9430
58a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9431
ASHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9432
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9433
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9434
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9435
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9436
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9437
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9438
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9439
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9440
14 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9441
32.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9442
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9443
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9444
Telscombe Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_9445
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9446
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9447
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9448
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_9449
Gorham Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_9450
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9451
58b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9452
Bannings Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_9453
GORHAM WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_9454
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9455
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9456
&

AutoCAD SHX Text_9457
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9458
448

AutoCAD SHX Text_9459
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9460
Cliff

AutoCAD SHX Text_9461
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9462
Public House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9463
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_9464
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9465
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_9466
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9467
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9468
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9469
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9470
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9471
Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_9472
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9473
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9474
Scattered

AutoCAD SHX Text_9475
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9476
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9477
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9478
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9479
Telscombe Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_9480
RODMELL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9481
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_9482
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_9483
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9484
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_9485
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_9486
Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_9487
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_9488
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_9489
82.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9490
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_9491
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9492
81.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9493
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_9494
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_9495
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_9496
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_9497
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_9498
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_9499
151b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9500
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_9501
76.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9502
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9503
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_9504
97a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9505
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_9506
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_9507
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9508
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_9509
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9510
RYE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9511
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9512
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_9513
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_9514
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_9515
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_9516
224

AutoCAD SHX Text_9517
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_9518
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_9519
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_9520
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9521
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_9522
131a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9523
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_9524
149a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9525
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_9526
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_9527
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9528
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9529
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9530
81.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9531
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9532
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9533
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9534
FINDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_9535
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9536
Tenant Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_9537
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_9538
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9539
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9540
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_9541
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9542
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_9543
59.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9544
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9545
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_9546
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9547
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9548
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9549
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_9550
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_9551
101a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9552
70.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9553
IFIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9554
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9555
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_9556
64.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9557
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9558
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9559
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_9560
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_9561
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_9562
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_9563
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_9564
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9565
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_9566
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_9567
114a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9568
CISSBURY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_9569
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_9570
222

AutoCAD SHX Text_9571
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9572
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_9573
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_9574
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9575
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_9576
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9577
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_9578
Bannings

AutoCAD SHX Text_9579
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_9580
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_9581
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9582
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_9583
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9584
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_9585
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9586
92a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9587
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9588
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_9589
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_9590
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9591
99a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9592
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_9593
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9594
FINDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_9595
109a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9596
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_9597
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_9598
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_9599
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9600
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9601
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_9602
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_9603
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9604
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_9605
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_9606
59a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9607
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_9608
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_9609
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9610
71a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9611
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9612
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_9613
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_9614
FINDON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9615
83a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9616
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9617
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9618
118c

AutoCAD SHX Text_9619
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_9620
Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_9621
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_9622
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_9623
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9624
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_9625
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_9626
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9627
51.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9628
36.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9629
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9630
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9631
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_9632
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_9633
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_9634
54.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9635
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9636
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9637
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_9638
BRAMBLETYNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9639
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_9640
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_9641
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_9642
50a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9643
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9644
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9645
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_9646
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9647
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_9648
81a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9649
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9650
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_9651
71c

AutoCAD SHX Text_9652
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9653
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_9654
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9655
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9656
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_9657
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9658
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9659
BEVENDEAN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9660
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9661
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9662
85a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9663
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_9664
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_9665
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9666
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_9667
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9668
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_9669
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9670
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9671
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_9672
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_9673
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_9674
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_9675
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9676
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9677
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_9678
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_9679
71b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9680
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_9681
78a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9682
104a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9683
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9684
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_9685
50b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9686
65a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9687
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9688
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_9689
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9690
118b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9691
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9692
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_9693
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_9694
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9695
CHAILEY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_9696
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_9697
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_9698
WICKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9699
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_9700
Brambletyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9701
LEWES

AutoCAD SHX Text_9702
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_9703
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9704
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_9705
ASHURST AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9706
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9707
Bircle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9708
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9709
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9710
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_9711
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_9712
CISSBURY CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_9713
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9714
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9715
38.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9716
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_9717
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_9718
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9719
40.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9720
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_9721
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_9722
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9723
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_9724
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9725
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9726
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_9727
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_9728
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_9729
Bannings Bottom

AutoCAD SHX Text_9730
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9731
BANNINGS VALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9732
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_9733
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9734
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9735
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_9736
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_9737
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9738
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9739
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_9740
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_9741
NORTHWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9742
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_9743
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_9744
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_9745
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_9746
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9747
44.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9748
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9749
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9750
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9751
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_9752
OAKLANDS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9753
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9754
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9755
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9756
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_9757
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9758
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_9759
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_9760
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_9761
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_9762
118a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9763
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_9764
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9765
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9766
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_9767
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_9768
NORTHWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9769
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9770
FINDON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9771
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_9772
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_9773
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_9774
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_9775
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_9776
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9777
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_9778
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9779
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_9780
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9781
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_9782
105a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9783
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9784
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9785
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9786
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9787
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9788
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9789
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9790
22-24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9791
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_9792
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9793
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9794
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9795
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9796
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9797
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9798
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9799
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9800
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9801
Sandmere

AutoCAD SHX Text_9802
Marine View

AutoCAD SHX Text_9803
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_9804
Southcliffe Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_9805
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9806
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9807
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9808
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9809
40a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9810
39a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9811
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9812
18A

AutoCAD SHX Text_9813
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9814
18B

AutoCAD SHX Text_9815
Little Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_9816
The Studio

AutoCAD SHX Text_9817
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_9818
Bonnets

AutoCAD SHX Text_9819
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_9820
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9821
Aldingbourne Grange Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_9822
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_9823
Mulberry

AutoCAD SHX Text_9824
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9825
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9826
C of E

AutoCAD SHX Text_9827
St Margarets

AutoCAD SHX Text_9828
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_9829
Saltdean Tavern (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9830
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9831
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9832
LOOES

AutoCAD SHX Text_9833
BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9834
72a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9835
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9836
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9837
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9838
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9839
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9840
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9841
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9842
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9843
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9844
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9845
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9846
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9847
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_9848
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9849
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9850
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9851
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9852
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9853
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9854
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9855
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9856
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9857
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9858
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_9859
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_9860
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9861
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9862
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9863
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9864
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9865
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9866
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9867
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9868
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9869
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9870
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9871
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9872
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9873
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9874
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9875
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9876
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9877
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9878
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9879
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9880
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9881
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9882
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9883
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9884
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9885
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9886
MLW

AutoCAD SHX Text_9887
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9888
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9889
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_9890
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9891
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9892
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9893
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9894
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_9895
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_9896
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9897
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9898
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9899
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9900
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9901
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9902
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9903
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9904
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9905
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9906
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9907
Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_9908
Breakwater

AutoCAD SHX Text_9909
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9910
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9911
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9912
Boulders

AutoCAD SHX Text_9913
Mean Low Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9914
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_9915
Mean High Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_9916
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_9917
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9918
3 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9919
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9920
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9921
The Cape

AutoCAD SHX Text_9922
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9923
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9924
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9925
68a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9926
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_9927
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_9928
402a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9929
The Deans

AutoCAD SHX Text_9930
Leisure Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_9931
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9932
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9933
The Annexe

AutoCAD SHX Text_9934
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9935
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9936
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9937
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9938
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9939
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9940
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9941
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9942
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9943
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9944
MLW

AutoCAD SHX Text_9945
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9946
Groyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_9947
31a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9948
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9949
Bazehill Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_9950
The Old Dairy

AutoCAD SHX Text_9951
Skateboard Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_9952
Slipway

AutoCAD SHX Text_9953
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_9954
Broad Green Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_9955
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9956
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_9957
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9958
Ocean Reach

AutoCAD SHX Text_9959
1 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9960
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9961
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9962
CG

AutoCAD SHX Text_9963
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9964
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9965
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9966
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9967
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9968
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_9969
Golden

AutoCAD SHX Text_9970
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_9971
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9972
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_9973
53a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9974
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_9975
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_9976
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9977
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9978
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9979
Timor

AutoCAD SHX Text_9980
1 to 48

AutoCAD SHX Text_9981
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9982
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_9983
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_9984
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_9985
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9986
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9987
Atlantic Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_9988
53a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9989
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_9990
14b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9991
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_9992
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_9993
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9994
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9995
Pacific Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_9996
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_9997
21a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9998
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9999
Grand Ocean

AutoCAD SHX Text_10000
Caspian Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_10001
Ionian Heights

AutoCAD SHX Text_10002
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_10003
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10004
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10005
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10006
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10007
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10008
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10009
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10010
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10011
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_10012
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_10013
1 to 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10014
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_10015
1 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10016
1 to 44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10017
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10018
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_10019
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10020
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10021
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10022
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10023
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10024
TB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10025
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10026
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10027
Co Const,ED & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10028
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10029
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10030
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10031
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10032
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10033
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10034
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10035
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10036
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10037
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10038
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_10039
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10040
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_10041
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10042
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10043
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10044
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_10045
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10046
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10047
E Baulk

AutoCAD SHX Text_10048
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10049
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10050
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10051
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10052
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10053
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10054
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10055
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10056
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10057
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10058
E Baulk

AutoCAD SHX Text_10059
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10060
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10061
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10062
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10063
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10064
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10065
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10066
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10067
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10068
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10069
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10070
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10071
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10072
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10073
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10074
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10075
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10076
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10077
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10078
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10079
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10080
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10081
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10082
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10083
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10084
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10085
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10086
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10087
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10088
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10089
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_10090
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10091
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10092
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10093
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10094
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10095
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10096
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10097
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10098
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10099
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10100
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10101
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10102
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10103
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10104
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10105
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10106
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10107
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10108
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10109
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10110
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10111
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10112
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10113
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10114
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10115
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10116
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10117
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10118
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10119
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10120
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10121
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10122
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10123
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10124
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10125
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10126
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10127
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10128
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10129
BP

AutoCAD SHX Text_10130
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10131
BP

AutoCAD SHX Text_10132
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10133
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10134
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10135
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10136
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10137
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10138
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10139
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10140
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10141
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10142
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10143
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10144
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10145
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10146
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10147
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10148
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10149
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10150
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10151
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10152
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10153
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10154
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10155
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10156
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10157
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10158
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10159
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10160
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10161
UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10162
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10163
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10164
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10165
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10166
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10167
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10168
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10169
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_10170
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10171
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_10172
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10173
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10174
Boro Const & UA Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10175
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10176
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_10177
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10178
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_10179
418

AutoCAD SHX Text_10180
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_10181
420

AutoCAD SHX Text_10182
Portobello Sea Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_10183
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_10184
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_10185
1 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_10186
SUEZ WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_10187
1 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10188
Baltic View

AutoCAD SHX Text_10189
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10190
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_10191
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10192
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_10193
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_10194
1 to 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_10195
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_10196
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_10197
Roedean School

AutoCAD SHX Text_10198
Winton Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_10199
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10200
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10201
Ardwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_10202
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10203
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10204
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10205
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10206
Plough

AutoCAD SHX Text_10207
Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_10208
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10209
DENES MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10210
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10211
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10212
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10213
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10214
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10215
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_10216
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10217
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10218
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10219
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10220
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_10221
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10222
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10223
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10224
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_10225
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_10226
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10227
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10228
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10229
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_10230
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_10231
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_10232
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_10233
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_10234
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_10235
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10236
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10237
CHURCH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10238
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10239
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10240
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10241
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10242
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10243
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10244
The Elms Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_10245
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10246
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10247
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10248
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10249
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10250
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10251
128a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10252
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_10253
130a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10254
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10255
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10256
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10257
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10258
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10259
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10260
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10261
Marine Cliffs

AutoCAD SHX Text_10262
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_10263
Carfax

AutoCAD SHX Text_10264
Fairview

AutoCAD SHX Text_10265
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10266
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_10267
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10268
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_10269
Hideaway

AutoCAD SHX Text_10270
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10271
St Patrick's

AutoCAD SHX Text_10272
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_10273
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10274
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10275
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10276
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10277
14.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10278
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10279
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10280
St Aubyns

AutoCAD SHX Text_10281
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10282
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_10283
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_10284
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_10285
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10286
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_10287
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10288
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10289
Cownwy Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10290
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10291
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10292
WEST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_10293
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10294
Park Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_10295
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_10296
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10297
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_10298
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_10299
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_10300
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10301
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10302
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_10303
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_10304
9 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10305
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_10306
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10307
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10308
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10309
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10310
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10311
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10312
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10313
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_10314
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_10315
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_10316
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10317
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_10318
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10319
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10320
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_10321
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_10322
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10323
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10324
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_10325
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_10326
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10327
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_10328
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10329
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10330
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_10331
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10332
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10333
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_10334
86a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10335
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10336
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_10337
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10338
86c

AutoCAD SHX Text_10339
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_10340
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_10341
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10342
14.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10343
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_10344
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_10345
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10346
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10347
59 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10348
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10349
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10350
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_10351
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_10352
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10353
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_10354
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10355
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_10356
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10357
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_10358
Golden

AutoCAD SHX Text_10359
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_10360
14b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10361
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_10362
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_10363
DENES MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10364
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10365
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10366
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10367
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10368
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_10369
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10370
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10371
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10372
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10373
14.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10374
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10375
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10376
St Aubyns

AutoCAD SHX Text_10377
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10378
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_10379
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_10380
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_10381
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10382
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_10383
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10384
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10385
Cownwy Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10386
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10387
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10388
WEST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_10389
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10390
Park Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_10391
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_10392
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10393
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_10394
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_10395
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_10396
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10397
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10398
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_10399
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_10400
9 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10401
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_10402
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10403
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10404
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10405
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10406
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10407
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10408
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10409
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_10410
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_10411
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_10412
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10413
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_10414
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10415
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10416
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_10417
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_10418
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10419
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10420
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_10421
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_10422
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10423
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_10424
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10425
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10426
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_10427
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10428
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10429
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_10430
86a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10431
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10432
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_10433
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10434
86c

AutoCAD SHX Text_10435
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_10436
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_10437
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10438
14.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10439
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_10440
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_10441
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10442
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10443
59 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10444
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10445
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10446
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_10447
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_10448
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10449
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_10450
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10451
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_10452
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10453
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_10454
Golden

AutoCAD SHX Text_10455
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_10456
14b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10457
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_10458
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_10459
DENES MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10460
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10461
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10462
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10463
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10464
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_10465
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10466
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10467
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10468
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10469
14.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10470
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10471
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10472
St Aubyns

AutoCAD SHX Text_10473
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10474
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_10475
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_10476
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_10477
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10478
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_10479
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10480
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10481
Cownwy Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10482
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10483
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10484
WEST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_10485
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10486
Park Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_10487
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_10488
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10489
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_10490
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_10491
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_10492
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10493
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10494
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_10495
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_10496
9 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10497
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_10498
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10499
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10500
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10501
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10502
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10503
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10504
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10505
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_10506
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_10507
Victoria

AutoCAD SHX Text_10508
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10509
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_10510
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10511
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10512
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_10513
PCs

AutoCAD SHX Text_10514
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10515
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10516
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_10517
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_10518
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10519
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_10520
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10521
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10522
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_10523
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10524
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10525
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_10526
86a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10527
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10528
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_10529
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10530
86c

AutoCAD SHX Text_10531
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_10532
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_10533
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10534
14.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10535
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_10536
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_10537
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10538
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10539
59 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10540
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10541
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10542
Marine

AutoCAD SHX Text_10543
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_10544
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10545
The Twitten

AutoCAD SHX Text_10546
14 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10547
Swimming Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_10548
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10549
Ps

AutoCAD SHX Text_10550
Golden

AutoCAD SHX Text_10551
Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_10552
14b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10553
Windmill

AutoCAD SHX Text_10554
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_10555
DENES MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10556
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10557
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10558
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10559
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10560
49



114



ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 60 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: School Parking Enforcement Review report 

Date of Meeting: 22 January 2019 

Report of: Executive Director Economy, Environment & Culture 

Contact Officer: Name: Paul McCann Tel: 01273 293014 

 Email: Paul.mccann@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The report presents a review of school parking enforcement, following on from 

the report submitted to Environment, Transport & Sustainability (ETS) Committee 
on 20th March 2018. The previous report recommended the employment of three 
additional Civil Enforcement Officers to assist with school parking enforcement 
and enforcement of areas outside the City Centre. This report demonstrates the 
progress of the additional Civil Enforcement Officers and the consideration of 
alternative options to assist in school parking enforcement. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That Committee notes the progress of the employment of three additional Civil 

Enforcement Officers for school parking enforcement.  
 
2.2 That Committee notes the reporting of antisocial behaviour is promoted and 

encouraged by School Crossing Patrol Officers and the wider school community 
and officers will continue to monitor trials of body worn cameras on school 
crossing patrols in West Sussex. 

 
2.3 That Committee notes that the School Travel Team within City Transport is 

working with Sustrans and Living Streets to encourage behaviour change and to 
provide effective school parking enforcement with the Parking Strategy and 
Contracts Team. 

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 A report on school parking enforcement was submitted to ETS Committee on 

20th March 2018 recommending the employment of three additional Civil 
Enforcement Officers to assist with school parking enforcement, and to assist in 
tackling parking contraventions in the areas of the city not within the Controlled 
Parking Zones (CPZs). The recommendation was agreed by Members of this 
Committee and the officers were employed in June 2018. A further report on 
school parking enforcement was requested, and agreed, and a petition was also 
submitted to Committee in October 2018 regarding parking issues at Hangleton 
Primary School and Goldstone School. During this period the Transport Projects 
Team have begun work on the Hangleton Safer Routes to Schools Scheme. 

115

mailto:Paul.mccann@brighton-hove.gov.uk


3.2 The three additional officers work with the two other Civil Enforcement Officers 
who are deployed on school parking enforcement duties. The officers have been 
active in dealing with both school parking enforcement issues and tackling 
parking contraventions outside of the Controlled Parking Zones. It was projected 
that the officers would be 80% self-funding for the first year, issuing an estimated 
average of 6 Penalty Charge Notices per day. The performance of the additional 
officers to date has shown an average of 6.25 Penalty Charge Notices per day. 
The additional officers have allowed, where appropriate, a more robust 
enforcement approach at schools, tackling double parking and protecting school 
keep clear markings and restrictions. 
 

   Consideration of alternative options to assist in School Parking Enforcement 
 

3.3 A number of alternative options have been suggested and this report provides an 
evaluation on the use of Body Worn Cameras on School Crossing Patrol 
Officers, Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs), CCTV / Automatic Number 
Plate Recognition vehicles and the Extension of Restrictions outside Schools. 
The report also provides details on the work carried out by the School Travel 
Team and the Safer Routes to School Programme. 

 
           School Travel Team 
 
3.4 The School Travel Team works on school travel plans. The School Travel Team 

works in partnership with schools and nurseries to help develop school travel 
plans. These plans provide a framework for school communities to encourage 
and support families to travel to school in a safe, active and sustainable way. The 
School Travel Team supports schools to deliver the initiatives within their travel 
plan, by working especially with the pupils as School Travel Ambassadors and to 
engage with children, parents, carers and staff to encourage travel behaviour 
change. 

  
3.5 The School Travel Team comprises of three officers working 2.4 full time 

equivalent posts. The team is grant funded by the Department for Transport (DfT) 
through the Access Fund for Sustainable Travel until March 2020. The School 
Travel Team is supporting the Air Quality/Anti-Idling Project 2018/19. This is a 
joint initiative with East and West Sussex Councils aimed at trying to reduce 
engine idling outside some schools to help improve air quality within Air Quality 
Management areas. The delivery of the project will be from Sustrans and Living 
Streets. The School Travel Team will also be supporting the Sustrans led “School 
Streets” events in March 2019 

 
4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The main alternatives are going ahead with the further options reviewed and 

outlined in the report. 
 

4.2 However, it is the recommendation of officers that these options are not 
progressed for the reasons outlined within the report. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
 

116



Body worn cameras on School Crossing Patrol Officers 
  
5.1 There are currently 10 School Crossing Patrol Officers employed and if at full 

capacity the council would have 21 officers employed. Recruiting to fill these 
posts has proven to be difficult. Seven officers were asked if they would be 
happy to wear body worn cameras whilst on duty. Only three, out of the seven 
officers, would wish to wear and use body worn cameras. The other School 
Crossing Patrol Officers indicated they did not want to be involved in the 
prosecution process or attend the extra training required. The job description of a 
School Crossing Patrol Officer does not require prosecution work as a condition 
of duty. 

 
5.2 There are financial considerations in the purchase, maintenance and 

administration of cameras and associated data and equipment and training of all 
staff to ensure policies are in place to ensure their use complies with the General 
Data Protection Regulation, Data Protection Act, Protection of Freedoms Act, 
Human Rights Act and Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act. 

 
5.3 As an alternative to the wearing of body cameras, any incident can either be 

reported directly to the Service Manager or to the Police run Operation 
Crackdown. Incidents reported to Operation Crackdown can lead to prosecution, 
dependant on evidence, or a visit or warning letter from the Police. 

 
5.4 It is planned to have closer working relationships with schools, parents and the 

community to look at the anti-social behaviour issues associated with driving 
outside schools whilst the School Crossing Patrol Officer is on duty. Additional 
monitoring will be carried out to identify locations where antisocial behaviour 
does occur and undertake targeted promotions to advertise reporting of this 
behaviour. 

 
5.5 Legal Officers have advised that under the Human Rights Act 1998, which binds 

public authorities, a pressing need has to be demonstrated when surveillance is 
undertaken. The use of surveillance cameras must be necessary, proportionate 
and transparent. Body cameras must be used in a way that does not invade a 
person’s privacy. 
 
Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) for School Parking Enforcement 
 

5.6 PSPOs were considered in the report submitted to ETS committee on 20th 
March 2018, taking guidance from Legal Officers. Consultation with the police 
and community representatives is required before a PSPO can be introduced. 
PSPOs can be resource intensive to introduce and enforce. It is doubtful that 
costs could be recouped so this would lead to an additional expense to the 
Council. 

 
5.7 PSPOs have been reconsidered and there are a number of concerns on the use 

of such orders. PSPOs are used for school parking enforcement in the London 
Borough of Havering.  Costs for first year in the London Borough of Havering 
were £728K in 2016 with ongoing annual maintenance costs of £66K. A PSPO, 
for example, in the Hangleton area would be of a similar size and comparable 
cost. There would also be the need to employ additional staff as PSPOs are 
enforced by Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) rather than the Civil Penalty Charge 

117



Notices (PCNs). Civil Enforcement Officers do not issue FPNs for traffic related 
offences 
 

5.8 The Local Government Association’s Public Spaces Protection Orders Guidance 
for Councils has been reviewed. The section on “Displacing Behaviour” (on page 
9 of the guide) has been noted and displacement of problems is a concern. We 
have looked at the plans of the PSPOs for the London Borough of Havering and 
a similar scheme could result in displacement of problems rather than a solution. 
Parking problems could displace to surrounding roads outside the area of a 
PSPO, this would then result in the same parking problems albeit in different 
residential roads. 
 

5.9 Consideration has also been given to the “Assessing Potential Impact and The 
Equality Act 2010” of the Local Government Association Guide (on page 10 of 
the guide).  An Equalities Impact Assessment would need to be undertaken and 
there is a need for an Exemption Criteria for a School PSPO. 
 

5.10 This Exemption Criteria would therefore not stop all school related parking and 
traffic. Examples of exemptions are Blue Badge holders, persons receiving 
Personal Independence Payment, being in receipt of school transport assistance 
on medical grounds. Further examples are a medical condition that results in the 
restriction imposed by a PSPO being considered by a qualified medical 
practitioner to be detrimental to health and wellbeing, and special circumstances 
such as a temporary injury .e.g. a broken leg.   
 

5.11 A breach of a PSPO is a criminal offence and can lead to prosecution if the Fixed 
Penalty Notice is not paid. Prosecution through the courts can lead to a fine of up 
to £1000. The criminalisation of parents dropping off children to school could be 
detrimental to the work carried out by the School Travel Team who work with 
schools, nurseries, parents and children to encourage travel behaviour change 
through innovative and fun projects, which encourages participation and which is 
sustained for the long term. 
 
Safer Routes to School Programme 
 

5.12 The Local Transport Plan provides funding for an annual Safer Routes to School 
Programme, which is a casualty led programme of improvements to the highway 
to remove risks and perceived risks in travelling to schools by walking and 
cycling. The Hangleton Safer Routes to Schools scheme is part of this 
Programme and was approved by this committee at its meeting of 27th 
November 2018 representing the Council’s ongoing investment in improving 
travel to and from schools and therefore the associated parking generated by 
school travel. 

 
5.13 It is estimated the project will be completed by late summer 2019 in time for the 

2019/20 academic year. The School Travel Team and Parking Strategy and 
Contracts Team will continue to work together. If problems arise the teams will 
liaise and plan for the most effective use of resources. The Civil Enforcement 
Officers, deployed on school parking enforcement duties, will support the scheme 
and take enforcement action if road traffic contraventions occur. It is felt the 
success of the scheme should be analysed and reported upon before committing 
to further spending on additional parking enforcement options. 

118



 
CCTV / Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) vehicle  

 
5.14 As previously reported within the report to ETS committee on 20th March 2018, a 

car fitted with CCTV and ANPR would cost at least £80k for an entry level 
vehicle. The costs would escalate as additional staff are required not only to staff 
the vehicles but as back office support. 

 
5.15 For the ANPR aspect of the car to operate the Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO’s) 

would need to be mapped onto software which is both a costly and timely 
exercise. Covering those costs via income from the additional Penalty Charge 
Notices (PCNs) would not be achievable.  
 

5.16 The new Parking Enforcement Contract is due to commence in January 2021. 
The preparation of the new contract is underway and will consider the use of new 
technology, including ANPR and Map Based TROs. During the interim period it 
would not be financially viable or time effective to bring in the use of an ANPR 
vehicle, but this can be reconsidered in the future. 
 

5.17 Double parking at schools, especially near the entrance, is at present one of the 
main complaints received and the use of four enforcement officers to tackle 
double parking and protect school keep clear lines is now being used effectively. 
 
Extension of restrictions outside schools 
 

5.18 Outside of the Safer Routes to Schools scheme consideration has been given by 
the Parking Infrastructure Team to an extension of parking restrictions outside 
schools. However, there are difficulties in putting in additional widespread 
parking restrictions outside schools as this does not prevent people from driving 
to the schools, but displaces the traffic and parking to other roads. People may 
have made a decision to live in roads in close proximity to the school but without 
the associated difficulties that come with living on the same road as the school. 
Therefore, this is likely to lead to significant objections from local residents 
outlining that the Council are simply displacing the problem. 
 

5.19 The Council are restricted to what can be implemented, school keep clears can 
only be used immediately outside of schools and loading restrictions can trigger a 
public inquiry if implemented for a certain length at peak periods. By putting in a 
loading ban on single yellow lines this would prevent blue badge holders 
(parents, children and residents) from being able to use this area to park so they 
would have to be carefully balanced with other issues and considered on the 
merits of the individual circumstance. This is a key consideration as having too 
many loading bans can lessen the effectiveness of double yellow lines. 
 

5.20 In order to install yellow lines the widespread proposals would need to be put to 
the public, in the form of a draft Traffic Regulation Order, followed by the correct 
signing and road markings on site (or removal of them) if the proposals are 
approved. This would require substantial time and cost. We are looking to 
implement some additional restrictions in key spots, however, these would be 
limited to avoid displacement and would involve liaison with the Transport 
Projects section regarding any changes around the schools to make sure they tie 
in with the school travel plans. 

119



6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 It is felt that increasing the number of Civil Enforcement Officers deployed on 

school parking enforcement duties has provided a more flexible and, where 
appropriate, robust method to tackle school parking enforcement.  
 

6.2 It is felt that bringing in PSPOs, and the required CCTV equipment, would be 
expensive and would only displace parking and traffic problems. The use of body 
worn cameras by School Crossing Patrol Officers is not considered a practical 
and effective way to reduce incidents and officers will continue to monitor trials of 
body worn cameras on school crossing patrols in West Sussex.   

 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 There are no additional costs to the recommendations in this report.  

 
7.2 It was estimated that the cost for employment of three civil enforcement officers 

would be 80% self-funding for the first two years, with full funding by the end of 
year 3, from Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) issued by the civil enforcement 
officers whilst carrying out other enforcement duties outside of school hours. 
Based on the current performance this estimate was accurate and the 
performance is just above what was projected.  

 
7.3 The Hangleton Safer Routes to Schools scheme funding has been detailed within 

a separate report to Environment, Transport and Sustainability committee on 27th 
November 2018. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Gemma Jackson Date: 04/01/19 
 
          Legal Implications: 
 
7.4     The Legal Implications are considered in the body of this report 
   
 Lawyer consulted: Stephanie Stammers:                                Date: 21/12/18 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.5      There are no foreseen equalities implications. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.6     It is felt that the continued work by the School Travel Team, working with                      

Sustrans, Living Streets Project and the Parking Strategy and Contracts Team 
will assist in improving sustainable travel options in the city. 

 
Any Other Significant Implications: 

 
7.6     There are no other foreseen significant implications. 
 
 

120



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. None 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. None 
  
Background Documents 
 
1. School Parking Enforcement report. Date of Meeting: 20 March 2018. 
 
2.       Hangleton Safer Routes to School Scheme report. Date of Meeting: 27 November 

2018 

121



122


	Agenda
	51 Minutes
	54 Public Involvement
	56 Fees and Charges 2019-20
	Appendix 1 for Fees and Charges 2019-20 - Highways
	Appen 1. City Tran Highways

	Fees and Charges 2019-20 APX. n 2
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 APX. n 3
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 APX. n 4
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 APX. n 5
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 APX. n 6A
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 APX. n 6B

	57 City Environment Modernisation Update
	City Environment Modernisation Update APX. n 1
	City Environment Modernisation Update APX. n 2

	58 Rottingdean High St Air Quality Management Area traffic scheme
	Rottingdean High St AQMA APX. n 1
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2



	59 School Parking Enforcement Review Report



